SILGA President Report
Dear SILGA Members,

Thank you very much for joining us in Salmon Arm. We are so excited to be able
to bring you together after a three year hiatus. Even the SILGA board is looking
to meet each other in person for the very first time!
2021 was a very difficult year for many communities in SILGA. Not only was the
pandemic still raging, but Mother Nature battered numerous communities with
both fires and floods. Our thoughts continue to be with Lytton, Merritt,
Princeton, and the smaller communities within our regional districts that saw
devastating destruction and losses. You are resilient; you will rebuild.
The conference’s theme is “All Together Now”, to acknowledge the ability to meet in person and return
to connecting normally with one another. The conference is also about connections and fostering a
network that catalyzes various experiences that can be drawn upon when faced with issues or problems
or the need for innovative thoughts. In short, together we are stronger.
Our conference topics are in response to what our members have asked to learn more about. We’ve
brought together several presentations on Climate Change; we’ll start the discussion around Food Security
and Supply for our communities and we’ll talk about economic development to get your economy
rebuilding now that the pandemic is subsiding. But please keep speaking up. We value your perspective,
your experience and of course, your questions. What is important for you and your community? In the
past SILGA has offered sessions outside the convention that allow more in depth discussion of topics that
will resonate with our communities.
I trust that throughout the convention you will take the opportunity to network with your fellow
delegates, learn from our presenters and sponsors and relish in the lively discussions as we debate the
many resolutions brought forward by our members. Check out our Facebook page (Southern Interior
Local Government Association) and keep your tweets coming during the next few days. #SILGA2022
On behalf of the SILGA Executive, we would like to extend our gratitude to each of you who have chosen
to serve your communities. You have stepped up - you have chosen to serve. I’m sure there have been
challenges and struggles during your term but hopefully moments of great satisfaction as well, and the
knowledge that you’ve made a difference in your community. In this election year I hope you will consider
putting your name forward again; but if you do not, know that you’ve had an impact during the past four
years.
In closing, I would like to extend thanks to the hardworking individuals on the host committee whose
efforts have contributed to a robust agenda. We hope that this week will be not only informative but also
thought provoking. I would also like to thank the SILGA executive for their hard work and dedication
during the past year. Although we had to do things a little differently than in the past, their knowledge

and competencies when dealing with Provincial and Federal Ministries was greatly appreciated. We look
forward to hearing from our members over the next few days and listening to the issues that are most
important to you and your constituents.
Thank you again for joining us at our annual AGM and thank you for choosing to serve as leaders within
your communities.
Karla Kozakevich

CITY OF

SAIMONARM
April 26, 2022

RE: Welcome to the 2022 SILGA AGM Conference - April 26 -April 29th, 2022

On behalf of Council, Municipal staff and our citizens, I welcome all of you to our beautiful City of
Salmon Arm and the 2022 SILGA conference. I am very pleased to show off our "small city with big
ideas" to everyone! Our small city has nearly 20,000 residents and we pride ourselves on our locally
owned shops, events, farmers markets, beautiful scenery and staying connected as a community.
In fact, to enhance our community connection, our team is currently working on reducing Salmon
Arm's carbon footprint one step at a time through development of network transportation systems
to connect our citizens to their destinations on foot, cycle, e-scooters and bikes, even kayak!
Along with workshops and presentations, this week will highlight lessons learned from Wildfires,
Feasible Infrastructure Projects, Climate change and Geohazard Risk Management. I am sure these
topics are of concern in your local municipalities as well.
Salmon Arm offers something for everyone and I strongly encourage each of you to look around and
explore as I guarantee you will find something special. If you love the water, visit the Wharf
downtown. If you love wine or craft beer, we have that too. Perhaps you need a little quiet time,
you can clear your head on the neatly groomed trails at Little Mountain Park.
On behalf of myself and my team, we hope you all enjoy your time here while we all reconnect in
person, share ideas, strengthen community bonds and discover new methods for all of us to grow
and establish stronger relationships.
I would like t^give special thanks to the organizing committee, presenters, and the staff at SILGA
fortheirwork on organizing, setting up, and hosting this great event.

T^
(lan Harrison
^

Mayor

250.803.4000
250.803.4041

500 - 2 Avenue NE; Box 40

cityhall@salmonarm.ca

Salmon Arm, BC VIE 4N2

www.salmonarm.ca
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Tuesday, April 26
12:30 pm – 4:00 pm

12:30 pm – 4:00 pm
1:30 pm

Salmon Arm BC

ALL TOGETHER NOW #SILGA2022
Prestige Harbourfront Resort
251 Harbourfront Drive NE , Salmon Arm, BC

Registration opens

(Prestige Harbourfront Resort, 251 Harbourfront Drive NE , Salmon Arm, BC)

Golf at Salmon Arm Golf Club – 9 holes, executive course

(3641 HWY 97B S, Salmon Arm, BC)

1. Big Moves in the Decade of Climate Action. BC Municipal Climate Leadership
Council and the Community Energy Association (2 hrs) Monashee
2. Procurement for Community Wellbeing: British Columbia Social
Procurement Initiative. (45 min) Rear of Ballroom

1:00 pm

Salmon Arm Fun Activities
1. Shuswap Cidery and Northyards Cider tours (busing provided)
2. Lawn bowling (691 28th St NE, Salmon Arm)

5:30 pm – 7:00 pm

Registration – Salmon Arm Legion (141 Hudson Ave NW, Salmon Arm)

5:30 pm –8:00 pm

Pub Grub Night – Salmon Arm Legion (141 Hudson Ave NW, Salmon Arm)
Sponsored by CAPP

Wednesday, April 27
7:00 am – 8:15 am

8:00 am – 12:00 pm
9:00 am – 4:30 pm
8:00 am
8:30 am
8:45 am
10:00 am - 10:15 am

Prestige Harbourfront Resort
251 Harbourfront Drive NE ,
Salmon Arm, BC

Full Breakfast
Registration continues (Prestige Harbourfront Resort)
Trade Show set up

Tours (meet at Prestige Harbourfront Resort for bus pick up)
1. Robotic Dairy Farm Tour (wear proper shoes and clothing)
2. Innovation Centre and Zest Food Hub Tour – Lana Fitt, Economic
Development Manager and Tracy Edwards, Facility Manager Zest Food Hub
3. Salmon Arm Art Gallery Tour Tracey Kutschker, Art Gallery Director
Nutrition Break – sponsored by CUPE

10:15 am – 10:50 am

Opening Ceremonies

10:50 am – 11:05 am

UBCM Address
Laurey-Anne Roodenburg, UBCM President

11:05 am – 12:00 am

How to Create a Healthy Organizational Culture and to Set the Stage for
Organizational Resilience and Psychological Safety

12:00 pm - 1:15 pm

Lunch on the Town (take out; eat at Salmar Theatre, 100 Hudson Ave NW)

1:15 pm – 1:25 pm

Trans Mountain Expansion Project Presentation

12:30 pm - 4:00 pm

Christina Benty

Trade show opens

Leah Caldow, Community Liaison

1:25 pm – 1:50 pm

The Diversified Multi-Asset Class Fund (DMAC)

1:50 pm – 2:40 pm

UBCM presentation – Review of the Resolution Process: input and feedback

2:40 pm – 2:55 pm

Nutrition Break – sponsored by CUPE

5:30 pm – 8:00 pm

Busing from hotels (Prestige/Fairfield Inn) to Welcome Reception

MFABC Peter Urbanc CEO
Introduction by Al Richmond, MFA Vice Chair
Laurey-Anne Roodenburg and Gary MacIsaac

2:55 pm – 4:30 pm

Resolutions

5:30 pm – 8:00 pm

Welcome Reception at Song Sparrow Hall (180 Lakeshore Dr NW)
Sponsored by Shaw Communications

2022 SILGA AGM & CONFERENCE

Thursday, April 28
continue

7:00 am – 8:15 am

Prestige Harbourfront Resort
251 Harbourfront Drive NE ,
Salmon Arm, BC

Full Breakfast

7:30 am – 8:05 am

Breakfast of Champions
BC Dairy Association, Association of Mineral Exploration

8:00 am – 3:30 pm

Trade Show Continues

8:15 am – 8:40 am

8:45 am – 8:50 am
Breakout Sessions

8:55 am – 9:50 am

Annual General Meeting Opens
President’s Report – Director Karla Kozakevich
Adoption of 2021 AGM Minutes
Business Arising from the Minutes
SILGA Financial Report –BDO Canada Angela Spencer

AGM Continues - Nomination Report including nominations from the floor
and speeches from candidates for Table Officers
Lori Mindnich, SILGA Past President
1. Risk and Crisis Communication: Lessons Learned from Wildfire Seasons
in BC (Monashee) Dr. Michael Mehta and Merieme Boutaib, Thompson Rivers
University
2. Turn ‘When’ into ‘Now’ - Making Infrastructure Projects Feasible
Ron Zink, Corix Utilities, Aleksi Makila, Chandos Construction and Ronan
Deane, North America Construction (Ballroom)
3. Climate Change and Health – Communities Moving Forward
through Mitigation, Adaptation and Resilience (back of ballroom)
Dr. Sue Pollock, Interim Chief Medical Health Officer and Heather
Deegan, Director of Population Health, IH
Sponsored by LGLA

9:50 am – 11:00 pm

Voting for Table Officers – if needed

10:05 am – 10:50 am

Emerging Issues with States of Emergency – James Yardley, Lidstone & Co

10:55 am – 11:45 am

Film Industry Panel
Jon Summerland, Okanagan Film Commissioner, Vicci Weller, TNRD Film
Commissioner, Morgen Matheson, CSRD Team Leader Tourism and Film and Peter
Cameron-Inglis, Film Producer

11:45 am – 12:45 pm

Lunch in the trade show

9:50 am – 10:05 am

Nutrition Break – sponsored by CUPE

10:50 am - 10:55 am

ETSI-BC presentation - Laurel Douglas, CAO

12:45 pm – 12:55 pm

AGM continues
1. Announcement of Table Officers election results
2. Nominations from the floor for Directors at Large
Lori Mindnich, Past President

2022 SILGA AGM & CONFERENCE

Thursday, April 28
continue

Prestige Harbourfront Resort
251 Harbourfront Drive NE ,
Salmon Arm, BC

12:55 pm – 1:05 pm

BCLC Presentation Greg Walker, Director Public Affairs

1:20 pm – 2:35 pm

Dreaming Our Future: Storytelling and Healing Our Way Forward

1:05 pm – 1:20 pm

AGM continues
Speeches for Directors at Large

Keynote Speaker Jesse Wente
Sponsored by TELUS

2:35 pm – 4:00 pm

Voting for Directors at Large

2:40 pm – 3:10 pm

Address from the Minister of Municipal Affairs Hon. Nathan Cullen
Sponsored by MFABC

3:10 pm – 3:25 pm

Community Excellence Awards Presentations

3:40 pm – 4:30 pm

Breakout Sessions
1. The Value of Cultural Mapping for Local Governments– Dr. Will Garrett
Petts, Cheryl Gladu, Sukh Heer Matonovich, and Kate Fagervik , Thompson Rivers
University (Ballroom)
2. Connecting Communities with an Integrated Approach to Geohazard Risk
Management. - Kris Holm, Principal Geoscientist BCG Engineering (Monashee)
3. Airport Service Development – Sam Samaddar, Kelowna International Airport
Manager (back of ballroom)

5:45 pm

Busing from Fairfield Inn to Prestige Harbourfront Resort

3:25 pm – 3:40 pm

Nutrition Break – sponsored by WoodWORKS! BC

6:00 pm – 6:30 pm

Cocktails, cash bar (in foyer/lobby)
50/50 draw – Shuswap Family Resource Centre

6:30 pm – 7:30 pm

Banquet – Prestige Harbourfront Resort (251 Harbourfront Drive NE)
Sponsored by FortisBC

7:30 pm – 7:35 pm

Reach for the Top finals

8:00 pm – 10:00 pm

Entertainment

8:00 pm – 10:00 pm

Draw for 50/50 – proceeds to the Shuswap Family Resource Centre

Busing back to the Fairfield Inn

2022 SILGA AGM & CONFERENCE

Friday, April 29
7:00 am – 8:20 am

Prestige Harbourfront Resort
251 Harbourfront Drive NE ,
Salmon Arm, BC

Full Breakfast

8:20 am – 8:30 am

Penticton MLA Dan Ashton Official Opposition Critic for Municipal Affairs

9:25 am – 9:30 am

Her Honour Janet Austin, Lieutenant Governor of BC

8:35 am – 9.25 am

Heat Domes, Atmospheric Rivers, Supply-chain Disruptions, Regulatory
Barriers, Surging Inflation, Pandemics: Why we need Radical Advances in
Community Food System Resiliency
Serena Caner, President Shuswap Food Action Society, Andrea Gunner, Agrologist and
Poultry Farmer, Brad DeMille, owner DeMille’s Farm Market and Bonnie Klohn with
Kamloops Food Policy Council

9:30 am – 9:35 am

Announcement of SILGA Directors At Large, Lori Mindnich, Past President

10:20 am – 10:30 am

Nutrition Break – sponsored by WoodWORKS! BC

9:35 am – 10:20 am

10:30 am – 10:55 am
10:55 am – 11:45 am

11:45 am – 11:50 am

High Tech Economic Development Business Panel
Chad Shipmaker, CAO Valid Manufacturing, Randy Spyksma, Forestry Planner
with Forsite Consultants, and Reid Findlay, SD 83 District Principal
Sponsored by COFI

Wildfire Risk Reduction: Lessons Learned from the Logan Lake/Tremont
Creek Wildfire
Garnet Mierau, Senior Planning Forester, Forsite Consultants
Attainable Housing – The Missing Middle
John McEown, Director with BC Housing, Kevin Pearson, Director of Development
Services with the City of Salmon Arm, Marina Jozipovic, Planner with Urban Matters,
Rod Ravenstein, Director with BC Assessment and Tom Calne, Partner with Fulcrum
Developments
Sponsored by Lidstone & Co.
SILGA President Address

11:50 am – 11:55 am

2023 Host – City of Vernon

11:55 am – 12:00 pm

Grand Prize Draw Salmon Arm Mayor Alan Harrison

12:00 pm

Convention closes

Mayor Victor Cumming
Sponsored by BC Hydro
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Dreaming Our Future: Storytelling and
Healing Our Way Forward
Keynote Speaker Jesse Wente
Thursday afternoon
In this exclusive talk, author, broadcaster, and arts leader
Jesse Wente explores the power of storytelling to heal
ourselves, each other, and our societies and how it informs
how we dream our future.
Jesse Wente is a husband and
father, as a writer, broadcaster,
speaker and arts administrator.
Born and raised in Toronto, his
family comes from Chicago and
Genaabaajing Anishinaabek and
he is a member of the Serpent
River First Nation. Jesse is best
known for more than two decades
spent as a columnist for CBC
Radio’s Metro Morning. An
outspoken
advocate
for
Indigenous rights and First Nations, Métis and Inuit art, he
has spoken at the International Forum of Indigenous
Peoples, Smithsonian’s National Museum of the American
Indian, the Cultural Summit of the Americas, and in 2020
delivered the Harold Innis Lecture for the University of
Toronto. Jesse has served on the board of directors of the
Toronto Arts Council, The ImagineNative Film and Media
Festival and Native Earth Performing Arts. In 2018, Jesse
was named the founding director of the Indigenous Screen
Office and in summer 2020 he was appointed Chair of the
Canada Council for the Arts. Jesse received the Arbor Award
from the University of Toronto in 2021 for his volunteer
contributions. His first book “Unreconciled: Family, Truth
and Indigenous Resistance” is a national bestseller and was
picked as one of best books of 2021 by Chapters-Indigo,
Apple Books and The Globe and Mail.

SPEAKERS&PANELS

Speakers & Tours
All Together Now!

Tuesday, April 26th

Preconference Activities and Tours
12.30 pm

Golf Salmon Arm Golf Course – Heritage Course
(9 holes) 3641 Hwy 97B S, Salmon Arm
Cost is $25. Transportation and equipment are not
provided.

1:00 pm to 4:00 pm

Cidery Tour - Shuswap Cider and
Northyards Cider (max 40) cost $55
Includes a flight of ciders at each location, snacks, and
transportation. Outside venues. Dress appropriately!

The 1920’s was the Golden Age of
the apple in the Shuswap. The
climate was ideal for orchardists,
with delicious apples in the
world. These apples have now
been transformed into unique
ciders, paired with other locally
produced fruits, just waiting for
you to enjoy their flavours!

1:00 pm to 2:30 pm
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Lawn bowling Cost $10

691 28th St NE, Salmon Arm - no transportation
provided (runners and masks mandatory)
Come explore lawn bowling – a sport similar to curling - in
which the objective is to roll balls
so that they stop close to a smaller
ball called a "jack". Get a thrill from
knocking your opponent’s ball out
of the way so you can make more
points. Teamwork is a must!

Tuesday, April 26th
Afternoon

Preconference Session
1:30 pm to 3:30 pm

Big Moves in the Decade of Climate Action
BC Municipal Climate Leadership Council and the
Community Energy Association
The heat dome, wildfires, floods and washouts, pest
infestations: all have been happening in BC and are evidence
of the “code red for humanity” that was issued by the UN
earlier this year in relation to climate change. But it’s easy
to say, “it’s time for change” and another thing entirely to
make it happen locally at the speed and scale necessary.
The BC Municipal Climate Leadership Council and the
Community Energy Association know that action related to
transportation, buildings, and waste will help reduce carbon
emissions during this ‘decade of climate action’. This session
will include:
• An exploration of the Province of BC’s CleanBC Roadmap
to 2030 and implications for local governments
• Information about the ‘Big Moves’ for local climate action
including top priorities right now and analysis of the
decade ahead
• Integration of a resilience and climate adaptation lens,
with region-specific content relevant to the Southern
Interior
• Facilitated discussions and interactive activities with
participants about their own experiences with policy,
planning, funding, communicating climate action, and
implementation
In this decade of climate action, we have no time to waste,
and we must learn from each other.

SPEAKERS&PANELS

Arjun Singh, Chair of the BC Municipal Climate
Leadership Council
The
BC
Municipal
Climate
Leadership Council is a group of
locally elected officials committed to
climate leadership. Through peer
learning, networking and resource
development, BCMCLC inspires and
engages other locally elected officials
around the province to scale up climate action and increase
collaboration between local governments and other
partners, such as the Province of BC and utilities.

Maya Chorobik, CEA Director of Climate Leadership

Maya supports local governments
with energy and emissions planning
and project implementation, as well
as education and capacity building for
staff and elected officials. Maya is the
facilitator for the BC Municipal
Climate
Leadership
Council
(BCMCLC), which provides education
and peer networking to locally
elected officials committed to climate action in their
communities. As part of this role, Maya coordinates the BC
Climate Leaders Playbook, a resource designed to inform and
support elected officials pursuing “big moves” in climate
action related to buildings, transportation, and waste.

Tami Rothery CEA Senior
Community Energy Manager

Tami is working in the areas of
building retrofits, low carbon
transportation,
organizational
leadership,
and
project
implementation. Tami has more than
15 years of experience advancing
climate action, including 5 years as Summerland’s inaugural
Sustainability / Alternative Energy Coordinator.

Preconference Session
1:30 pm to 2.15 pm

Procurement for Community Wellbeing:
British Columbia Social Procurement Initiative

Social procurement is a new best practice that governments
and anchor institutions can utilize to unlock additional social
value from existing purchasing. BCSPI is a member-based
initiative that provides the training, resources and coaching
that local governments and anchor institutions need to
mobilize their existing spending and create multiple
community benefits that support strategic goals and social
planning objectives.
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Karen Elliott, co-chair BCSPI

Karen Elliott was elected as Mayor of
the District of Squamish in October
2018 after serving as a member of
Squamish Council from 2014-2018.
Karen
served
as
the
first
Ombudsperson for Quest University
Canada. In addition, Karen has 15 years of consulting
experience as a specialist in organizational effectiveness
and leadership development.

Larry Berglund

Larry’s supply chain expertise includes
leadership positions in the forest
industry, public health care, municipal
government, university operations,
academia, and consulting services in the
private, public and non-profit sectors. He
was fundamental with drafting and
implementing the first ethical and sustainable procurement
policy in Canada for the City of Vancouver. Larry has
successfully integrated corporate social responsibility and
social procurement values into supply management
strategies and operations for many leading companies and
organizations.

Evening

5:30 pm to 8:00 pm

Pub Grub Night Salmon Arm Legion
141 Hudson Ave. NW (transportation not provided)
Take this opportunity to kick off
the convention and mingle with
your peers in a fun, relaxed
environment. Challenge your
colleagues to a game of pool or
darts or just get caught up on all
the news.
Sponsored by CAPP

SPEAKERS&PANELS

Wednesday, April 27th
Morning Tours 8:00 am – 10:00 am

Robotic Dairy Farm Tour - Bransma Farm
Hosts Phil Owen, Ralf Van Dalfsen and Henry Bremer
8:00 am (wear closed toed, flat shoes, bio booties
provided) 40 maximum
Experience the fresh air,
expansive fields, and sights of
an active dairy farm in Salmon
Arm. During a walk-though tour
hosted by the farmer himself,
you will learn about the crops
grown right on the farm, interact with a herd of Holstein
milking cows, and view the farm's state of the art robotic
milking barn.

Tour of the Innovation Centre and the
Zest Food Hub Lana Fitt and Tracy Edwards
8.30 am 30 maximum

Salmon
Arm
Economic
Development Society launched the
Salmon Arm Innovation Centre
Powered by SASCU in 2018. This
10,000sq ft, brightly coloured
building,
in
Salmon
Arm’s
downtown core is home to 19 coworking offices, as well as a community makerspace. The
vision of the Salmon Arm Innovation Centre pilot project is to
establish a “Salmon Arm built solution” to rural technology
sector growth, while creating a leading best practice example of
a self-sustaining, small community Innovation Centre.
Your host, Lana Fitt, is the Economic
Development Manager for Salmon Arm
Economic Development Society. Lana
holds an Ec.D designation in community
economic development from the
University of Waterloo. In addition to her
current non-profit position, she also has
several years’ experience working for local government.
The Zest Food Hub is the space
where
Salmon
Arm
entrepreneurs can turn their
culinary
inspirations
into
market-ready product. This food
hub offers a commercial kitchen
with a still-expanding array of equipment, a commercial
dishwasher as well as a separate cleaning and sanitization
area for anchor tenants, cold storage and a classroom, all of
which are available to encourage and support local food
processing and production.
Your host will be Tracy Edwards, facility manager.
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Salmon Arm Art Gallery

Host Tracey Kutschker, Director/Curator
(8:30 am) maximum 40

Salmon Arm Art Gallery is pleased
to present a community-focused
exhibition about the pollinators of
the Shuswap region. Twelve artists
plus a fibre arts collaborative group
feature a diverse range of art media
in this lively and educational
exhibition.

Pollinators play a key role in regulating ecosystem services
supporting food production, habitats and natural resources.
Pollinators are embedded in local cultures and traditions,
giving inspiration to art, music, literature, technology and
education. In recent decades, climate change and human
activities have altered the range, abundance and seasonal
activities of some wild pollinator species – bees, birds, bats
and butterflies. Simultaneously, environmental pollution has
degraded the natural habitats. Awareness and mitigation are
the first steps toward addressing this issue, and the arts can
provide a vehicle for this important message.

As Director/Curator at Salmon
Arm a balance of sunshine and
enough moisture so that no
irrigation was required. These
unique conditions created some of
the most
Arts Centre and Art Gallery, Tracey Kutschker has 20 years of
experience in a management role in the arts and culture
sector. A graduate of the University of Lethbridge, Tracey’s
liberal arts education gave her an excellent foundation in
which to advance the cultural agenda in her small city
through engagement, curatorial practice and relationshipbuilding. Through inter-disciplinary arts programs and
significant community collaborative art projects, Tracey has
been facilitating conversations to address gender inequities,
colonial systems, climate change and inclusivity. Her goals
have and always will be to further culture-led and artsinformed community development.

Wednesday, April 27th

Morning/Afternoon Speakers

Address by the President of UBCM

Laurey-Anne Roodenburg, Quesnel Councillor

SPEAKERS&PANELS

Laurey-Anne is pleased to be serving
as UBCM President for the current
year. She is a proud Quesnel citizen,
where she and her husband Herb
raised their two children.
Inspired by her community and
driven to further support economic
growth,
inclusion
and
communication, her passionate
voice has been recognized by her
colleagues and is appreciated by her constituents.
Throughout her time as an elected official Councillor
Roodenburg has held positions of leadership on various
committees and is an experienced City Council Member with
12+ years of service. She is also a board member with the
Business Improvement Areas of British Columbia (BIABC),

President of the Local Government Leadership Academy
(LGLA), and the past-president of the North Central Local
Government Association (NCLGA).
“As we move out of the pandemic era, Local Governments are
set to lead the way into economic recovery. When we are given
the tools, local government has the ability to move our
communities forward. We need to work together, as a
Province in all aspects of governance, including the harder
discussions around what Reconciliation looks like. We can do
this, and we will be a better province for it.",

How to create a healthy organizational
culture and to set the stage for
organizational resilience and psychological
safety - Christina Benty
Imagine an environment where people are open-minded,
collaborative, and have a team-oriented attitude with an
ability to think innovatively to resolve complex challenges.
Cultivating a culture like that requires leading with courage,
trust, vulnerability and phycological safety.

Amid a global pandemic with the threat of climate change,
service sustainability and a myriad of social issues, our
communities need courageous leaders who prioritize healthy
culture in their organizations. By inviting empathy, curiosity,
and humility to be in the room and then listening to what
arises, enables leaders to manage complexity and ambiguity
with courage and grace.
Let’s have a conversation about how to
cultivate the right culture!
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Christina Benty, MA is a strategist and a
human system change agent. She works
with leaders and organizations who
want to build a culture of excellence in an
environment that is kinder, wiser, and
more conscious. As a national speaker,
facilitator, published author, and a
performance coach for governing bodies
and senior management teams, she delivers intellectual
content with energy and enthusiasm.
Weaving both the art and science of leadership, check out
Christina’s TEDX Talk on Leadership below:
www.christinabenty.com
Leading from your soul, not your role | Christina Benty |
TEDxGastownWomen

Unlocking
the
Potential
of
Local
Government Reserves: MFA's options for
Socially Responsible and Long-Term
Investing Peter Urbanc, MFABC CEO

This session will discuss some innovative new investment
options the MFA has launched to support BC’s Local
Governments in achieving their investment goals.
We will review the MFA's newly launched long-term
investment product: the Diversified Multi-Asset Class Fund
(DMAC). This low-carbon footprint investment pool
introduces new asset classes never before available to BC’s
local governments. As such, Councils and Boards will require
education on the special nature of the fund to approve
updated investment policies prior to investing in the Fund.
The fund is only suitable for local government reserves that
are earmarked for future infrastructure projects with a time
horizon of 10 years or longer.
This presentation will also discuss “socially responsible
investing” and ESG considerations, both a growing topic of
interest for many local government boards and councils particularly as it pertains to investments that align with
climate change risks. We will discuss the challenges and
opportunities related to this emerging consideration.
Mr. Urbanc has 30 years of experience
in global banking and the public
sector, having worked as an
investment banker, treasurer and
executive officer. From 1990 to 2009,
he was an investment banker in New
York and London. In 2009, Peter
joined the Province of Nova Scotia’s Department of Finance
in Halifax as Executive Director and Treasurer. In January
2016, Mr. Urbanc took on the role of CEO with MFABC. Mr.
Urbanc holds a Bachelor of Commerce from McGill University
and an MBA from the J.L. Kellogg School of Management.
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Review of the Resolution Process: Input
and Feedback
UBCM President Laurey-Anne Roodenburg and
UBCM Executive Director Gary MacIsaac
UBCM is conducting a review of our resolutions process. An
important part of the review is engaging with our members to
hear what you have to say. We invite you to bring your ideas
and join us for a discussion on how the resolutions process can
be improved.
Laurey-Anne is pleased to be serving as
UBCM President for the current year.
She is a proud Quesnel citizen, where she
and her husband Herb raised their two
children.
Inspired by her community and driven to
further support economic growth,
inclusion and communication, her
passionate voice has been recognized by her colleagues and is
appreciated by her constituents. Throughout her time as an
elected official Councillor Roodenburg has held positions of
leadership on various committees and is an experienced City
Council Member with 12+ years of service.
Gary is the Executive Director of the Union
of British Columbia Municipalities – a
position he has held since 2007. Gary has
spent his entire career in local
government. He started his career as
Clerk-Treasurer of a small town in Nova
Scotia, spent five years in the City Clerks
Department with the City of Vancouver in
the mid-1990s, and spent 9 years as the
CAO for a county government in Nova Scotia. Gary has a
Masters Degree in Public Administration from Dalhousie
University.

Wednesday, April 27th
Evening
5:30pm to 7:30 pm

Welcome Reception
Song Sparrow Hall (180 Lakeshore Dr NW)

This unique hall brings people
together in an ecologicallyminded
creative
space
designed to feature music and
other creative productions,
The Hall is an inclusive and adaptable concert venue that
partners with community organizations in the Shuswap to
present vibrant cultural events.

Sponsored by Shaw Communications

Thursday, April 28th
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Morning Breakout Sessions

Risk and Crisis Communication: Lessons
Learned from Wildfire Seasons in BC
Dr. Michael Mehta and Merieme Boutaib
Mike and Merieme headed a study which looked at existing
risk communications and crisis communications models
being used by wildfire organizations. They came up with six
recommendations for communications opportunities before,
during and after wildfire events. The study also looked at the
impact of emergency events across agency jurisdictions.

Dr. Michael Mehta is Professor of
Geography and Environmental Studies at
Thompson
Rivers
University
in
Kamloops. He holds a joint appointment
in the Department of Sociology and
Anthropology. He is an environmental
social scientist who specializes in science,
technology and society with a focus on
environmental and health risk issues,
and he focuses on air pollution and solar energy.
Merieme Boutaib is a second year
Master of Science in environmental
science student at Thompson Rivers
University. She received her industrial
engineering
degree
from
Ecole
Supérieure des Industries du Textile et
de l’Habillement in Morocco, and she
accomplished her final project at
University of Alberta. She is currently a
teaching assistant of engineering student at Thompson
Rivers University.

Turn ‘When’ into ‘Now’ - Making
Infrastructure Projects Feasible

Ron Zink, Corix Utilities, Aleksi Makila, Chandos
Construction and Ronan Deane, North American
Construction
This panel offers a unique, comprehensive solution in
response to current trends towards increasing infrastructure
costs for water and wastewater utility upgrades and
expansions. Our solution combines financing, construction
and operations, utilizing the benefits of the most
collaborative form of project delivery coupled with the long
term thinking of finance operate and maintain.
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Ron Zink holds the position of Director, Financial
Development, and is a key member of the team tasked with
delivering growth in the Canadian market.
Ron has a varied 30+ year business
background, with a focus on Finance and
Business Development in both regulated
and non-regulated environments. He
holds a Diploma in Marketing, a Bachelor
Degree in Finance and Economics, and an
MBA with Finance and Corporate Accounting concentrations.
He has held various senior positions in both Canada and the
US and has served as a Project Manager and Finance Specialist
on multiple overseas assignments. His areas of expertise
include financial analysis, financial structuring, and contract
negotiation.
Aleksi has worked for Chandos
Construction for the past 7 years and
has helped lead the company’s
initiative on diversifying their work
stream into the infrastructure sector,
specifically water and wastewater
type projects. He works primarily
overseeing project teams executing civil related projects and
continuing business development efforts for the organization.
Over the course of Aleksi’s career he has worked on over 50
projects across Canada with involvement in the first three
water and wastewater infrastructure projects being delivered
through the Integrated Project Delivery model.
Aleksi has a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of Calgary.
Ronan is a passionate, relationshipfocused and dependable Senior Project
Manager with over 20 years of experience
managing both the development of teams
and the delivery phase of complex
infrastructure
and
civil
projects.
Commercially astute, with a holistic
approach to the management of clients, engineers, and
stakeholders, he has a successful track record in executing
construction on a variety of different projects. Ronan has
experience in managing work up to $300m on public and
private infrastructure projects including linear works, pump
stations, concrete packages, water/wastewater, structures,
bridge upgrades, food, and industrial projects. He has
managed multiple projects in parallel, developing
methodologies to ensure customer satisfaction. He is
innovative in providing workable engineering solutions
through value engineering and facilitating conflict resolution
to develop consensus among all parties of the project team.
Ronan is a Professional Engineer with a Bachelor Degree in
Mechanical Engineering.
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Climate Change and Health – Communities
Moving Forward through Mitigation,
Adaptation and Resilience
Dr. Sue Pollock, Interim Chief Medical Health Officer
and Heather Deegan, Director of Population Health
with Interior Health
Climate change is causing higher risk of health concerns from
seasonal impacts in our environment like drought, flooding,
wildfires and storms – affecting air quality, clean water and
food security, and insect-transmitted diseases. People who
face barriers to affordable housing, food security and health
care are at a disadvantage when climate crises arise. This
session will suggest ways how to continue collaboration with
local governments on:
• Raising awareness within collaborative relationships
• Mitigation – Strategic Community Energy & Emission
planning (SCEEPS)
• Adaptation – Heat Alert and Response System (HARS)
• planning, climate change and adaptation plans, policy
considerations for community approaches

•

Resilience – Increasing social connection, improved
planning, and infrastructure
Sue Pollock is the Interim Chief
Medical Health Officer with
Interior Health. She currently
leads a team of public health
physicians and public health
practitioners, responsible for the
health and wellness of persons
living in the Southern Interior.
Prior to joining Interior Health, Sue worked for the Public
Health Agency of Canada, including two years as a Field
Epidemiologist (“disease detective”) studying One Health, the
intersection of human, animal and environment health. Sue is
a Fellow of the Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons of
Canada and holds a MD from the University of Calgary and a
MSc from the University of Toronto. Sue has a longstanding
interest in mitigating the health impacts of climate change
and trained as a Climate Reality Leaders with former US Vice
President Al Gore.
Heather Deegan is a Director of
Population Health with Interior
Health. She leads teams that promote
health and prevent disease through
their work with communities and
families. Program staff work with
local
governments
to
create
conditions in communities wherein
people can be healthier. Collaboration with urban planners
and other partners in the community enables the health lens
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to be applied to planning processes and policy decision.
Heather began her career as a clinical dietitian, but after
completing a Masters degree with a focus on population
health assessment, she knew she would never return to the
hospital environment. She has been working in public health
for 24 years and has recently taken a focus on the intersecting
fields of public health and climate change.
Morning Plenary Sessions

Emerging Issues with States of Emergency
James Yardley, Lidstone & Co.
Following a year in which local and provincial states of
emergency have been declared on numerous occasions, a
number of issues have arisen, and lessons have been learned.
This presentation will provide an overview of some of these
issues including whether there are limits to what is an
emergency and how long it can last, issues to address during
and after declarations of emergency, and liability to local
governments exercising emergency powers.
James’ practice mainly involves
litigation and dispute resolution,
although he also provides advice
on a broad variety of local
government matters. James has
practised law involving local
governments since his call to the
Bar in 1991. He was born and raised in Prince George, has a
law degree from the University of Toronto, and a Masters
degree in Community and Regional Planning from UBC.

Film Industry Panel

Vicci Weller, TNRD Film Commission, Jon
Summerland, Okanagan Film Commission, Morgen
Matheson, CSRD Team Leader Tourism and Film
and Peter Cameron Inglis, Kamloops Film Producer
This panel will discuss what film commissions do, how they
provide economic benefits to their communities and what the
role of local governments are to promote this industry.
Victoria Weller began her career as
an Equity Stage Manager in western
Canada and later obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree majoring in
Theatre and Literature. Ms. Weller
worked in the film industry in Los
Angeles for 13 years. Her first job in
Los Angeles was in music video production for Capital
Records. Upon leaving there, she worked freelance in the film
industry in the capacity of Craft Services, Caterer, Production
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Assistant, Production Coordinator, 2nd Assistant Director,
1st Assistant Director, Casting Director, Production Manager
and Line Producer. As the producer for a small production
company, she produced promos for prime time TV shows for

networks such as ABC, NBC, Fox and USA. She also produced
infomercials, music videos and commercials. As a teacher,
Vicci taught music video and film production courses at
U.C.L.A, and Thompson Rivers University. In 2000, she
became the Film Commissioner for the Thompson-Nicola
Regional District Film Commission in Kamloops, BC. As well,
she completed her Master of Arts in Tourism Management at
Royal Roads University. Her research explored Best Practices
in Fostering Film Tourism in Rural BC. Currently she is
finishing the Provincial Instructor’s Diploma.

In his role as Film Commissioner
for
the
Okanagan,
Jon
Summerland is responsible for
attracting film and television
productions to the OkanaganSimilkameen-Boundary region.
Mr. Summerland has over 29
years experience in the film industry within British Columbia.
His knowledge has amounted to a large resume of experience
both in the way of industry contacts who speak highly of his
professionalism and his familiarity with high stress
circumstances that often amount to very memorable
achievements displayed in the film production world.
Morgen Matheson is relatively
new to the industry, having
moved to the Shuswap from the
Lower Mainland approximately
three years ago. With a strong
marketing background she and is
excited to develop this industry in
the Shuswap region.

Peter Cameron-Inglis is a
filmmaker, producer, and the
owner of Mastermind Studios, a
20,000 square foot film studio
facility in Kamloops, BC. Peter's
background also includes twenty
years in the high-tech sector
where he has been instrumental in
economic development for the BC Interior through his
businesses and roles on several association boards. In 2008
Peter successfully sold his last tech company to Quebecor /
Sun Media. Peter runs a studio facility that serves the film
industry and business community in the BC Interior. His goal
in creating Mastermind Studios since 2010 has been to create
long-term sustainable employment in the BC Interior through
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attracting and retaining larger budget motion-picture
productions and television series which in turn create higherwage crew positions and experiential learning opportunities
for large numbers of people to work as film and television
crew members.

Thursday, April 28th
Afternoon Sessions

Address by the Minister of Municipal
Affairs, Hon. Nathan Cullen
Nathan Cullen was elected MLA for Stikine
in the 2020 provincial general election and
is Minister of State for Lands and Natural
Resource Operations. He is the Chair of the
Environment and Land Use Committee and
a member of the Cabinet Committee on
Economy.

Nathan proudly served as Member of Parliament for the riding
of Skeena-Bulkley Valley for 15 years, from 2004 to 2019.
During his time in Ottawa, Nathan was named a
Parliamentarian of the Year multiple times, served as Official
Opposition House Leader, and held opposition critic roles for
Finance, Ethics, Environment, and Democratic Reform.
Nathan has worked to encourage the participation of young
people in politics, the creation of new laws, and has supported
young entrepreneurs in the Northwest in starting and
growing their businesses.
He lives with his family in Smithers.

Thursday, April 28th

Afternoon Breakout Sessions

The Value of Cultural Mapping for Local
Governments
Dr. Will Garrett-Petts, TRU Professor, Cheryl Gladu,
Researcher in Residence, TRU Sukh Heer
Matonovich, Director of Student Research and
Public Engagement and Kate Fagervik, Learning
Strategist, TRU
As cultural planning has become more established in local
governments and as culture has become more integrated
within broader strategic development and planning
initiatives, there has been growing pressure to identify,
quantify, and geographically locate cultural assets (such as
facilities, organizations, public art, heritage, and so forth) so
that they can be considered in multi-sectoral decision-making
and planning contexts. This activity has been propelled, on
one hand, by rising attention to place promotion in the context
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of tourism and the (often related) attraction of investors and
skilled workers. On the other hand, it also has included
participative initiatives regarding community development
and the improvement of quality of life in, for example,
neighbourhoods or other target areas. Altogether, these
considerations have given rise to a municipal cultural
mapping framework with three-fold purposes: to build a
knowledge base, to mobilize community collaboration, and to
strategize or make decisions.

Dr. Will Garrett-Petts

Dr. Will Garrett-Petts is
Professor and Associate
Vice-President of Research
and Graduate Studies at
Thompson
Rivers
University. He is former
Research Director of the Small Cities Community-University
Research Alliance—a national research program exploring
the cultural future of smaller communities. His recent books
include Artistic Approaches to Cultural Mapping; Cultural
Mapping as Cultural Inquiry; Whose Culture is it, Anyway?
Community Engagement in Small Cities; and The Small Cities
Book: On the Cultural Future of Small Cities.

Connecting Communities with an Integrated
Approach to Geohazard Risk Management
Kris Holm, Principal Geoscientist, BCG Engineering
Mountainous areas of BC are subject to floods and landslides
that can damage property, sever infrastructure, and in tragic
cases, cause life loss. The unprecedent wildfire and
hydroclimatic events in BC during 2021 have kept these
issues at the forefront of public concern and highlight the
need for coordinated approaches to managing risk.

In this workshop, Kris will share recent examples of
integrated flood and steep creek geohazards management in
BC and facilitate a conversation with authorities with
different responsibilities but shared needs to manage risk.
The workshop objective is to identify one to three shared
priorities that, when advanced by elected officials, create a
stronger path to risk reduction for communities than single
jurisdictions may accomplish in isolation. Workshop
outcomes will also inform actions by practitioners working to
integrate geohazards management in BC.
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Kris Holm M.Sc., P.Geo., leads BGC
Engineering’s Communities Sector
Team and has 25 years of North
and South America consulting
experience in geohazard and risk
management for the Mining,
Transportation and Communities
sectors. His practice spans multihazard risk management at scales ranging from single sites to
broad regions, including quantitative risk assessment,
evaluation of mitigation options, public consultation, and
policy integration. Mr. Holm has also led the development of
web applications used by decision makers to incorporate
geohazards knowledge into planning and policy and directed
integrated flood and steep creek geohazard studies for BC
communities that received a 2021 Award of Merit from the
Association of Consulting Engineers Canada (BC). He is
actively involved in several projects supporting recovery
efforts for local government and First Nations communities
affected by 2021 wildfires and floods.

Airport Service Development
Sam Samaddar, Airport
International Airport

Director,

Kelowna

Do you ever wonder how air service is developed? Air service
development is the practice of retaining and/or establishing
air service to a given airport or community. Air service
development is a community effort, not just an airport effort.
When stakeholders understand and are on board with air
service development efforts, the chance of success is much
higher. Air service development is usually an ongoing effort to
retain as well as pursue additional service.”
Sam’s interest in aviation developed
early when he was involved with the
Royal Canadian Air Cadets and
achieved his private pilot’s license at
the age of 17.
In 1988 he commenced his airport
career at Vancouver International
Airport where he held several
positions including Airport Duty
Manager and Superintendent of Ground Transportation.
In July 2008 Sam was appointed the Airport Director for the
Kelowna International Airport – one of the top ten airports in
Canada serving just over 2 million passengers in 2019. As
Airport Director Sam currently is a board member of Tourism
Kelowna and the International Association of Airport
Executives. He is also the current Chair of Airports Council
International North America and a former Chair of the
Canadian Airports Council.

Evening
6 pm to 11:00 pm

Banquet
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Prestige Harbourfront Resort (251 Harbourfront Drive
NE , Salmon Arm, BC)
Sponsored by FortisBC
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Friday, April 29th
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Morning Speakers

Heat Domes, Atmospheric Rivers,
Supply-chain Disruptions, Regulatory
Barriers, Surging Inflation, Pandemics:
Why we need Radical Advances in
Community Food System Resiliency.

Serena Caner, President Shuswap Food Action
Society, Andrea Gunner, agrologist and farmer,
Brad DeMille, Owner of DeMille’s Farm Market and
Bonnie Klohn with the Kamloops Food Policy
Council
The events of the past two years have been decades in the
making but are now at an urgent stage causing social
disruption and worsening conditions for vulnerable
populations. It is imperative that local governments rise to
the challenge, act now, and begin large-scale projects to
support transition to a more regional and resilient food
system.
Serena Caner is Executive Director
of Shuswap Food Action Society as
well as a Community Animator for
Farm to School BC, a program of the
Public Health Association of BC. She
has a Bachelor of Science in Food,
Nutrition and Health from UBC and
is a registered dietitian. She lives
and works on the traditional,
ancestral and unceded land of the Secwepemc Peoples and
feels hope in the idea of decolonizing our relationship to food
and land.
Andrea Gunner is a professional
agrologist with thirty years’
experience in business planning,
agricultural
marketing
and
agricultural economics.
Andrea has been involved in a
number of projects connecting
agricultural
producers
with
consumers in sustainable and economically viable systems.
She has worked in farm business management, market and
economic research for individual farm clients, producer cooperatives, farmers markets, first nations, industry
associations and government at the municipal, provincial and
federal levels.
Andrea is an active community leader as a board
member/chair of Farm Folk City Folk, the Southern Interior
Soil Health Association, TRU Applied Sustainable Ranching
Advisory, Armstrong Food Initiative Society, Friends of Rose
Swanson, Township of Spallumcheen Agriculture Standing
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Committee and Township of Spallumcheen Select Committee
on Forestry. Andrea is also active with a variety of climate
activist groups in the North Okanagan Shuswap region.
Together with her husband, they run a certified organic,
pastured poultry operation raising roasting chickens and
turkeys on a small acreage in the North Okanagan.
They have developed a network of satellite farms practicing
intensive rotational grazing and a a provincially licensed
poultry processing facility with an integrated butcher facility.

Brad is co-owner of DeMilles Farm
Market, a tourist destination and grocery
store that carries products from over 150
local, BC and Canadian farmers and food
producers. He has been involved in the
food production and processing industry
for over 50 years and is passionate about
the importance of strong regional food
systems to community resilience and
prosperity.
Bonnie Klohn is a 5th generation Kamloops resident with
Scottish and English ancestors who came to Secwepemcul'ecw
in 1907. Bonnie is a graduate of Thompson Rivers University
(BIS) and Concordia University (MA) with a background in
community planning. She worked as a consultant at Urban
Systems for several years, and currently splits her time
between the Kamloops
Food Policy Council and
Tapestry Evaluation and
Strategy. She has been
involved in food systems
research, fundraising, and
agriculture
and
food
planning since 2007, with
a particular focus on municipal policy that supports
regenerative and local food systems.
In her spare time she attends to her garden and urban micro
livestock: chickens, rabbits and bees. She is also a hide tanner
and enjoys working with local sheep farmers and hunters to
create local textiles, rugs and leather.

Lieutenant Governor Janet Austin

The Honourable Janet Austin was
sworn-in as the 30th Lieutenant
Governor of British Columbia on April
24, 2018. Prior to this appointment, she
spent 15 years as Chief Executive
Officer of YWCA Metro Vancouver, one
of the province’s largest and most
diversified non-profits. There she
oversaw operations delivering services
to tens of thousands of people annually
at more than 40 locations. Raised in
Alberta, Her Honour spent her early career in public sector
roles in Calgary, working in regional planning and public
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consultation and communications for the provincial
government. She eventually moved to British Columbia,
where she began working with BC Housing and discovered
her passion and aptitude for public office. Prior to joining the
YWCA, Her Honour served as Executive Director of Big Sisters
of BC Lower Mainland, and actively volunteered for many
organizations in commitment to helping improve the lives of
others, as well as serving on various boards ranging from
Translink to the Women’s Health Research Institute. Her
Honour is Chancellor of the Order of British Columbia and
was invested as a Member of the Order in 2016. As Lieutenant
Governor, she has identified three key themes for her
mandate: the promotion of diversity and inclusion,
democracy and civic engagement, and Reconciliation.

High Tech Business Development Panel

Chad Shipmaker, CAO Valid Manufacturing, Randy
Spyksma, Forestry Planner, Forsite Consultants,
and Reid Findlay, SD #83 District Principal
Sponsored by COFI
Key to the success of high tech companies is the ability to
attract talent that will enhance business productivity and
contribute to the talent within organizations. Municipal
governments have a key role to play in both creating livable
communities and supporting information technology
infrastructure.
The key components of supporting or
facilitating livable communities include 1) housing
diversity/affordability and 2) community fabric and culture.

School District No.83 has a rich history of working with the
Salmon Arm Economic Development Society (SAEDS) to
showcase our local technology companies in something we
call our "Tech Meet Up". This year we have thirteen local tech
companies committed to this hands-on showcase, as well as
post-secondary institutes, the Industry Training Authority,
and other participating vendors. Reid will highlight two key
initiatives with Okanagan College that addresses the question
of how to encourage students to consider the high tech field.

Randy Spyksma is a Registered
Professional Forester and Senior
Planner with Forsite Consultants Ltd.
and is based in Salmon Arm.
He is
currently a member of Forsite’s
Leadership Group and coordinates the
company’s
Wildfire
Management
Services Team. Born and raised on
Vancouver Island, he started is forestry
career in the Cariboo, moving to the Shuswap in the year
2000. Since that time he has continued to provide strategic
planning support to government, indigenous and forest
sector clients across Western Canada, helping them grapple
with watershed and wildfire risk. He is also on the Board
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with the BC Community Forest Association and a strong
advocate for community involvement in forest management.

Reid Findlay is the District Principal of
Careers & The MyEd Project Lead
(MyEd is the student data management
system).
Working closely with our
community
and
post-secondary
training partners, Reid and the team he
leads help many students find their
path to their future beyond the K-12
system. Reid has worked as a principal at J.L. Jackson Jr.
Secondary, North Shuswap Elementary, Len Wood Middle
School, and Salmon Arm Secondary over his 20 years in this
district. During those years, Reid completed his M.Ed through
the University of Calgary in 2004 with a specialization in
Educational Leadership.

Wildfire Risk Reduction: Lessons Learned
from the Logan Lake/Tremont Wildfire
Garnet Mierau, RFP with Forsite Consultants

The 2021 Wildfire season was another impactful year and the
District of Logan Lake and their Community Forest were not
spared from the experience. Garnet will share key insights
from having their community and their community forest
prepared for the Tremont Wildfire. He will also touch on the
importance of long term relationships with strategic partners
like the BC Wildfire Service.
Garnet Mierau, registered professional
forester, has worked with the District of
Logan Lake since 2014 supporting their
FireSmart/ wildfire risk reduction
program and is part of the management
team for their community forest.
Garnet has over 30 years of experience
in forest management in British Columbia and he leads teams
of practice that include services in wildfire, visual resource,
and tenure management as well as strategic planning.
Garnet also serves as 75th President of the Association of BC
Forest Professionals where he strives to advance the
profession in the interests of the public.

Attainable Housing – The Missing Middle

John McEown, Director, Regional Development with
BC Housing, Kevin Pearson, Director of
Development Services with City of Salmon Arm,
Marina Jozipovic, Planner with Urban Matters, Rod
Ravenstein, Director with BC Assessment and Tom
Calne, Partner/Builder with Fulcrum Developments
Sponsored by Lidstone & Co.
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The presenters will address a variety of issues:
• Provincial/Southern Interior/local market forces
and trends
• Salmon Arm’s housing strategy, plans and bylaws
and processes
• Successes and challenges of provincial housing
projects
• Bill 26 context and reflections on challenges in the
development approvals process and efforts to make
it less adversarial
• Potential benefits of a pre-zoning approach to gently
densify targeted single-family neighbourhoods and
examples from a few BC communities
• From a builder’s standpoint, land supply and
demand, taxes, fees, DCCs and building regulations

John Brendan (JB) McEown has
extensive experience in the
provision of affordable housing
in BC. Having worked on
affordable housing
projects
across the housing continuum
and spent over 6 years in a variety of roles at BC Housing,
John brings a strong understanding of the challenges and
opportunities within the delivery of affordable housing.
Currently, John oversees BC Housing's Development team for
the Interior region. John has Bachelor of Arts and Science
with distinction in Urban Planning and Land Economics from
Quest University Canada and holds a Master of Urban Studies
from Simon Fraser University with a focus on MixedUse/Income Development in B.C.

Marina Jozipovic draws from
planning and social innovation
theory and practice to support
communities in improving equity
and well-being in housing. As a
facilitator, she works to create
spaces
where
difficult,
yet
meaningful conversations about housing are possible. As a
planner, she brings together community voices, data, and
evidence-based
policy and practice to support decision-making. She has
worked with all levels of government, as well as the nonprofit and private sectors. Marina has led and been involved
in several large and complex engagement processes on
housing, including the Balanced Housing Lab which focused
on housing solutions for middle-income earners. She has
completed numerous provincially mandated Housing Needs
Reports, as well as housing plans for both First Nations and
municipalities, and has a strong understanding of BC’s
housing system and the challenges facing households in
diverse communities.
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Marina has a Master of Environmental Studies in Planning
from the University of Waterloo. She is based in Vancouver.

Kevin Pearson is the Director of
Development Services with the City
of Salmon Arm since 2014. He is a
Registered Planner with PIBC with
interests in current and long range
land use planning, urban design and
development, Kevin completed a
double major is Geography and
Urban Studies at SFU, has a Diploma in Geographical
Information Systems as well as a Diploma in Local
Government Administration.

Accredited by the Appraisal
Institute of Canada, Rod
Ravenstein
has
extensive
experience
with
property
valuation, having held a variety
of appraisal and leadership roles
at BC Assessment since 1996. He’s currently the Director,
Local Governments & Indigenous Relations with BCA. A
resident of Cranbrook, he has spent his life enjoying all that
small city BC has to offer. Over the years he’s seen all sides of
real estate beyond his role with BC Assessment; he’s been a
tenant, owner, landlord, investor, and more recently, watched
as his three grown kids have experienced the challenges of
buying their first home in this market.
Tom Calne is the incoming president of
the CHBA Central Interior. With over 25
years in the construction industry, he is
a partner of Fulcrum Developments in
Kamloops,
BC—specializing
in
residential construction. Tom has been
serving on the CHBA Central Interior
board since 2013 and is the Chair of
Government Relation Committee since
2014.

The Southern Interior Local Government
Association would like to thank their sponsors
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Village of Lumby
District of Sicamous
District of Sicamous
City of Vernon
Village of Ashcroft
District of Barriere
Legislative Assembly of British Columbia
District of Lake Country
Township of Spallumcheen
Shaw Communications
District of Summerland
City of Kamloops
District of Logan Lake
Town of Osoyoos
British Columbia Social Procurement Initiative (BCSPI)
Canada Post
District of Clearwater
City of Penticton
District of Summerland
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Columbia Shuswap Regional District
City of Merritt
Association for Mineral Exploration (AME)
District of Sicamous
Trans Mountain
City of Salmon Arm
Regional District of Central Okanagan
City of Enderby
City of Revelstoke
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City of Merritt
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Village of Cache Creek
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Village of Chase
TELUS
City of Vernon
NAC Constructors
Interior Health Authority
Regional District of North Okanagan
Squamish-Lillooet Regional District
Columbia Shuswap Regional District
District of Lillooet
Thompson Okanagan Tourism Association
Trans Mountain Expansion Project
ETSI-BC
City of Armstrong
City of Kamloops
City of Vernon
Corporation of the Village of Ashcroft
City of Salmon Arm
Town of Princeton
District of Squamish
Shaw Communications Inc.
City of Merritt
Regional District of North Okanagan
City of West Kelowna
Village of Lumby
City of Salmon Arm
District of Peachland
City of Armstrong
Corix Utilities
Township of Spallumcheen
City of Armstrong
District of Lake Country
District of Lake Country
Thompson-Nicola Regional District
Thompson-Nicola Regional District
Town of Oliver
TELUS Communications
City of Salmon Arm
Thompson Nicola Regional District
Village of Keremeos
District of Lillooet
District of Coldstream
City of Kamloops

Mayor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
MLA
Mayor
Councillor
Sr. Account Executive
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Service Delivery Partner
Manager, Government and Community Affairs (B.C.)
Mayor
Councillor
Mayor
Councillor
Area B Director
Mayor
Director, Regulatory and Technical Policy
Councillor
Community Liaison - Coquihalla - Hope and BC Interior
City Councillor
Area Director, Central Okanagan West
Councillor
Councillor
Energy Solutions Manager
Mayor
Councillor
Appraiser II
Tobacco Reduction Coordinator
Councillor
Chief Administrative Officer
Mayor
Mayor
General Manager
Mayor
Senior Project Development Manager
Director of Population Health
RDNO Director, Electoral Area "F"
Electoral Area Director
Director Area C
Chief Administrative Officer
Destination Development Contractor
Community Liaison
CEO
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Chief Administrative Officer
City Councillor
Councillor
Mayor
Government Relations Director, B.C.
Councillor
RDNO Director, Electoral Area "D"
Councillor
Councillor
City Councillor
Mayor
Councillor
Director, Business Development
Mayor
Councillor
Councillor
CAO
TNRD Chair
Director
Councillor
Manager - Rural Connectivity & Local Goverments
Mayor
Chief Administrative Officer
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

kevin.5@live.ca
rairey@sicamous.ca
canderson@sicamous.ca
sanderson@vernon.ca
janstett@ashcroftbc.ca
janger6417@hotmail.com
dan.ashton.mla@leg.bc.ca
baker@lakecountry.bc.ca
john.bakker@spallumcheentwp.bc.ca
bill.barber@sjrb.ca
rbarkwill@summerland.ca
dbass@kamloops.ca
bmarion@loganlake.ca
mbennett@osoyoos.ca
lberglund@prezplus.com
benjamin.berman@canadapost.ca
mblackwell@docbc.ca
julius.bloomfield@penticton.ca
mayor@summerland.ca
pbritton@cityofarmstrong.bc.ca
director.b@csrd.bc.ca
lbrown@merritt.ca
jbuchanan@amebc.ca
gbushell@sicamous.ca
leah_caldow@transmountain.com
dcannon@salmonarm.ca
wayne.carson@rdco.com
casebrad@telus.net
ncherlet@revelstoke.ca
Marilyn.Christensen@fortisbc.com
mayor@kamloops.ca
kchristopherson@merritt.ca
james.clark@bcassessment.ca
jeff.conners@interiorhealth.ca
wcoomber@cachecreek.ca
cao@cachecreek.ca
scoyne@princeton.ca
rod.crowe@chasebc.ca
jeff.cruickshank@telus.com
mayor@vernon.ca
rdeane@nacsworld.com
heather.deegan@interiorhealth.ca
denis.delisle@rdno.ca
saldemare27@gmail.com
pdemenok@csrd.bc.ca
cao@lillooet.ca
bevdesantis@gmail.com
jasmine_devick@transmountain.com
laurel@etsi-bc.ca
sdrapala@cityofarmstrong.bc.ca
ddudy@kamloops.ca
tdurning@vernon.ca
cao@ashcroftbc.ca
celiason@salmonarm.ca
gelliott@princeton.ca
kelliott@squamish.ca
kiersten.enemark@sjrb.ca
aetchart@merritt.ca
rick.fairbairn@rdno.ca
doug.findlater@westkelownacity.ca
councillorloreleif@lumby.ca
kflynn@salmonarm.ca
mayorfortin@peachland.ca
sfowler@cityofarmstrong.bc.ca
Franca.petrucci@Corix.com
christine.fraser@spallumcheentwp.bc.ca
gfroats@cityofarmstrong.bc.ca
gambell@lakecountry.bc.ca
tgarost@lakecountry.bc.ca
director.kgillis@tnrd.ca
herbgraham@telus.net
agrice@oliver.ca
brian.grunert@telus.com
aharrison@salmonarm.ca
shildebrand@tnrd.ca
aholley@keremeos.ca
lhopfl@lillooet.ca
rhoyte@coldstream.ca
shunter@kamloops.ca

Blair
Mark
Martin
Tom
Rob
Sherry
Jim
Sandi
Karla
David
Alison
Tim
Jennifer
Mike
Sylvia
Dawn
Tony
Gary
Malcolm
Jeff
Shelley
Rhona
Matt
Todd
Sue
SIlvina
Lori
Chelsea
Sandra
Ron
Mike
Tanya
Randal
Tim
Evan
Bob
Mark
Susan
Chris
Sue
Gerry
Stephen
Al
Kiran
Rod
Frank
Daniella
Steven
Al
Janelle
Caroline
Barbara
Laurey-Anne
Curtis
Roly
Terry
Fatemeh
Bill
Bill
Carol
Brian
Steven
Judy
Dag
Amanda
Jay
Arjun
Robin
Al
Sean
Ward
Graham
Gary
Susan
Rene
Peter
John
Fred
Deb
Peter
Brianna

Ireland
Jiles
Johansen
Kadla
Kerslake
Kineshanko
King
Kowalyshyn
Kozakevich
Laird
Lauzon
Lavery
Leach
Lee
Lindgren
Low
Luck
MacIsaac
Makayev
Mallmes
Martens
Martin
Mason
McKenzie
McKortoff
Mema
Mindnich
Mossey
Newvine
Obirek
O'Reilly
Osborne
Ostafichuk
Palmer
Parliament
Payette
Pendergraft
Peters
Pieper
Pollock
Popoff
Quinn
Raine
Ramsay
Ravenstein
Regehr
Reid
Rice
Richmond
Rimell
Robinson
Roden
Roodenburg
Rowe
Russell
Rysz
Sabet
Sarai
Scarrow
Schaffer
Schreiner
Scott
Sentes
Sharman
Shatzko
Simpson
Singh
Smith
Smith
Smith
Stamer
Statt
Sulz
Swan
Talbot
ter Weeme
Thomas
Torbohm
Tuohey
Urbanc
Ure

District of Lake Country
Bluestone Government Relations
Town of Oliver
Village of Lumby
District of Barriere
Village of Lumby
Town of Osoyoos
TELUS
RDOS
Thompson-Nicola Regional District
Village of Chase
City of Salmon Arm
District of Lillooet
Canada Post
Salmon Arm
City of Armstrong
City of Merritt
Union of BC Municipalities
District of Sicamous
District of Sicamous
FortisBC
CSRD
FortisBC
District of Lake Country
Town of Osoyoos
Interior Health
Village of Lumby
BC Transit
BCLC - British Columbia Lottery Corporation
RDOS
City of Kamloops
Interior Health
Village of Lumby
City of Revelstoke
District of Sicamous
District of Barriere
RDOS
Village of Cache Creek
City of Armstrong
Interior Health
Township of Spallumcheen
Thompson-Nicola Regional District
Sun Peaks Resort Muncipality
Valleyview Secondary School
BC Assessment
City of Penticton
BC Dairy Association
Thompson-Nicola Regional District
Regional District of Cariboo
Interior Health Authority
ICBC
Village of Ashcroft
Union of BC Municipalities
Rogers Communications
Ministry of Jobs, Economic Recovery and Innovation
District of Sicamous
Interior Health Authority
City of Kamloops
District of Lake Country
Thompson-Nicola Regional District
City of Enderby
Village of Chase
City of Penticton
BC Hydro
RDNO
CSRD Area F
City of Kamloops
District of Logan Lake
District of Logan Lake
City of Merritt
District of Barriere
District of Summerland
City of Revelstoke
Village of Clinton
Columbia Shuswap Regional District
BCLC - British Columbia Lottery Corporation
District of Clearwater
Village of Chase
Village of Ashcroft
Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia
FortisBC

Councillor
ireland@lakecountry.bc.ca
Government Affairs
mark@jiles.ca
Mayor
mjohansen@oliver.ca
CAO
tomk@lumby.ca
Councillor
rkerslake@barriere.ca
Councillor
councillorsherryk@lumby.ca
Councillor
jking@osoyoos.ca
Senior Regional Marketing Manager
sandi.kowalyshyn@telus.com
RDOS Area
kkozakevich@rdos.bc.ca
Director
director.dlaird@tnrd.ca
Councillor
alison.lauzon@chasebc.ca
City Councillor
tlavery@salmonarm.ca
Councillor
jleach@lillooet.ca
Manager, Government and Community Affairs
mike.lee@canadapost.ca
Councillor
slindgren@salmonarm.ca
CAO
dlow@cityofarmstrong.bc.ca
Councillor
tluck@merritt.ca
Executive Director
gmacisaac@ubcm.ca
Councillor
mmakayev@sicamous.ca
Councillor
jmallmes@sicamous.ca
Community & Indigenous Relations Manager
shelley.martens@fortisbc.com
Director Area E
rmartin@csrd.bc.ca
Community & Indigenous Relations Manager
matt.mason@fortisbc.com
Councillor
mckenzie@lakecountry.bc.ca
Mayor
smckortoff@osoyoos.ca
Medical Health Officer
silvina.mema@interiorhealth.ca
Councillor
lorideann2@gmail.com
cmossey@bctransit.com
Senior Manager, Government Relations
Specialist, Stakeholder Engagement
snewvine@bclc.com
RDOS Area
robirek@rdos.bc.ca
Councillor
moreilly@kamloops.ca
Community Health Facilitator
tanya.osborne@interiorhealth.ca
Councillor
councillorrandalo@lumby.ca
Councillor
tpalmer@revelstoke.ca
Town Manager
eparliament@sicamous.ca
CAO
bpayette@barriere.ca
RDOS Chair, RDOS Area
mpendergraft@rdos.bc.ca
Councillor
speters@cachecreek.ca
Mayor
mayor@cityofarmstrong.bc.ca
Interim Medical Health Officer
sue.pollock@interiorhealth.ca
Councillor
gerry.popoff@spallumcheentwp.bc.ca
Director
director.squinn@tnrd.ca
Mayor
alraine@telus.net
Student/City of Kamloops Junior Council Member
kiran.ramsay13@gmail.com
Director, Local Government & Indigenous Relations + Asses rodney.ravenstein@bcassessment.ca
Councillor
frank.regehr@penticton.ca
Public Affairs
dreid@bcdairy.ca
Director
director.srice@tnrd.ca
Director
arichmond@cariboord.ca
Environmental Health Officer
janelle.rimell@interiorhealth.ca
ICBC Road Safety & Community Coordinator
caroline.robinson@icbc.com
Mayor
Mayor@ashcroftbc.ca
President
l_roodenburg@yahoo.ca
Director, Community Engagement
curtis.rowe@rci.rogers.com
Parliamentary Secretary for Rural Development
roly.russell@gov.bc.ca
Mayor
trysz@sicamous.ca
Medical Health Officer
fatemeh.sabet@interiorhealth.ca
Councillor
bsarai@kamloops.ca
Councillor
scarrow@lakecountry.bc.ca
Director
director.cschaffer@tnrd.ca
Councillor
benhogan@telus.net
Councillor
steven.scott@chasebc.ca
Councillor
judy.sentes@penticton.ca
Community Relations Manager
DAG.SHARMAN@BCHYDRO.COM
Electoral Area "C" Director
amanda.shatzko@rdno.ca
Director/Vice Chair
jsimpson@csrd.bc.ca
Councillor
asingh@kamloops.ca
Mayor
rsmith@loganlake.ca
Councillor
asmith@loganlake.ca
Councillor
ssmith@merritt.ca
Mayor
mayor@barriere.ca
Chief Administrative Officer
gstatt@summerland.ca
Mayor
gsulz@revelstoke.ca
Mayor
mayor@village.clinton.bc.ca
Director
rtalbot@csrd.bc.ca
Chief Social Purpose Officer and VP, Player Experience
pterweeme@bclc.com
Chief Administrative Officer
cao@docbc.ca
Councilor
fred.torbohm@chasebc.ca
Councillor
dtuohey@ashcroftbc.ca
CEO
peter@mfa.bc.ca
Community and Indigenous Relations Intern
brianna.ure@fortisbc.com

Donny
Patrick
Joe
John
Greg
Louise
Sally
Campbell
Melvina
Barbara
Darin
Kaley
Garry
Carol
Ron

van Dyk
Van Minsel
VanTienhoven
Vassilaki
Walker
Wallace Richmond
Watson
Watt
White
Wiebe
Wong
York-Pearce
Youd
Zanon
Zink

City of Penticton
District of Peachland
Township of Spallumcheen
City of Penticton
BCLC
City of Salmon Arm
Thompson-Nicola Regional District
City of Penticton
City of Merritt
District of Lillooet
TELUS
Interior Health Authority
District of Logan Lake
City of West Kelowna
Corix Utilities Inc.

Chief Administrative Officer
Councillor
Councillor
Mayor
Director, Public Affairs
Councillor
Director
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Local Government and Indigenous Initiatives
Population Health Program Specialist
Councillor
Councillor
Director, Financial Development

donny.vandyk@penticton.ca
pvanminsel@peachland.ca
joe.vantienhoven@spallumcheentwp.bc.ca
mayor@penticton.ca
gwalker@bclc.com
lwallacerichmond@salmonarm.ca
director.swatson@tnrd.ca
campbell.watt@penticton.ca
mwhite@merritt.ca
bwiebe@lillooet.ca
darin.wong@telus.com
kaley.york@interiorhealth.ca
gyoud@loganlake.ca
carol.zanon@westkelownacity.ca
ron.zink@corix.com

SOUTHERN INTERIOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION
Draft Minutes of Annual General Meeting held virtually on April 28, 2021
1.

Call to Order
President Lori Mindnich called the virtual meeting to order at 10:02 am on April 28, 2021.

2.

President’s Report
President Mindnich thanked the current executive for their patience and dedication. She
acknowledged the disappointment in addressing the delegation via zoom again and hopes that
the Public Health Orders will be rescinded in time to hold the 2022 AGM in person.
SILGA pivoted this year and hosted a series of eight speakers, starting in February and running
every Wednesday at lunch until early this month as an alternative to a regular three-day
convention. The line-up was fantastic – with sessions on university-government collaboration,
connectivity issues and solutions, community planning and learning how to become future ready.

3.

Adoption of Minutes
Moved/Seconded by Spencer Coyne/Aimee Grice THAT:
The minutes of the September 29th, 2020 Annual General Meeting held virtually be adopted.

4.

Business Arising from the Minutes

CARRIED

There was no business arising from the minutes.
5.

Financial Report
Mario Piroddi from BDO Canada presented the Financial Statements for the period ending
December 31, 2020. He commented that the 2020 statements show fairly the results of the
operations of the association for the year. The board had a strong response to the pandemic
and kept losses minimized, despite much lower revenues as a result of the cancellation of the
convention. The convention reserves have been drawn down to reflect the expenses that were
not able to be recouped from the cancelled convention.
The 5-year plan was presented by President Lori Mindnich which showed SILGA again tightening
their belts and keeping expenses to a bare minimum. SILGA pivoted and offered the speaker
series this year and were fortunate that most of the speakers presented for free which definitely
reduced the costs. SILGA successfully applied for the CEBA grant, which if SILGA repays $40,000
of the $60,000 loan by December 31, 2022, the remaining $20,000 will be forgiven by the
Government of Canada. This grant is not reflected in the 5-year plan as the plan was approved
by the board prior to receiving confirmation of the grant funding.
Moved/Seconded by Spencer Coyne/Aimee Grice THAT:
The Financial Statement for the period ending December 31, 2020 along with the 5-year plan be
adopted as presented.
CARRIED
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Nomination Committee Report
With no nominations accepted from the floor during the virtual AGM, Past President and
Nomination Committee Chair Shelley Sim confirmed the following positions were filled by
acclamation for the 2020-21 term.
Table Officers:
President
First Vice-President
Second Vice-President

Karla Kozakevich, RDOS
Toni Boot, Summerland
Aimee Grice, Oliver

For the 7 positions of Director at Large Past President Sim read out the names recorded in the
nomination package:
Mayor Spencer Coyne, Princeton
Councillor Jamie Howe, Lillooet
Councillor Tony Luck, Merritt
Councillor Bill Sarai, Kamloops
Councillor Judy Sentes, Penticton
Mayor Robin Smith, Logan Lake
Councillor Louise Wallace Richmond, Salmon Arm
Councillor Barbara Wiebe, Lillooet
Past President Sim announced that the following will be Directors at Large for SILGA for the
2020/21 term.
Mayor Spencer Coyne, Princeton
Councillor Tony Luck, Merritt
Councillor Bill Sarai, Kamloops
Councillor Judy Sentes, Penticton
Mayor Robin Smith, Logan Lake
Councillor Louise Wallace Richmond, Salmon Arm
Councillor Barbara Wiebe, Lillooet
The SILGA scrutineer, Lumby CAO Tom Kadla, certified that the voting results were accurate.
7.

Resolutions

(1) Title: Provincial Changes in Emergency Management
Sponsor: City of Vernon and City of Enderby
Whereas the provincial government is modernizing elements of the emergency program that directly
affects local authorities’ ability to meet legislated emergency management responsibilities;
And whereas Emergency Management BC’s publication of the Financial Assistance for Emergency
Response Costs, A Guide for BC First Nations and Local Authorities (2020), demonstrates the need for
and lack of meaningful consultation with, and consideration of, local authorities’ role in emergency
management and of the relationship as defined in the Community Charter:
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Therefore be it resolved that UBCM establish a permanent committee for emergency management and
request the Province direct all emergency program initiatives affecting local authorities through this
committee as part of their final review;
And be it further resolved that the Province postpone implementation of the revised Financial
Assistance for Emergency Response Costs Guide, and all other proposed Emergency Program
administrative and financing amendments until such times as affected municipalities are meaningfully
consulted.
DEFEATED
(2) Title: 5.25 Percent Provincial Collection Fee on Rural Area Property Taxes
Sponsor: Okanagan Similkameen Regional District
Whereas rural area property taxes are collected from the Province’s Surveyor of taxes on behalf of
Regional Districts;
And whereas the Province of British Columbia charges a 5.25 percent administration fee on the taxes
collected which the property owner pays as part of their property taxes, and this increases the tax
burden on electoral area residence:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Province of British Columbia reduce the provincial
collection fee on rural area property taxes, so that the tax burden on the rural property owners may be
reduced.
CARRIED
(3) Title: Primary Care Network Funding
Sponsor: Town of Oliver
Whereas many British Columbians in the province do not have appropriate access to primary care
services;
And whereas the Province introduced team based primary care clinics to serve and build interdisciplinary primary care teams in each community to ensure patients are at the center of health care
delivery:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Ministry of Health to provide additional Primary Care
Network Funding to communities with approved primary care network growth plans to facilitate the
establishment of team based primary care clinics.
CARRIED
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(4) Title: Long Term Care Homes – COVID-19

Sponsor: Town of Oliver
Whereas long term care services are for people who can no longer be cared for in their own homes or in
an assisted living residence in a protective and supportive environment;
And whereas the significant coronavirus death rate of long-term care residents is attributed to residing
in facilities with shared rooms/spaces, inadequate ventilation systems, limited access to isolation rooms,
and limited supports for residents with dementia or complex cognitive and physical needs at the
expense of their health safety, privacy and dignity in their end of life care:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Government of BC put a moratorium on the
construction of new long term care facilities that do not offer single rooms which will support and care
for residents to ensure that the spread of COVID-19, flu like viruses and other diseases are minimized;
And be it further resolved that current long-term care facilities be renovated to accommodate patient
care in single rooms.
CARRIED
(5) Title: Funding Maintenance of Community Halls and Recreation Centres
Sponsor: District of Lillooet
Whereas there is insufficient tax base in small, rural communities to fund the adequate maintenance of
community halls, recreation centres, and other major, aging municipal infrastructure;
And whereas regional districts may be well positioned to fund the maintenance of municipal
infrastructure in small, rural BC communities;
And whereas the availability of municipal infrastructure such as community halls and recreational
centres is integral to the health and wellbeing of residents in small, rural communities:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Province of British Columbia fund regional districts to
enable them to maintain municipal infrastructure including community halls and recreational centres.
DEFEATED
(6) Title: COVID-19 Funding Allocation Deadline
Sponsor: Okanagan Similkameen Regional District
Whereas regional districts must fully allocate COVID-19 safe restart grant for local governments funds to
an appropriate regional and local service before December 31, 2021, but municipalities do not have the
same allocation deadline requirement;
And whereas regional districts would like the discretion to hold back some COVID-19 safe restart grant
for local governments funding for allocation to an appropriate regional or local service in a future year:
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Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Province provide regional districts the same COVID19 safe restart grant for local governments allocation and reporting requirements afforded to
municipalities.
CARRIED
(7) Title: Flood Mitigation Response
Sponsor: Okanagan Similkameen Regional District
Whereas current funding programs for flood mitigation requires 1/3 of project funding from local
government as well as requiring that the local government assume ownership of the works for a period
of 10 years, in some cases resulting in an unrealistic burden on affected taxpayers;
And whereas the financial inability of residents to meet the requirements of the current funding
program often precludes a planned proactive approach to known flood issues to minimize
environmental impacts associated with mitigative works and instead results in a reactive approach when
an imminent threat occurs, resulting in greater costs and greater environmental damage, in addition to
the traumatic and sometimes devastating impacts on affected residents:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM lobby the Province to develop programs that take a proactive
approach to flood mitigation rather than continuing to try to download additional responsibilities on
local governments that are ill-equipped and lacking in financial capacity to address these situations in a
proactive manner that best respects the residents and the environment.
CARRIED
(8) Title: Detox and Treatment Beds, and Sobering Centres
Sponsor: City of Kamloops
Whereas local governments across BC work with business and neighbourhood associations, health
authorities, social service providers, and provincial organizations to identify resources or programs that
will support a safe and secure community for all;
And whereas many local governments are in need of more detox beds, treatment beds and a sobering
centres in their communities:

Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Minister of Health and the Minister of Mental
Health and Addictions address the need for an increase in detox beds and treatment beds, and sobering
centres that include treatment for addictions and mental health issues.
CARRIED
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(9) Title: Outcomes of Supportive Housing
Sponsor: City of Kamloops

Whereas BC Housing develops, manages, and administers a wide range of subsidized housing options
across the province. BC Housing works with the ministry responsible for housing to address critical gaps
across the housing continuum, which range from emergency shelter to rent assistance in the private
market to affordable home ownership;
And whereas a number of non-profit and charitable organizations support communities across BC as
housing providers for vulnerable populations;
And whereas many BC communities are working with the Province and BC Housing to determine if
sufficient wrap-around services are being implemented to support those in need of housing and the
impacts of these housing projects on the community:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Attorney General and Minister for Housing, the
Minister of Health, and the Minister of Mental Health and Addictions engage a third-party consultant to
review the outcomes of the current supportive housing projects, the impacts of the housing projects on
communities, and the outcomes of individuals who have accessed these housing options and associated
support programs;
And be it further resolved that the consultant review opportunities for building a stronger partnership
between communities and BC Housing for future, long-term housing projects.
CARRIED
(10) Title: Residential Tenancy Act – Landlord Protection
Sponsor: Town of Oliver
Whereas the Residential Tenancy Act is intended to establish and protect the rights of landlords and
tenants from unwarranted eviction;
And whereas a landlord may seek early termination of a tenancy agreement for cause and the
protections contained within the Act enable the occupant to refuse vacating the premises, which have
been enhanced due to COVID-19:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Province of British Columbia to undertake a broad review of
landlord protections to increase confidence in entering the rental market to grow the number of rental
properties better suited to families.
CARRIED
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(11) Title: Vacant Land Property Tax
Sponsor: District of Lillooet

Whereas some municipal councils in jurisdictions have the authority to set tax rates on vacant land at a
higher rate than non-vacant land (such as the authority provided for in the s. 616 vacancy tax provision
of the Vancouver Charter);
And whereas some municipal councils with the requisite authority choose to set tax rates on vacant land
at a higher rate to encourage owners of vacant property to either develop the property or sell the land
which may result in the development of the property under new ownership:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Province of British Columbia conduct a review of the
Community Charter to amend the legislation to grant municipal councils’ authority to add a ‘vacant land’
property tax.
CARRIED
(12) TITLE: Fire Apparatus Maintenance for Small Geographic Fire Departments
SPONSOR: Village of Chase
Whereas the Fire Underwriters has deemed that all fire apparatus from all municipal and regional
district Fire Departments in British Columbia be in service for 20 years, providing annual testing and
inspections are performed;
And whereas there are local governments that utilize their fire apparatus much less frequently than
those of other local governments, and small geographically sized communities do not put nearly as
much distance on their fire apparatus as do larger geographically sized communities, and all fire
apparatus are annually tested and maintained to the highest standard of operation:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Provincial Government to urge the Fire Underwriters to
allow small municipalities with small geographic areas to operate their well maintained and low mileage
fire apparatus beyond 20 years as their first response apparatus.
CARRIED
(13) Title: Provincial Maintenance of Arterial Roads Within Municipalities
Sponsor: City of Merritt
Whereas the Provincial Ministry of Transportation (MOTI) is responsible for the clearing of snow off
arterial highways across British Columbia, including within municipal boundaries;
And whereas the Provincial MOTI has signed contracts with external companies to fulfill this
responsibility, each of which is to last for ten years from signing;
And whereas residents of municipalities expect their city authorities to promptly and appropriately deal
with snow removal:
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Therefore be it resolved that the provincial government work closely with municipalities to identify any
flaws or deficiencies in snow-clearing on arterial routes, and to relay an expectation to their contractors
that reasonable municipal requests be heeded through the duration of the contract;
And be it further resolved that the provincial government involve municipal authorities in setting
standards for snow clearance when the contracts are renewed.
CARRIED
(14) Title: Use of All-Terrain Vehicles during Snow Events
Sponsor: City of Merritt
Whereas the provincial Motor Vehicle Act prohibits private owners from driving all-terrain vehicles on
municipal streets;
And whereas heavy snowfall can render municipal streets and sidewalks impassable by ordinary vehicles
and pedestrians for several days;
And whereas residents of municipalities wish to aid their fellow residents by clearing snow expeditiously
including with the use of all-terrain vehicles:
Therefore be it resolved that the provincial government amend the Motor Vehicle Act to allow the use of
all-terrain vehicles on municipal streets during snow events, solely to aid in clearing snow.
DEFEATED
(15) Title: Extreme Weather Response Shelters
Sponsor: Town of Oliver
Whereas the Province of British Columbia no longer supports extreme weather response shelters that
open during the winter when a local community declares an alert under the Assistance to Shelter Act that sleeping outside could threaten health and safety, and during an alert are open every night;
And whereas the Province, through BC Housing, now supports year-round emergency shelters and
temporary winter shelters that are generally open November to April that challenges smaller
communities with the ability to open these types of emergency shelters:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Province re-establish extreme weather response
shelters funding to enable small communities to open an extreme weather response shelter for the
homeless and vulnerable population;
And be it further resolved that extreme weather response shelters be activated when Environment
Canada issues an extreme weather alert.
CARRIED
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(16) Title: Provincial Authorization and Compliance of Landfills in British Columbia
Sponsor: Columbia Shuswap Regional District
Whereas the Environmental Management Act authorizes a regional district to manage solid waste in
accordance with its Solid Waste Management Plan, which is approved by the Ministry of Environment;
And whereas the Authorizations Division of the Ministry of Environment is responsible to review and
receive a landfill facility’s design and operation plan and issue the operational certificate required for a
local government to operate a landfill facility to receive solid waste;
And whereas the Compliance Division of the Ministry of Environment is responsible to inspect a local
government operated landfill facility to ensure it is operating in accordance with its issued operational
certificate;
And whereas the Authorizations Division of the Ministry of Environment works through a necessary
application to update an existing Operational Certificate, the Compliance Division of the Ministry of
Environment holds local government owned landfill facilities out of compliance against the existing
Operational Certificates and issues landfill non-compliance letters to local governments containing
threats of significant monetary penalties and even imprisonment:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM lobby the provincial government to request that the Ministry of
Environment Compliance and the Authorizations Divisions act proactively and reasonably with each
other and local government landfill owners to ensure landfill compliance with Operational Certificates
without threats of imprisonment or substantial monetary fines.

CARRIED

(17) Title: Abandoned Vehicles on Crown Land
Sponsor: Okanagan Similkameen Regional District
Whereas enforcement of abandoned vehicles on Crown Land, Provincial rights of way and road
dedications may involve a number of agencies but little coordinated action;
And whereas members of the public have difficulty knowing who to contact to initiate a complaint of an
apparent abandoned vehicle:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Province to designate one Ministry or coordinating body to
be responsible for abandoned vehicle complaints on Crown Land, Provincial rights of way, and road
dedications.
CARRIED
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(18) Title: 911 Dropped Calls

Sponsor: Okanagan Similkameen Regional District
Whereas statistics indicate an increased number of identified abandoned 911 calls in the South
Okanagan;
And whereas the Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP) do not have access to current personal
information to respond effectively to abandoned 911 calls;
And whereas the RCMP response to abandoned 911 calls is labour intensive:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Ministry of Justice work with the Federal
Government of Canada to make available current personal information collected by provincial and
national telecommunication carriers to police communications centres and 911 public safety answering
points within British Columbia to assist with tracking dropped 911 calls.
CARRIED
(19) Title: Invasive Asian Clams
Sponsor: District of Sicamous
Whereas invasive Asian clams (Corbicula fluminea) are known to threaten the natural biodiversity of
lakes by competing with native species for sustenance and space, cause biofouling to water treatments
systems, alter water chemistry, and potentially reduce the quality of drinking water;
And whereas the spread of Asian clams will have significant environmental, social, and economic
consequences for our waterways, wildlife and communities;
And whereas the Controlled Alien Species Regulation exists under the Wildlife Act to enforce controls for
species that pose a risk to people, property, wildlife, and wildlife habitat:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Province of British Columbia to designate invasive Asian
clams (Corbicula fluminea) as a Prohibited Aquatic Invasive Species under the Controlled Alien Species
Regulation under the Wildlife Act.
CARRIED
(20) Title: Protection of Waterways from Aquatic Invasive Species
Sponsor: District of Sicamous
Whereas Canada is home to 20 percent of the world’s fresh water, and the spread of aquatic invasive
species (AIS) poses irreparable environmental, social and economic threats that will cost Canadian
taxpayers billions of dollars in lost tourism and economic opportunities, and other unknown costs;
And whereas the spread of AIS is largely connected to human activity, including the unsafe transport of
watercraft and floatplanes between bodies of water;
And whereas current government efforts through fines for failing to stop at a BC watercraft inspection
station, there is a lack of specific provincial or federal regulation and enforcement that is directed at
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watercraft owners who fail to prevent the spread of AIS by cleaning, draining, and drying their
watercraft before transport:
Therefore be it resolved that the provincial and federal governments adopt increased and stricter
enforcement measures for watercraft and floatplane owners including the introduction of a significant
fine for watercraft and floatplane owners that fail to clean, drain and dry their watercraft or floatplane
before transporting it to another body of water and an increase in the fine issued to motorists who fail
to stop and a watercraft inspection station.
CARRIED
(21) Title: Recreation Sites and Trails BC Partnership Agreements (rescinded by Sicamous council)
Sponsor: District of Sicamous
Whereas many local governments and communities rely on the snowmobile industry for economic
stability and development and, at the same time, those local governments and communities care about
maintaining existing Recreation Sites and Trails Management Plans and Partnerships with the Province
of BC for respectful stewardship of the lands;
And whereas some communities, user groups, and clubs within the BC Snowmobile Federation (BCSF)
find their management plans undermined and disregarded without notice or consideration due to
industrial use of these recreation sites and trails during peak operating season:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM work with the provincial government to ensure that the BCSF, its
partnering snowmobile clubs and recreational user groups, are awarded sole user status on the
aforementioned trails and forest service roads for which corresponding Management Plans are in place,
from December 1 through to March 31 of each year.
(22) Title: UBCM Resolutions Session
Sponsor: Village of Lumby
Whereas UBCM is the primary way that all local governments in BC interact with the provincial
government as a unified group;
And whereas resolutions brought forward from area associations to UBCM have been debated at area
association AGMs, as well as reviewed by the UBCM resolutions committee prior to convention:
Therefore be it resolved that the UBCM convention focus on allowing enough time for all resolution
debate and voting as a priority over plenary sessions and presentations so that ALL resolutions can be
debated and voted at convention;
And be it further resolved that the UBCM convention schedule resolution debate and voting times to not
be concurrent with ministerial meeting schedules so that all delegations bringing resolutions can be
present when their resolution reaches the convention floor.
CARRIED
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(23) Title: Off-Site Tasting Rooms

Sponsor: City of Penticton
Whereas BC wineries and liquor manufacturers are not able to sell their products at an owner-operated
secondary or offsite location;
And whereas land-based wineries are required to locate their tasting room and retail facility at their
manufacturing establishment, which in turn must be located on the agricultural land where their
vineyard is located; while commercial wineries may locate their tasting room and retail facility in a town
or city only if their manufacturing facility is located on the same property;
And whereas allowing BC wineries and liquor manufacturers to establish off-site tasting room and retail
facilities would attract visitors who are increasingly interested in regional, craft and artisanal products to
communities around the province, creating significant economic development opportunities for smaller
rural communities and limiting pressure on the development of agricultural land for non-agricultural
uses:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the BC Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General
revise Division 5 of the BC Liquor Control and Licensing Regulation (dealing with Manufacturer’s
Licenses) and the Manufacturer License Terms and Conditions such that manufacturers may apply to
establish a tasting room and retail facility off-site, either on an individual basis or in concert with one or
more other manufacturers; together with associated lounge, patio and picnic-area endorsements.
CARRIED
(24) Title: Dilapidated Z240 Mobile Homes Disposal Fee Two-Year Reprieve
Sponsor: District of Lillooet
Whereas there is insufficient attainable housing availability for those who seek to live and work in rural
BC Communities;
And whereas the Province of British Columbia has acknowledged the lack of attainable housing as a
“Housing Crisis”;
And whereas there is an abundance of dilapidated Z240 mobile homes in rural BC Communities that if
removed could benefit the property development, economic growth and visual aesthetics of various
communities;
And whereas the cost of responsibly disposing of these dilapidated Z240 mobile homes is prohibitive:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Province of British Columbia to grant a two-year
reprieve on the cost of disposing dilapidated Z240 mobile homes in landfills to free up developable land
for improved and additional housing.
DEFEATED
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(25) Title: Public Sector Essential Service Personnel Housing
Sponsor: District of Lillooet
Whereas there is insufficient attainable housing availability for those who seek to live and work in many
communities;
And whereas the Province of British Columbia has acknowledged the lack of attainable housing as a
“Housing Crisis”;
And whereas there is both a great need for, and lack of, housing for various personnel such as Royal
Canadian Mounted Police and medical staff in communities in BC;
And whereas the cost and availability of housing is prohibitive for needed personnel that would
otherwise move for work:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Province of British Columbia fund public sector
essential service personnel housing.
CARRIED
(26) Title: Criminal Justice Reform for Repeat, Convicted Offenders
Sponsor: District of Lillooet
Whereas the RCMP are overworked and understaffed in the Province of BC;
And whereas many BC residents are frustrated with the low sanction sentences imposed by the
Provincial Court criminal justice system;

And whereas criminals may not choose the path to recovery as provided for by various Provincial,
Federal, or First Nations government-created mental health programs, Indigenous court systems, reform
programs, safe injection sites, methadone, or Opioid Agonist Treatment (OAT) clinics;
And whereas many thefts and drug-related crimes are perpetrated by criminals who are “well known to
police” and have multiple or long criminal records:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Province of BC and the BC’s Attorney General
immediately begin working with the Government of Canada to address issues with Canada’s and British
Columbia’s justice system including the proposed imposition of weightier consequences and greater
accountability for repeat offenders, thereby supporting the rights of all Canadians to live in safe
communities.
CARRIED
(27) Title: Organ Donation – Presumed Consent
Sponsor: Okanagan Similkameen Regional District
Whereas the population of British Columbia is 5.071 million but only 1.555 million British Columbians
have registered their organ donor decision;
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And whereas one organ donor can save up to 8 lives:

Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Province of British Columbia enact provincial
legislation whereby an individual is deemed to consent to the individual’s organs and tissues being used
for transplantation activities, similar to the Presumed Consent Organ Transplant Act passed by the
Province of Nova Scotia.
DEFEATED
(28) TITLE: SILGA Constitution –Section 2 – Purposes
SPONSOR: SILGA
WHEREAS SILGA’s scope of purpose has broadened to achieve the associations’ goals of “Connect –
Educate – Advocate”;
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the SILGA Constitution Section 2.3 amended as follows:

2.3

to support and advance to the Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) on behalf of the
membership proposed changes in legislation, regulations or Government policy;
Amended to read:
to support and advance to the Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) and/or
Provincial Ministries on behalf of the membership proposed changes in legislation, regulations
or Government policy;
CARRIED

(29) TITLE: SILGA Constitution –Section 4 Amendment - Officers
SPONSOR: SILGA
WHEREAS SILGA staff is paid as an Independent Contractor with the job title of General Manager;
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the SILGA Constitution Section 4.2 be amended as follows:

4.2

The Secretary-Treasurer will be the Executive Director of SILGA, to be employed and paid a
salary in an amount and on employment terms and conditions authorized by unanimous
decision of the Directors.
Amended to read:
The Secretary-Treasurer will be the General Manager of SILGA, to be paid a contracted fee in the
amount and on the terms and conditions authorized by the majority of the Directors.

Proposed amendment
Moved/Seconded by Christine Fraser/Rhona Martin THAT:
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To change “authorized by the majority of the Directors” to “authorized by the 2/3 majority of
the Directors”

Vote on amendment

CARRIED

Vote on resolution as amended

CARRIED

(30) TITLE: SILGA Constitution –Section 8 Amendment – Meeting of the Members
SPONSOR: SILGA
WHEREAS if under Public Health Orders the SILGA convention is unable to be held in person;
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the SILGA Constitution Section 8.2 be amended as follows:
8.2

One general meeting shall be held every year in the month of April or May which shall be known
as the Annual General Meeting.
Amended to read:
One general meeting shall be held every year in the month of April or May which shall be known
as the Annual General Meeting. If a virtual Annual General Meeting is deemed necessary by the
SILGA board, the SILGA board or staff will choose a third-party virtual meeting platform as well
as a third party electronic voting platform to allow confidential online voting for all aspects of
the Annual General Meeting. Member Representatives will be provided in advance with detailed
instructions on how to access the virtual platform and the voting procedures.
CARRIED

(31) TITLE: SILGA Constitution –Section 10 amendments – Submission of AGM resolutions
SPONSOR: SILGA
WHEREAS the SILGA bylaws need to be updated to reflect more clearly the current procedures for
submitting and vetting resolutions by member local governments.
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the SILGA Constitution Section 10 be amended as follows:
10.2

The President shall appoint a Resolutions Committee of three Members of the Executive at least
sixty (60) days prior to the Annual General Meeting.
Amended to read:
The President shall appoint a Resolutions Committee of three or more Members of the
Executive at least sixty (60) days prior to the Annual General Meeting.

10.4

Resolutions Submitted Prior to the Annual Meeting

(1)

Each resolution shall be prepared on a separate sheet of 8½" by 11" paper under the name of
the sponsoring Member local government and shall bear a short descriptive title;
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Amended to read:

Each resolution shall be prepared on the sponsoring Member local government’s letterhead and
shall bear a short descriptive title;
10.6

Resolutions Submitted Prior to the Annual Meeting
The Executive will have resolutions printed and circulated to Member Representatives in the
Annual Meeting Member Representatives' packets.
Amended to read:
The Executive will have the resolutions available on the SILGA website as well as circulated to
Member Representatives via email.
CARRIED

(32) TITLE: SILGA Constitution Fee Amendment – Appendix A
SPONSOR: SILGA
WHEREAS SILGA’s membership fees do not have a provision for inflation;
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that SILGA request an amendment to the SILGA Bylaws to reflect the
following fee structure for each member:
2021 and beyond

$300 plus $0.075 per capita* with a 2% annual increase

*based on most recently available Statistics Canada census information
CARRIED
8.

Address by the Incoming President
Karla Kozakevich thanked Lori Mindnich for so capably leading the association through these
pandemic times and is grateful that Councillor Mindnich will remain on the board to provide
direction for the next couple of years. She commented that technology is definitely here to stay
and SILGA will try to connect with the delegates through these means. Saying that, she is
hopeful that SILGA will be able to host an in-person AGM and convention in 2022.

9.

President’s Closing Remarks
President Lori Mindnich thanked Lee’s Music from Kamloops who helped put together this
virtual AGM, as well as the SILGA Speaker Series. She congratulated the new board and looks
forward to working with them to address the challenges in the upcoming year.

10.

2022 Convention – Salmon Arm
The 2022 Convention may be held in Salmon Arm from April 26th to April 29th if the BC Provincial
Health Officer will allow meetings of more than 50 at that time.

Southern Interior Local Government Association
Annual General Meeting – virtually April 28, 2021

11.

Page 17

Adjournment

Moved/Seconded by Louise Wallace Richmond/Rhona Martin THAT:
The meeting be adjourned at 3:06 pm on April 28, 2021.
CARRIED
Alison Slater, Secretary Treasurer
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Independent Practitioner's Review Engagement Report

To the Board of Directors of
Southern Interior Local Government Association
Report on the independent review of the financial statements
We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Southern Interior Local
Government Association that comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31,
2021, and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Practitioner’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the accompanying financial statements based on
our review. We conducted our review in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
standards for review engagements, which require us to comply with relevant ethical
requirements.
A review of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted standards for
review engagements is a limited assurance engagement. The practitioner performs procedures,
primarily consisting of making inquiries of management and others within the entity, as
appropriate, and applying analytical procedures, and evaluates the evidence obtained.
The procedures performed in a review are substantially less in extent than, and vary in nature
from, those performed in an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on these financial
statements.

2

Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Southern Interior Local Government Association as at December 31, 2021, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Societies Act (British Columbia), we report that, in our opinion, the
accounting principles in Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations have
been applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year.

Chartered Professional Accountants
Kamloops, British Columbia
April 7, 2022
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Southern Interior Local Government Association
Statement of Financial Position
(Unaudited)

December 31

2021

2020

Assets
Current
Cash
Accounts receivable
Investments (MFA account) (Note 2)
GST receivable
Prepaid expenses

$

41,039
83,736
1,126
21,524

$

19,144
4,125
113,603
6,548
7,089

$

147,425

$

150,509

$

9,150

$

36,700

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current
Deferred revenue
Canada Emergency Business Account (Note 3)

Net assets
Board development & strategic planning reserve (Note 4)
Contingency reserve (Note 4)
Convention reserve (Note 4)
General operating reserve (Note 4)
Unrestricted

$

40,000

-

49,150

36,700

6,363
24,356
30,000
27,500
10,056

6,363
40,000
25,856
27,500
14,090

98,275

113,809

147,425

$

150,509

Approved on behalf of the Board:
, Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

, Director
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Southern Interior Local Government Association
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
(Unaudited)

For the year ended December 31

2021
Internally
restricted

Net assets, beginning of year

$

99,719

Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures

$

-

Transfer to restricted funds
Net assets, end of year

Unrestricted

88,219

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Total

Total

$ 113,809

$ 132,090

(15,534)

(11,500)
$

14,090

(15,534)

11,500
$

10,056

2020

$

(18,281)

-

-

98,275

$ 113,809
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Southern Interior Local Government Association
Statement of Operations
(Unaudited)

For the year ended December 31
Revenue
Convention
CEBA grant revenue
Memberships
Investment income
Education & newsletter revenue
Other sponsorships

Expenses
Executive director expenses:
Travel expenses
Wages, benefits and subcontractor
Executive meeting expenses:
Meals
Per diem allowance
Travel expenses
Convention expenses
Communication
Education expenses
Insurance
Interest and bank charges
Office expenses
Other expenses
Professional fees

Deficiency of revenues over expenses
for the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Budget
$

43,000
51,427
800
7,500
-

2021
$

47,725
20,000
52,456
134
4,500
-

2020
$

410
51,427
954
1,025
5,000

102,727

124,815

58,816

1,500
54,866

2,614
54,719

2,228
51,758

8,000
37,200
2,448
1,865
250
1,000
500
6,000

12,600
50,263
2,652
7,399
1,865
330
1,340
6,567

221
8,300
1,283
4,554
1,815
272
627
368
5,671

113,629

140,349

77,097

$ (10,902)

$

(15,534) $

(18,281)
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Southern Interior Local Government Association
Statement of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

As at December 31

2021

2020

Cash provided by (used for)
Operating activities
Cash receipts from membership and sponsorship
Cash paid to employees and suppliers
Interest received

$

Cash flows used in operating activities

101,256 $
(149,362)
134
(47,972)

80,061
(82,612)
954
(1,597)

Investing activity
Decrease (increase) of short-term investments

29,867

Financing activity
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt

40,000

Net decrease in cash

21,895

(2,551)

Cash, beginning of year

19,144

21,695

Cash, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$

41,039

(954)
-

$

19,144

7

Southern Interior Local Government Association
Notes to Financial Statements
(Unaudited)
December 31, 2021

1.

Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Business
The Southern Interior Local Government Association (the "Association") is a not-for-profit
organization incorporated under the Societies Act of British Columbia and, accordingly, is
exempt from income tax under provisions of the Income Tax Act provided certain
requirements of the Income Tax Act are met. This Association is a body formed for the
purposes of representing in one organization, the various municipalities and regional
districts of the British Columbia southern interior.
Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared using Canadian accounting standards for notfor-profit organizations.
Revenue Recognition
Memberships are recognized ratably over the memberships period.
Sponsorships and convention revenues are recognized as revenue when received and the
related event has occurred.
Restrictions on Net Assets
The Association has internally restricted net assets committed for future expenditures. The
internally restricted amounts are not available for other purposes without approval of the
Board of Directors.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make assumptions and estimates
that have an effect on the reported amounts of asset, liabilities and disclosures at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Southern Interior Local Government Association
Notes to Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

December 31, 2021
1.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent
periods, equities traded in an active market and derivatives are reported at fair value,
with any unrealized gains and losses reported in operations. In addition, guaranteed
investment certificates have been designated to be in the fair value category, with gains
and losses reported in operations. All other financial instruments are reported at cost or
amortized cost less impairment, if applicable. Financial assets are tested for impairment
when changes in circumstances indicate the asset could be impaired. Transaction costs on
the acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are expensed for those items
remeasured at fair value at each statement of financial position date and charged to the
financial instrument for those measured at amortized cost.

2.

Short-term Investments
Short-term portfolio investments are measured at fair market value.
2021
MFABC money market fund

$

83,736

2020
$

113,603
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Southern Interior Local Government Association
Notes to Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

December 31, 2021
3.

Canada Emergency Business Account
2021
Canada Emergency Business Account ("CEBA") loan,
payable by voluntary repayments at any time, interestfree until December 31, 2023. This loan is unsecured.
Any remaining balance at December 31, 2023 is
payable in monthly instalments including interest,
calculated at a rate of 5% per annum, maturing
December 2025.

$

40,000

2020

$

-

In response to the Global Pandemic, the Government of Canada through Canadian Mortgage
and Housing Corporation issued the CEBA. Under this program, qualifying organizations can
apply for a $60,000 loan with the Government of Canada that is administered through the
organization's financial institution.
Repaying the balance of the loan on or before December 31, 2023 will result in loan
forgiveness of one-third of the borrowed amount (up to $20,000). As the Society
anticipates it will repay the loan by December 31, 2023, the forgivable amount has been
recognized as revenue in the current year.
Principal repayments for the next five years are as follows:
2023

$

40,000
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Southern Interior Local Government Association
Notes to Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

December 31, 2021
4. Internally Restricted Net Assets
Internally restricted net assets are held as reserve for future expenditures as follows:
2021
Board Development & Strategic Planning Reserve
Contingency Reserve
Convention Reserve
General Operating Reserve

2020

$

6,363
24,356
30,000
27,500

$

6,363
40,000
25,856
27,500

$

88,219

$

99,719

During the year, in conjunction with the ongoing development of a five year financial plan,
the Board moved to increase the reserves in order to give more stability to the Association
in future years.
General Operating Reserve
Funds set aside for future operating shortfalls.
Convention Reserve
Funds set aside for future convention shortfalls and/or to allow a smaller community the
opportunity to host the convention.
Contingency Reserve
Funds set aside for unanticipated future events.
Board Development & Strategic Planning Reserve
Funds set aside to fund strategic planning sessions, which will be held once every 2 - 4 years.
The current policy is to allocate $2,500 per year to this reserve until the session occurs.

5. Financial Instrument Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The Association is exposed to this risk by
virtue of its investments, which are traded in active market.
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Southern Interior Local Government Association
Notes to Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

December 31, 2021
6. Global Pandemic
As the impacts of COVID-19 continue, there could be further impact on the Association that
could impact the timing and amounts realized on the Association’s assets and future ability
to deliver services to members. The 2021 conference was held virtually, and the 2022 is
currently planned to be held in person. Future operations could be impacted should the
pandemic continue for a prolonged period of time beyond one year.

12

Southern Interior Local Government Association
Draft Five Year Financial Plan
For the years 2022 - 2026

Revenues
Convention / Speaker Series
Memberships
Newsletter/Education Income
CEBA Loan
Donation Income
Return on Investments
Expenditures
Administrative Expenses
Contractor Fees
communication allowance
Travel Expenses
Director Expenses
per diem allowance
Travel Expenses
Meals
Convention/Speaker Series/AGM Expenses
Donation
Education (net)
Executive Workshops (Retreat)
Gifts
Interest and Bank Charges
Insurance
Office Expenses
Provincial Liaison/Meetings
Youth Initiative at UBCM
Other
Accounting/Legal fees
Website
Net Revenues (Expenditures)

2021
Budget
$

$

$

$
$

43,000
51,427
7,500

800
102,727

54,866
2,448
1,500

2021
Final
$

$

$

47,725
52,456
4,500
20,000
134
124,815

54,719
2,652
2,614

8,000

12,600

37,200

50,263

250
1,865
1,000
500
6,000
113,629 $
(10,902) $

$

$

$

7,399
330
1,865
1,340
6,567
140,349 $
(15,534) $

2022

2023

2024

2025

Budget

Budget

Budget

Budget

150,000
53,505
1,000
1,000
150
205,655

55,963
2,497
4,500
8,000
3,000
1,000
110,000
1,000
2,500
500
250
2,250
2,000
500
6,600
200,560
5,095

$

$

$

$
$

160,000
54,575
1,000
1,000
150
216,725

57,083
2,547
5,000
8,000
5,000
1,500
110,000
1,000
5,000
2,500
500
250
2,295
2,040
2,000
2,500
500
6,732
214,446
2,279

$

$

$

$
$

160,000
55,667
1,000
1,000
150
217,817

58,224
2,598
5,100
8,000
5,000
1,530
110,000
1,000
5,000
2,500
500
250
2,341
2,081
2,000
2,500
500
6,867
215,990
1,826

$

$

$

160,000
56,780
1,000
1,000
150
218,930

59,389
2,650
5,202

2026
Budget
$

$
$

217,665
1,265

1,000
150
220,066
60,576
2,703
5,306
8,000
5,202
1,592
110,000
1,000
5,000
2,500
500
250
2,435
2,165
2,000
2,500
500
7,144

8,000
5,100
1,561
110,000
1,000
5,000
2,500
500
250
2,388
2,122
2,000
2,500
500
7,004
$
$

160,000
57,916
1,000

$
$

219,374
692

Position
President

Past
President

2021-22 SILGA EXECUTIVE

Name / Address
Director Karla Kozakevich
101 Martin Street
Penticton, B.C.
V2A 5J9
Councillor Lori Mindnich
141 Hurt Road
Lumby, BC
V0E 2G5

1st Vice
President

Mayor Toni Boot
Box 159, 13211 Henry Avenue
Summerland BC
V0H 1Z0

2nd Vice
President

Councillor Aimee Grice
Box 638 or 1444 (personal)
Oliver, BC
V0H 1T0

Director at
Large

Director at
Large

Director at
Large

Mayor Spencer Coyne
Box 670
Princeton, BC
V0X 1W0
Councillor Tony Luck
Box 189 2185 Voght St.
Merritt, BC
V1K 1B8
Councillor Bill Sarai
7 Victoria St. W
Kamloops BC
V2C 1A2

Director at
Large

Councillor Judy Sentes
171 Main St.
Penticton, BC
V2A 5A9

Director at
Large

Mayor Robin Smith
PO Box 190
Logan Lake, BC
V0K 1W0

Director at
Large

Director at
Large

General
Manager

Councillor Louise Wallace
Richmond
500 2nd Ave.NE, Box 40
Salmon Arm, BC V1E 4N2
Councillor Barbara Wiebe
Box 610
Lillooet, BC
V0K 1V0
Alison Slater
PO Box 27017 Cityview PO
Kamloops BC V2E 0B2

Phone / Fax – Email
Phone
Fax
Home
Cell
kkozakevich@rdos.bc.ca
Phone
Fax
Home
Cell
lorideann2@gmail.com
Phone
Fax
Home
Cell
tboot@summerland.ca
Phone
Fax
Home
Cell
agrice@oliver.ca
Phone
Fax
Home
Cell
scoyne@princeton.ca
Phone
Fax
Home
Cell
tluck@merritt.ca
Phone
Fax
Home cell
Work Cell
bsarai@kamloops.ca
Phone
Fax
Home
Cell
judy.sentes@penticton.ca
Phone
Fax
Home
Cell
rsmith@loganlake.ca
Phone
Fax
Home
Cell
lwallacerichmond@salmonarm.ca
Phone
Fax
Home
Cell
bwiebe@lillooetbc.ca
Phone
Fax
Cell
yoursilga@gmail.com

250 492-0237
250-809-2557
250-547-2171
250-547-6894
250-306-4078
250-404-4044
250-494-1415
250-770-0787
250 460 0349

250 408 4280

250 295 5553
250 378 4224
604 217 5825
250 828 3311
250 819 8527
250-490-2400
250-490-2402
250-493-0162
250-490-6446
250-523-6225
250-371-1855

250 833 5554

250 256 7340

250-851-6653

SILGA COMMITTEES
2021-2022
MEMBER SERVICES,
EDUCATION AND ADVOCACY





Karla Kozakevich
Bill Sarai
Louise Wallace Richmond

RESOLUTIONS






Toni Boot
Robin Smith
Aimee Grice
Spencer Coyne

COMMUNICATION/SOCIAL MEDIA






Toni Boot
Louise Wallace Richmond
Aimee Grice
Spencer Coyne

POLICY





Barbara Wiebe
Bill Sarai
Tony Luck

COMMUNITY EXCELLENCE AWARDS









Karla Kozakevich
Robin Smith
Bill Sarai
Aimee Grice
Lori Mindnich
Alternate L Wallace Richmond
Committee of the whole












Lori Mindnich
Judy Sentes
Louise Wallace Richmond
Bill Sarai
Tony Luck
Lori Mindnich
Barbara Wiebe
Bill Sarai
Tony Luck
Lori Mindnich







Lori Mindnich
Karla Kozakevich
Judy Sentes
Spencer Coyne
Committee of the whole

UBCM REP
UBCM YOUTH SELECTION
2022 CONVENTION
SALMON ARM

FINANCE

NOMINATIONS
HUMAN RESOURCES

ADVOCACY

June 1, 2021

2022 SILGA
Nominating Committee Report
2 0 22 S I L G A

A G M & C O N F E R E N CE
All Together Now

Presentation of the results of a call for nominations for
the Southern Interior Local Government Association
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Background Information on Southern
Interior Local Government
Association Nominations and Elections

Nominations

2 0 22 S I L G A
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1. Appointment of Nominations Committee
(up to 3 members, to include the Past President, who will be chair)
Responsibility: President

Completion Guideline: 60 days before convention

2. Call for Nominations sent to the membership

Responsibility: Nominations Committee Chair

3. Nominations to be received by the Nominations Committee Chair, who consults with the
Nominations Committee and prepares the Nominations Report with photographs and biographies.
Responsibility: Nominations Committee

Completion Guideline: 2 months before convention

4. Forward the Nominations Report to the Host Committee for inclusion in the delegate binders.
Responsibility: Nominations Committee

Completion Guideline: 1 month before convention

NOTE: If, at the close of the annual convention, there are not sufficient members elected to the
Executive to constitute a quorum, the local government who has the President as one of its members
shall be responsible to find sufficient members to serve on the Executive. If there is no President, the
local government currently responsible for providing administrative arrangements to the Executive
shall have the responsibility to find sufficient members to serve.
NOTE: In addition to the above mentioned, nominations can still come from the floor as has always
been provided.
TO BE ELECTED

All positions are for a one year term and those presently serving may run for another term if they so
wish, except for the President who can only serve for two consecutive terms.

Offices to be filled are for President, 1st Vice-President, 2nd Vice-President and seven Directors, one of
who must be an Electoral Area Director of a Regional District.
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Report of the
Southern Interior
Local Government Association
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The Nomination Committee was formed under the bylaws and executive procedures of the
SILGA Constitution.
Past President Lori Mindnich, Village of Lumby
Alison Slater, SILGA General Manager
The Nominations Committee authorized circulation of a call for nominations and preparation of
associated material (see background appendix). The results of the call are summarized on the next
page and full biographical materials submitted by nominees begin on the page following. It is important
to recognize that the role of the committee is to review submissions and prepare this report. It is not
the role of the committee to recommend anyone for nomination. We are to ensure nominations are
complete, and according to policies and procedures.
Further nominations can be received at the convention from the floor as has always been provided.
Please contact the nomination committee chair if there is any aspect of the procedures that you would
like clarified.
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Report of the
Southern Interior
Local Government Association
Nominations and Election of Executive
7.1

7.2
7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8
7.9
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The President shall appoint a Nominating Committee. The Committee shall consist of up
to three (3) Member Representatives, one of whom shall be a Past President.

The Chair of the Nominating Committee shall be the Past President unless that position is
vacant, in which case the Chair shall:
1. be appointed by the Executive with consideration to a previous Past President; and

2. not be a member of the Executive.

The Nominating Committee shall submit a proposed slate of Executive to the Members at
the Annual General Meeting for consideration.

All Member Representatives shall be eligible to stand for election to the Executive.

If an election of the Executive is required it will be conducted by a secret ballot and,
subject to subsection 7.11 below, those candidates receiving the most votes of the
Members being elected to the Executive, and ballots shall be destroyed by resolution of
the Members following the declaration of the successful candidate for office or
directorship.

In the event of an equality of votes between two candidates, the successful Executive
candidate will be chosen by lot between those two candidates. The name of each
candidate will be written on a separate piece of paper, folded in such a way that the
names of the candidates are not visible and placed in a container and shaken. One piece
of paper will be withdrawn by the Chair of the Nominating Committee and that person
declared the winning candidate.

The Chair of the Nominating Committee shall present the Nominating Committee's
candidates to the Association and will preside over the election process.

If the Chair of the Nominating Committee is unable to act, the Executive shall appoint a
Member Representative, Officer or Director to undertake the duties and responsibilities
as Chair of the Nominating Committee and to preside at the election.

The Secretary-Treasurer shall serve as the "Returning Officer" and may appoint other
staff members in attendance to assist with the election.

7.10 The election of Officers to the Executive shall be held at the Annual General Meeting on a
first ballot and that of the Directors at Large subsequently on a second ballot. Any
candidate that is unsuccessful in obtaining an Officer position on the first ballot may
become a candidate for a Director at Large position on the second ballot.

7.11 If, in the election of the Officers to the Executive on the first ballot, an Electoral Area
Director of a regional district is elected, the Director at Large positions will then be filled
by the candidates with the most votes.

7.12 If, in the election of the Officers to the Executive on the first ballot, an Electoral Area
Director of a regional district is not elected, then in the election of the Directors at Large,
the candidate - of those candidates that are Electoral Area Directors of a regional district with the most votes will be elected as a Director at Large and the balance of the Director
at Large positions will be filled by the remaining candidates with the most votes. If only
one Electoral Area Director of a regional district candidate runs for a Director at Large
position, that candidate will be acclaimed.
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Summary of Nominations for
Southern Interior Local Government
Association Positions
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The Nominating Committee Chair will present the recommendations as the nomination for these
positions. Other nominations can still come from the floor as has always been provided.

Candidates Speeches - Each candidate will have one minute to present themselves and their platform.
For Officer Positions:
Lori Mindnich, Village of Lumby will be Past
President. (Elect one each)

President

1st Vice-President

2nd Vice-President

Director Karla Kozakevich
Mayor Toni Boot

Councillor Aimee Grice

For Directors At Large:
(Elect seven)

Okanagan Similkameen RD

District of Summerland

Town of Oliver

Spencer Coyne

Mayor

Town of Princeton

Judy Sentes

Councillor

City of Penticton

Tony Luck
Bill Sarai

Louise Wallace
Richmond
Barbara Wiebe

Councillor

Councillor
Councillor

Councillor

City of Merritt

City of Kamloops

City of Salmon Arm
District of Lillooet
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Nominated for:

President

Director Karla
Kozakevich
Okanagan
Similkameen RD
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Karla is currently in her third term as Director for Area E – Naramata
with the Regional District Okanagan-Similkameen and is currently in the
role of SILGA President. She was born and raised in Penticton and
moved to Naramata in 2005. A graduate of Pen-Hi Senior Secondary
School, she went on to attend Simon Fraser University on a varsity
scholarship, obtaining a Bachelor of Arts degree in Applied Sciences.
Karla worked for over 13 years contracting both Federally and
Provincially helping people with physical, cognitive and mental health
disabilities secure work, educational and assistive devices opportunities.
She grew up working in various areas of the family business in Penticton,
the Three Gables Hotel, which her family and relatives operated from
1937 – 1996. Karla currently works in motorsports racing and also
worked in property management, retail management, sports coaching
and in sports equipment & clothing sales management. She enjoys the
recreational opportunities provided in the South Okanagan, with a focus
on skiing, boating, fishing and golf.
From 2009 – 2011, Karla was Alternate Director for Area E and
volunteered with the Naramata Parks & Recreation Commission,
Naramata Water Advisory Committee and Naramata Elementary School
Parent Advisory Committee. She continues to participate with these
volunteer committees on a regular basis with a goal of providing
outstanding community based services and activities.
Karla completed her fifth year as Chair of the RDOS in November 2021.
She completed in 2021 the maximum allowable 8-year term with the
Okanagan Regional Library Board(ORL) as their Board Chair and also
completed four years as Chair of the ORL Policy & Planning committee.
Karla feels strongly that SILGA brings municipalities and rural areas
together to work for the best interest of the region as a whole. She can
be reached at 250-809-2557 or kkozakevich@rdos.bc.ca.
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Thank you, SILGA Members, for the opportunity to put my
name forward again this year for the position of your first
vice president. I have served two terms as a director-atlarge, two as second vice president and one as the first vice
president and sit on SILGA’s Resolutions Committee and
Communications Committee.

Mayor
Toni Boot
District of
Summerland

I was a first term councillor in Summerland from 2014 to
2018 and was elected to the mayor’s seat in October 2018.
I also sat for six years on the Regional District OkanaganSimilkameen board; two as an Okanagan Basin Water
Board director; and two as the Vice Chair of the OkanaganSimilkameen Regional Hospital District. In February 2021
I was appointed by Minister George Heyman to the
provincial Climate Solutions Council
I hold a B.A. in Professional Communications from Royal
Roads University, am a self-employed communications
consultant, and as of 2021, am part of Oasis Lavender Farm,
a new worker cooperative in Summerland. I have two
grown sons--one lives in Victoria, the other near Toronto.

Described as a serial collaborator, I believe strongly in the
power of building relationships and forming partnerships
and alliances. I am especially interested in agriculture, all
aspects of healthy communities, working with First
Nations, and managing and protecting our natural
resources, particularly as it relates to climate action.
Serving the SILGA membership over the past five years has
been a rewarding experience, especially when we see
action taken on issues that affect us all. Although SILGA is
the only LGA to do so, we will continue to voice our
collective concerns with Ministers and their staff at UBCM.

I appreciate the diverse skills and talents each member of
the executive brings to the table; it would be an honour to
serve on our local government association executive for a
sixth term.
Respectfully,
Toni Boot
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Nominated for:

2nd Vice President

Councillor
Aimee Grice
Town of Oliver

agrice@oliver.ca
250 408 4280
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AIMEE GRICE was elected as Councillor to the Town of Oliver in 2018.
She embraced the steep learning curve as an elected official, respecting
the important decisions a council makes on behalf of its residents.
With a deep-rooted passion for social justice, Aimee is striving to look
at all issues and decision making through this lens. Prior to seeking
election to the Town of Oliver Council, Aimee founded the Oliver and
Area Affordable Housing Society. This volunteer driven society is
working towards increasing access to affordable housing in Oliver and
surrounding area. Aimee enjoys the arts and has a strong passion for
helping others. Aimee seeks a second term as 2nd Vice President of this
regional board to bring her passion for community to the wider region.
She believes that advocacy plays a key role in her position as Councillor
and seeks to use all platforms available to practice this advocacy for
her community and the greater region.

Aimee is a contributing Council representative to various Town
Committees and current contributes to the following:
1.
Community Safety & Crime Prevention Committee, Chair
2.
Oliver Parks & Recreation Society
3.
Cold Weather Shelter Advisory Committee
4.
Oliver 100X100 Project Committee
5.
Downtown Development Advisory Committee; and
6.
South Okanagan Chamber of Commerce.
Since 2016 she has held the position of Marketing and Promotions
Coordinator and House Manager at the Venables Theatre. This staff
role was assumed after sitting as a governing member on the Oliver
Community Theatre Society. Aimee held a board of director position
on the SOAP Theatre and spent many years active with the group both
on stage and behind the scenes. Professional experience also includes
owning and operating a licensed family daycare for seven years.
Most importantly, Aimee is a wife and mother to two beautiful children
and allocates all her free time to her family, enjoying the local lakes in
the summer, and taking in the vast variety of arts and culture events
available in the south Okanagan.
Most importantly, Aimee is a wife and mother to two beautiful children
and allocates all her free time to her family, enjoying the local lakes in
the summer, and taking in the vast variety of arts and culture events
available in the south Okanagan.
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Director at Large
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Spencer is running for a second term as Director at Large
position with SILGA for the 2022/23 term.

Mayor
Spencer
Coyne
Town of
Princeton

Spencer believes that local government is the most effective
form of government and that the day to day actions and
decisions made by local policy makers have the most direct
impact on citizens. He is a strong believer in partnerships
and regional cooperation, this is why he has put his name
forward for Director at Large.

As his role of Mayor of Princeton, he is the Chair of the
Vermilion Forks Community Forest Corporation a
partnership between the Town of Princeton, Regional
District Okanagan-Similkameen and the Upper Similkameen
Indian Band. He is the Vice-chair of the Similkameen Valley
Planning Society an economic development partnership that
includes the Town of Princeton, Village of Keremeos, Lower
Similkameen Indian Band and RDOS electoral Areas B, G,
and H. Spencer believes that it is through these partnerships
we are able to create a more prosperous Similkameen Valley
for all who live there. Spencer is the Vice-Chair of the
Regional District Okanagan-Similkameen where he works
with other area representatives and member municipalities
of the RDOS on a regular basis to not only strengthen his
community but the region as a whole.
Spencer is a father of three, a new baby boy, a seven-yearold daughter and ten-year-old son. It is their future that
brought him back into politics after a thirteen-year hiatus.
Spencer believes that regional cooperation makes us
stronger and when we work together our collective voice
carries more weight.

SILGA Nominating Committee Report 8

Nominated for:

Director at Large
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Tony Luck and his wife Wanda live in Merritt after moving to
the community in 2017. Having been born on the coast and
living there his entire life both him and Wanda decided it was
time to experience the lifestyle of the interior of BC. The only
regret they have is that they didn't do it thirty years ago.

Councillor
Tony Luck
City of Merritt

Tony has both a degree in Business and History from the
University of the Fraser Valley and was Chair of the UFV
Alumni Association for six years. Prior to becoming a Realtor
in Merritt, which he really enjoys, Tony's past careers
included twenty-six years at BC Hydro and ten years as a
financial advisor with Investors Group just prior to moving to
Merritt.

He has really embraced the Nicola Valley lifestyle and has a
great passion for the valley. From the day he moved to Merritt
he has been involved with the community and is proud to
have been elected to Merritt City Council in his first year of
moving to Merritt and is working hard to Move Merritt
Forward in a very positive way.

His commitment to community includes a term as councillor
at the City of Mission, a term as a director of the Fraser Valley
Regional District, Vice-Chair Mission Regional Chamber of
Commerce, Director and Chair of the UFV Alumni Association
and Director of Nicola Valley Community Futures. He was also
a director and vice-chair of the Mission Community
Foundation.
Tony believes that there are great opportunities and
challenges for our region as more people see the Southern
Interior as an attractive place to relocate to from the Lower
Mainland. As a representative from Merritt he looks forward
to working closely with SILGA and carrying on the great
advocacy work the board does for our region. Thank you in
advance for your vote of confidence.
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I am enjoying my 3rd term as Director at Large with SILGA
and representing the City of Kamloops. I retired from Canada
Post after 31 years of service and was fortunate to become
elected as City Councillor for Kamloops in October 2018. I
have been appointed by our Mayor to the position of Vice
President of the Kamloops Airport Authority Society, Chair
the Civic Ops committee, and also a committee member
Development Engineering and Sustainability. Before being
elected to City Council, I had volunteered to the following
organizations:
- Norbrock Soccer Executive Committee

Councillor
Bill Sarai
City of Kamloops

- A E Perry Elementary School PAC Executive
- Coached Girls and Boys Youth Soccer

- Kamloops Sikh Cultural Society Executive Committee
- City of Kamloops Social Planning Committee
- Western Canada Summer Games
- BC Winter Games

I was born in Abbotsford BC and then raised in Vancouver and
then finally settled in Kamloops in 1995, where my wife of 30
years and I raised our 3 kids. We welcomed our first
grandchild in March 2021.
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I’m in my 14th consecutive year as a Councillor for the
City of Penticton and in this time I have chaired many
committees for our Council; acted as a Liaison for
Council to several organizations as well as represented
our City on numerous occasions including to the
Regional District of the South Okanagan-Similkameen
(RDOS) for a number of years.

Councillor
Judy Sentes
City of Penticton

Having lived in Penticton for nearly 35 years, I have
always made an effort to be involved in my community.
I have been a Director of our City’s Chamber of
Commerce, Chaired the Penticton Art Gallery Board
and was the President of the IRONMAN Canada Race
Society here in Penticton for many years.
I believe in the value of SILGA and have enjoyed being
a part of the Board of Directors this past year and am a
member of the Convention Committee. I would like to
continue working with SILGA in the capacity as
Director for another term and would ask for your
consideration of support to my current nomination.
Judy Sentes, Councillor
City of Penticton
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Nominated for:

Director at Large

Councillor Louise
Wallace Richmond
City of Salmon Arm
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Louise was born in Quebec City and raised in Northern
Ontario. She graduated from the University of Ottawa
with a degree in Economics and enjoyed working on
Parliament Hill first as a Page then as a Legislative
Assistant for the Chief Opposition Whip. After
relocating to the West Coast in 1990, she worked in
publishing and completed her Masters degree at SFU. In
1999, she moved to Salmon Arm and established
Mediability Corporate Communications, a design and
marketing business. Louise is also a part time professor
at the Okanagan College in the School of Business.
She is passionate about community-building, creativity
and collaboration and is honoured to serve Salmon Arm
as a second term city councillor in keeping with her
long-standing interest in politics, public affairs and
communications.

Her community committee work includes the Cultural
Master Plan Task Force, First Nations Partnerships, the
Housing Task Force, the Social Impact Advisory
Committee and the Okanagan Regional Library.
SILGA has been exemplary in its advocacy for the region
and is a tribute to the power of collective impact.
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Once again it is my pleasure to put my name forward for
the position of Director at Large. This will be my third
year running and whether successful or not look
forward to meeting the rest of the Board in person at
the SILGA convention in April.
I was elected as a first time Councillor in Lillooet from
2014 to 2017 and then re-elected in 2018 until
present. I will be putting my name forward in the
2022 elections.
I am presently a Council representative on:

Councillor
Barbara Wiebe
District of Lillooet

1) Squamish Lillooet Regional District

2) Thompson Regional Hospital Board
3) Explore Gold Country

4) Inter-governmental Relations Committee

5) Northern Economic Development Initiatives
Committee
6) MOTI meetings

7) Lillooet Board and BMX Association

I believe strongly in the importance of SILGA. The
community collaboration makes our voices stronger
when bringing concerns to Ministries and staff at
UBCM.

I am a mother of 3 girls and the grandmother of 3 girls;
soon to be 4 girls. I am retired from owning my own
business and find the political realm both challenging
and rewarding.
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GENERAL RULES
1. The Annual General Meeting will begin at the scheduled time or as near thereto as is
possible.
2. Delegates will use the floor microphones when speaking.
3. All elected officials of a Member municipality or regional board shall be entitled as the
Member Representatives to have a voice and vote at the Annual Meeting of the Association.
[Bylaw s. 8.7]
4. The Clerk, Secretary-Treasurer and/or Chief Administrative Officer of the Member local
governments shall be entitled to attend the meetings but shall not be entitled to vote, nor to
address matters placed before the Association unless requested to do so by the President.
[Bylaw s. 8.9]
5. A quorum shall be twenty (20) Members present at the Annual Meeting. [Bylaw s. 8.6]

VOTING RULES and RULES OF PROCEDURE - GENERAL
1. Only elected representatives from member municipalities and regional districts are entitled to vote.
[Bylaws. 8.7 & 8.9]
2. There is no proxy voting and each Member Representative present at the meeting is be entitled to
one vote per question. [Bylaw s. 8.8]
3. All matters placed before a meeting of the Association shall be resolved by a simple majority vote,
except for amendments to the Constitution, Bylaws and annual dues which shall require an
affirmative three-fifths (60%) vote of the Member Representatives present at the meeting. [Bylaw s.
8.10]
4. In all cases, where the votes of Member Representatives present, including the vote of the Chair, are
equal for and against a question, the resolution fails. [Robert’s Rules of Order, pp. 392-393]
5. The Chair shall enforce order and strict observance of the Bylaws. Subject to an appeal to the
meeting sustained by a majority vote of Member Representatives present, the Chair shall have the
right to decide all questions of order and the chair’s rulings in this regard shall be final. [Robert’s
Rules of Order, pp. 625]
6. A Member Representative wishing to move, second or speak to a motion shall rise and address the
Chair and shall wait until he or she is recognized before speaking. The delegate must announce his
or her name, municipal or regional office and municipality or regional district, or other qualifications
each time he or she rises to speak. [Robert’s Rules of Order, p. 28]
7. Member Representatives must confine their remarks to a maximum speaking period of 2 minutes.
8. No Member Representative may speak more than once on any one question unless and until all other
delegates desiring to speak have been heard. [Robert’s Rules of Order, p. 30]
9. The fundamental principles of Roberts Rules of Order shall govern the proceedings of the Association
so far as they may be applicable without coming in conflict with the Constitution and Bylaws. [Bylaw s.
13.1]
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VOTING PROCEDURES – RESOLUTIONS SESSION
1. For each resolution, the Chair of the Resolutions Committee will introduce the resolution by
reading the title and identifying the local government sponsor. [Bylaws 11.1]
2. A member of the Resolutions committee will read the “therefore be it resolved” clause. The
resolution will now be before the membership and will not require a mover or a seconder.
3. The Chair will then call for discussion from the floor. [Bylaws 11.1]
4. A member of the local government sponsoring the resolution will be given the first opportunity to
speak using the “Yay” microphone. Reminders (a) before speaking on the resolution, you must
give your name, title and where you are from; (b) only elected officials are eligible to address the
convention.
5. Members wishing to speak against a resolution should address the assembly from the “Nay”
microphone.
6. No one may speak until they have been acknowledged by the Chair.
7. Each speaker will have 2 minutes to address the assembly.
8. If there is no speaker at the “Nay” microphone after the local government sponsor has spoken,
the Chair will call the question.
9. Any amendment or any motion to withdraw a resolution from consideration of the meeting must
be moved and seconded from the floor. [Bylaw s. 11.2]. If possible, provide a written copy of a
proposed amendment in advance to the Chair of the Resolutions Committee.
10. Voting will be by show of the assigned voting card and the Chair will determine if the motion has
been Carried or Defeated. [Bylaw s. 11.3] The voting result will be by a simple majority. Proxy
voting is not permitted.
11. Any member may call for a formal count of the votes and, if seconded, the Chair will call for voting
cards to be raised again and local government staff volunteers will conduct a count and report the
numbers to the Chair who will then announce the result. [Bylaw s. 11.3]
12. Reconsideration of a resolution is permitted as long as the assembly agrees by a 60% approval
that reconsideration is warranted because of relevant additional or clarifying information having
come to the attention of the assembly. A resolution may only be reconsidered once. A resolution
to be reconsidered may only be brought to the floor after all other resolutions have been
considered. [Bylaw s. 11.4]
13. Resolutions considering amendments to the Constitution, Bylaws and annual dues may only be
considered at the Annual meeting if the proposed amendments have been given to the Members
of the Association at least sixty (60) days in advance of the Annual Convention. [Bylaw s. 12.1(3)]
14. If discussion continues on any resolution for an undue length of time without reasonable
agreement being reached, the resolution may be cleared from the floor by a majority vote and the
resolution referred back to the Resolutions Committee for further consideration and report.
15. Late resolutions will be considered only after all other resolutions have been debated.
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SUBMISSION OF RESOLUTIONS
1. Resolutions submitted by the normal deadline date, no later than sixty (60) days prior to the Annual
Meeting, shall be considered first at the Annual Meeting.
2. Resolutions submitted after the normal deadline date (late and emergency resolutions) shall be
introduced at the Annual Meeting [Bylaw s. 10.5] only if:
➢

the resolutions are of a subject matter which could not have been submitted by the normal
deadline date;

➢

the resolutions have been received by the Resolutions Committee Chair at least twenty-four (24)
hours prior to the commencement of an Annual Meeting and enough copies are supplied in order
that they may be circulated to all Member Representatives at the Meeting Registration Desk at
the time of registration;

➢

consideration has been given to all resolutions submitted by the normal deadline date; and

➢

a resolution to allow its debate receives an affirmative vote of two thirds (66%) of the Member
Representatives in attendance at the meeting.

3. A resolution to be reconsidered may only be brought to the floor after all other resolutions have been
considered.
4. No other resolutions other than those referred to in Sections 1, 2, and 3 may be brought forward from
the floor. Any member of the Association may submit a resolution directly to UBCM without
endorsement of the Association. [Bylaw s. 11.5]

NOTES:
➢

Discussion and voting shall proceed in accordance with the Voting Rules and Rules of Procedure
– General and Voting Rules and Rules of Procedure – Resolutions.

➢

Debate and voting are on the resolution, NOT on the recommendation of the Resolutions
Committee.

➢

All references to Robert’s Rules of Order are taken from Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised,
10th Edition)

2022 SILGA RESOLUTIONS
LEGISLATIVE
1. Summerland

Local Elected Official Benefits

COMMUNITY SAFETY
2. Lillooet
3. Lake Country
4. Salmon Arm
5. Chase
6. Lillooet
7. Keremeos/RDOS
8. Lillooet
9. Chase
10. Chase

Criminal Justice Reform for Repeat, Convicted Offenders
RCMP Population Thresholds for Cost Sharing
Rural Policing
Fuel Mitigation outside Community Boundaries
BC Forest Management and Wildfire Prevention Reform
Flood Mitigation Service
Emergency Management Program Reform
Emergency Evacuation Transportation
Highway Rescue Funding

TRANSPORTATION
11. RDOS
12. RDOS
13. Merritt
14. Lake Country
15. RDOS

Safety and Speed Mitigation Measures on Provincial Roads
Reprioritizing Snow Clearing
On Road Use of Off-Road Vehicles for Snow Clearing
Mandatory Winter Tires for Rental Vehicles
Ride Sharing

FINANCE
16. RDOS

Sustainable Funding for Libraries

ASSESSMENT
17. Ashcroft

Reclassification of Properties Ancillary to Railway Operations

ENVIRONMENT
18. Coldstream

Exterior Lighting Pollution

LAND USE
19. RDOS
20. SLRD

Retroactive Development and the Riparian Area Protection Regulation
Local Governments to have Legislated Input into Cutting Permits

HEALTH AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT
21. Lake Country
Family Physician Funding
22. RDOS
Physician (Specialist) Recruitment in Rural Areas
23. Spallumcheen
BC Emergency Health Services Funding
24. Chase
First Responders Program Funding

25. RDOS
26. Penticton/RDOS
27. Spallumcheen

BC Emergency Health Services (BCEHS) – Partnership with Local Government
Provincial Car Program
Regional Food Supply Feasibility Study

HOUSING
28. Lumby
29. Oliver
30. Lumby

Home Affordability & Transfer Tax Levels
Tiny Homes
Bare Land Strata Development Minimum Standards

SELECTED ISSUES
31. Sicamous

Paid Protestors

LATE
1. Clinton

Reverse PST On Fossil Fuel Heating

LEGISLATIVE
(1) TITLE: LOCAL ELECTED OFFICIAL BENEFITS
SPONSOR: District of Summerland
Whereas one barrier to attracting a diversity of candidates to local government participation is the low
compensation received by local government elected officials;
And whereas benefits typically available to public servants at all levels of government are not readily
available to local government elected officials, further widening the gap between elected officials and
other public servants or private sector employees:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM work with the Province of British Columbia to establish an
accessible benefits program for local government elected officials to support attracting diverse local
government candidates.
SILGA Resolution Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the membership endorsed two resolutions seeking benefits
packages for local government elected officials (1991-B3, 1989-B2). The Committee acknowledges that
these are dated resolutions.
The Committee also notes that members supported resolutions seeking local government elected
officials access to/participation in other beneficial programs including:
• parental leave (2021-NR1); and
• municipal pension plan (2019-B25).

COMMUNITY SAFETY
(2) TITLE: CRIMINAL JUSTICE REFORM FOR REPEAT, CONVICTED OFFENDERS
SPONSOR: District of Lillooet
Whereas the RCMP are overworked and understaffed in the Province of BC;
And whereas many BC residents are frustrated with the low sanction sentences imposed by the
Provincial Court criminal justice system;
And whereas criminals may not choose the path to recovery as provided for by various provincial,
federal, or First Nations government-created mental health programs, Indigenous court systems, reform
programs, safe injection sites, methadone, or Opioid Agonist Treatment (OAT) clinics;
And whereas many thefts and drug-related crimes are perpetrated by criminals who are “well known to
police” and have multiple or long criminal records:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Province of BC and the BC’s Attorney General to
immediately begin working with the Government of Canada to address issues with Canada’s and British

Columbia’s justice system including the proposed imposition of weightier consequences and greater
accountability for repeat offenders, thereby supporting the rights of all Canadians to live in safe
communities.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the UBCM membership has endorsed resolutions asking the
provincial and/or federal government to:
• enact legislative and regulatory changes to the criminal justice system to apply stricter penalties
and ensure adequate incarceration of prolific criminals, as well as the consistent use of
electronic monitoring when individuals are released on conditions (2021-NR3);
• ensure prolific offenders are "sentenced effectively," and supported by credible programs to
address underlying challenges such as substance abuse or mental illness (2015-B54);
• amend or create laws or policies that will prohibit offenders labeled high risk, following their
release from prison, from residing in the community or the vicinity of the community where
they committed their crime(s) (2007-A2);
• escalate sentences for chronic offenders as part of a national integrated crime reduction
strategy that also seeks to re-emphasize the protection of society and the responsibility of
individuals for their criminal behaviour (2007-B89); and
• change the law with respect to “repeat offenders," including conditions around release into the
community, treatment programs and rehabilitation benchmarks (2006-B137).
UBCM's members also endorsed resolution 2014-B34, requesting that the Province develop a long-term,
multi-faceted strategy to help people suffering from concurrent disorders to avoid becoming chronic
offenders, by providing integrated health and psychiatric care, criminal justice reform, and access to
affordable housing. Several subsequently endorsed resolutions (2020-SR8, 2015-A2) have similarly
sought to address the increasing demand on police not through stronger penalties, but by seeking longterm provincial strategies that would provide integrated health and psychiatric care, affordable housing,
and additional resources for mental health and addictions services.
UBCM's January 2021 submission to the Special Committee on Reforming the Police Act, consistent with
endorsed resolutions 2020-SR8 and 2015-A2, recommends that the Province examine preventative and
proactive investments in health, addictions and housing, as opposed to reliance on punitive responses,
in order to help assist affected individuals and reduce the burden on police.
(3) TITLE: RCMP POPULATION THRESHOLDS FOR COST SHARING
SPONSOR: District of Lake Country
Whereas during the 1992 negotiations between the federal Solicitor General and the provincial
negotiating team it was agreed that the Province of BC would be responsible for 90 percent of the share
of the RCMP costs in communities with more than 15,000 residents and for 70 percent of the costs in
communities with less than 15,000 residents;

And whereas there have been significant increases in RCMP costs as a result of the collective bargaining
process that municipalities must pay since the thresholds were set in 1992;
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM urge the provincial and federal governments to consider increasing
the population thresholds to recognize the increased burden on emerging municipalities and inability
for the current population thresholds to support the increasing costs of policing.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously endorsed a
resolution specifically seeking for provincial and federal governments to consider increasing the RCMP
population thresholds (5,000 and 15,000) to recognize the increased burden on emerging
municipalities. However, UBCM members have endorsed several resolutions seeking amendments to
the current RCMP funding formula to make policing more affordable:
• 2006-B62, which requested that the federal and provincial governments increase the federal
RCMP subsidy to 30% for all municipalities;
• 2016-B75, which requested that the current RCMP funding model be reviewed with
consideration towards an incremental cost increase based on population growth;
• 2020-EB5, which requested that the Province review the current RCMP funding model with
consideration towards a gradual annual cost increase from the Police Tax to responsibility for
70% of the cost-base over a five-year period for municipalities that have reached the 5,000
person threshold; and,
• 2020-NR7, which requested that the provincial government review the current model of
funding RCMP police services, with the intent to make policing more affordable for contract
partners.
Additionally, the UBCM membership considered, but did not endorse the following resolutions:
• 2016-B81, which requested that the Province develop an equitable police funding program for
all municipalities and regional districts;
• 2020-NR8, which requested that the Province develop a funding model whereby provincial
RCMP resources are increased and allocated to various regions of BC based on tourism,
industrial activity growth, and/or rural population increase in the specified region;
• 2021-NR6, which requested that the Province implement a police funding formula that fairly
and equitably distributes RCMP expenses to all governments throughout the province; and,
• 2021-NR7, which requested that the Province review the current model of funding RCMP police
services with consideration given to equitable funding of police services through a provincial
police tax based on the assessed value of improvements for the areas served by the
detachments; and, that any provincial contribution towards policing be shared equally with all
police taxpayers;
The Committee also notes that the membership has consistently endorsed resolutions calling on the
provincial government to increase the authorized strength of the provincial police force to a sufficient
level (2020-EB6, 2020-NR10, 2019-A3, 2017-B6, 2016-B82, 2014-B6, 2013-B7, 2012-B1).

As part of the ongoing Police Act review, the Province has created the Local Government Policing
Modernization Roundtable as a forum for local governments to share their experience and knowledge
and bring forward matters of interest or concerns respecting policing modernization, the Special
Committee on Reforming the Police Act’s recommendations and other public safety priorities. Cost
pressures related to policing will be examined further as part of the Roundtable’s work.
Under the BC Police Act, a municipality must assume responsibility for policing services when its
population, according to the Canada Census, reaches or surpasses 5,000 people. Municipalities under
5,000 in population and unincorporated areas are required to pay the Police Tax, which acts as a means
for the Province to recover up to 50% of the estimated cost of providing law enforcement services to
these areas.
(4) TITLE: RURAL POLICING
Sponsor: City of Salmon Arm
Whereas public safety is of equal concern to both municipal and regional district residents;
And whereas rural populations are growing steadily;
And whereas provincial policing complements have not been increased at the same rate as municipally
funded positions;
And whereas lack of police resources affects rural safety and is putting a strain on municipal budgets:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the province increase the provincially funded positions
immediately;
And be it further resolved that future resource allocations accurately reflect the rural demands for
policing services.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the membership has consistently endorsed resolutions calling on
the provincial government to increase the authorized strength/staffing for the provincial police force to
a sufficient level (2020-EB6, 2020-NR10, 2019-A3, 2017-B6, 2016-B82, 2014-B6, 2013-B7, 2012-B1).
In response to endorsed resolution 2020-EB6, the Province noted that it is "aware of the pressures
facing front-line Provincial Police Service resources." The Province continues to work with the RCMP to
address resourcing pressures within its areas of responsibility.

(5) TITLE: FUEL MITIGATION OUTSIDE COMMUNITY BOUNDARIES
SPONSOR: Village of Chase
Whereas climate change is real and causing significant changes in the way local, provincial, and federal
governments do business and provide services;
And whereas the Province of BC has provided funding for Community Wildfire Protection Plans and Fire
Smart programs for local governments;
And whereas the continual drying and heating of our forests in British Columbia causes wildfires to
ignite much more readily and to travel at higher speeds across the forested areas:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the BC Wildfire Service to take action to reduce fuel loading
around the perimeter of communities in British Columbia which will work in conjunction with initiatives
undertaken in communities to protect themselves from wildfires.
SILGA Resolutions Committee Recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership previously endorsed resolution 2012B113, which called on the Province to provide full funding for fuel abatement on Crown lands located in
regional district electoral areas and adjacent to municipal boundaries.
The Committee also notes that the membership has endorsed numerous resolutions seeking provincial
support and funding for carrying out wildfire mitigation activities (2021-NR10, 2020-EB12, 2020-NR21,
2019-B13, 2019-B76, 2019-B92, 2019-B93, 2018-B22, 2018-B97, 2018-B100, 2015-B5, 2012-B114, 2008B59, 2007-B75).
The Province recently committed funding to support shifting the BC Wildfire Service from a reactive to a
proactive approach, which will include operating with a year-round workforce. An additional $98 million
over three years has been earmarked to address wildfire prevention and maintain forest service roads
used to respond to forest fires.
(6) TITLE: BC FOREST MANAGEMENT AND WILDFIRE PREVENTION REFORM
SPONSOR: District of Lillooet
Whereas the residents of BC are calling for our provincial government to provide better forest
management and wildfire prevention by assessing the current policies and guidelines to enhance those
that are working and to re-evaluate and change those that are not;
And whereas Ontario created an 'All Hazards Agency' that employs people to manage fire, flood, and
slides year-round;
And whereas the trickle effect of lumber prices and availability along with jobs, mill closures, current
and future mudslides, damage to critical habitat, and house insurance will continue to increase and
have an alarming effect on BC's future if we do not change the current forest practice procedures:

Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Province of BC immediately create an “All Hazards
Agency” that employs people full time, year-round to manage fire, flood and slides as part of a
comprehensive forest restoration and management program;
And be it further resolved that the Province of BC be requested to empower local people, working with
licensees, industry and contractors, Indigenous communities, ranchers, and boots-on-the-ground
workers such as fire fighters, forestry workers, and all those that see day to day issues and have the
frontline knowledge to provide feedback on inconsistencies in forest management and offer
recommendations to the “All Hazards Agency” with the aim of improving forest management practices
and preventing wildfires in BC.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
SILGA Committee agrees with the creation of an All Hazards Agency to manage fire, flood and slides
year-round. However, the comments correlating fires, floods and slides with current forest management
practices, are not supported by the committee.
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously considered a
resolution calling for the Province to:
• create an “All Hazards Agency” that employs people full-time, year-round to manage fire, flood
and slides as part of a comprehensive forest restoration and management program; and,
• empower local stakeholders to provide feedback on inconsistencies in forest management and
offer recommendations to the “All Hazards Agency” with the aim of improving forest
management practices and preventing wildfires in BC.
UBCM members previously endorsed resolution 2017-LR2, which sought for the Province to ensure that
the Government Actions Regulation under the Forest and Range Practices Act initiates “a Fire Mitigation
Strategy that prioritizes public safety over other forest management initiatives including harvesting and
reforestation of the affected areas.”
The Committee notes that the membership has endorsed numerous resolutions seeking provincial
support and funding for carrying out wildfire mitigation activities (2021-NR10, 2020-EB12, 2020-NR21,
2019-B13, 2019-B76, 2019-B92, 2019-B93, 2018-B22, 2018-B97, 2018-B100, 2015-B5, 2012-B114, 2008B59, 2007-B75).
The Province’s Budget 2022 includes significant financial and operational commitments to improve
emergency management, including through shifting the BC Wildfire Service to operate with a yearround workforce.

(7) TITLE: FLOOD MITIGATION SERVICE
SPONSOR: Town of Keremeos/Regional District Okanagan Similkameen
Whereas climate change has accelerated the frequency and intensity at which high water events occur
in the Province British Columbia;
And whereas orphan dikes in British Columbia no longer adequately protect BC communities:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Province of British Columbia to implement a flood
mitigation service in consultation with local governments, including Indigenous partners.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse with Proposed Amendment
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse with Proposed Amendment
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Province of British Columbia to implement a flood
mitigation service, with particular focus on the ongoing provincial maintenance of orphan dikes, in
consultation with local governments and Indigenous partners.
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously endorsed a
resolution seek for the Province to implement a flood mitigation service with particular focus on the
ongoing provincial maintenance of orphan dikes, in consultation with local governments and Indigenous
partners.
However, the Committee notes that the membership has endorsed resolutions which called on the
Province to be re-established as diking authority in all local governments (2015-B52) and in local
governments under 20,000 in population and rural areas (2014-B75).
Additionally, the UBCM membership has consistently endorsed resolutions requesting support and/or
funding for flood protection, prevention and mitigation measures (2021-EB6, 2020-SR1, 2020-NR16,
2019-B12, 2018-B123, 2018-B94, 2018-B37, 2016-B56, 2015-B97, 2015-B7, 2014-B76, 2013-A1, 2013A2, 2012-B3, 2012-B4, 2011-B11, 2011-B12, 2011-B79, 2010-B8, 2009-B3, 2008-B69, 2007-A1).
The Resolutions Committee recognizes the 2021 provincial flooding that, among other things, resulted
in highway washouts, landslides and power outages. These events have emphasized the need to reexamine the Province’s 2003 decision to download diking responsibility to local governments, and the
role that the Province and local governments should play with respect to flood management.

(8) TITLE: EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM REFORM
SPONSOR: District of Lillooet
Whereas local governments and other local authorities in rural British Columbia are under-resourced to
effectively respond to ever-increasing climate related disasters;
And whereas the elected officials and staff of local governments and other local authorities are often
themselves personally and tragically impacted by these disasters;

And whereas the emergency management program provides provincially administered funding for onthe-ground efforts that largely rely on the victims of the disaster to be responsible for disaster response
and recovery:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Province of BC offer on-the-ground provision of the
emergency management program for local governments that opt-in to this service to ensure that
adequate resources are always available and can be dynamically allocated throughout the province
based on capacity and need.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Not Endorse
SILGA Resolutions Committee agrees there should be a mechanism in place for EMBC to take over the
duties of an EOC if a community requests it, however, there appears to be a contradiction in the TBIR
clause versus the stated intent of the resolution.
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously endorsed a resolution
seeking for the Province to offer "on-the-ground provision of the Emergency Management Program" as
an opt-in service for local governments. In discussion with the sponsor, it is understood that the intent of
the resolution is for the Province to assume responsibilities under Section 6 of the Emergency Program
Act (local authority responsibilities) unless a local government chooses (i.e. opts in) to undertake these
duties.
UBCM's members have consistently endorsed resolutions requesting provincial and/or federal assistance
with the provision of emergency services, including but not limited to 2020-SR1, 2019-B11, 2018-B95,
2018-B107, 2017-B86, 2016-B56, 2015-B7, 2015-B77, 2015-B78, 2014-B50, 2014-B76, 2013-A1, 2013B44.
In 2019, Emergency Management BC began work to amend and modernize BC's emergency
management legislation. The UBCM Executive, in response to proposed provincial policy shifts, has
conveyed recommendations to EMBC requesting that support and funding be provided to address new
and ongoing local government responsibilities. These recommendations were also included as part of the
August 2021 report by the UBCM Select Committee on Local Government Finance, Ensuring Local
Government Financial Resiliency.

(9) TITLE: EMERGENCY EVACUATION TRANSPORTATION
SPONSOR: Village of Chase
Whereas many small local governments not in close proximity to larger centres do not have publicly
provided or privately provided bus service available;
And whereas in the event of an emergency evacuation, the provision of one or more busses would be
an integral part of the evacuation of individuals particularly those vulnerable, mobility challenged and
without their own or supportive transportation;

And whereas most small local governments have school bus services provided by the school districts to
transport children to and from school but the buses are not stationed in the local governments in the
summer which is the critical time particularly for wildfire risk and potential evacuation:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Province of BC to require school districts to keep some
buses in the local government they serve during summer months to provide for the evacuation of
vulnerable individuals if required.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously considered a
resolution calling on the Province to require school districts to keep some buses in the local government
they serve during summer months to provide for the evacuation of vulnerable individuals if required.
The Community Emergency Preparedness Fund, a program intended to enhance the resiliency of local
governments, First Nations and communities in responding to emergencies, includes a funding stream
to support the development of evacuation route plans. The Province recently allocated $120 million in
2021/22 in new funding to the CEPF.
(10) TITLE: HIGHWAY RESCUE FUNDING
Sponsor: Village of Chase
Whereas many small local governments provide highway rescue services in large geographic areas
outside of their jurisdictions;
And whereas the Province of BC has increased funding to communities in the past several years to help
offset the costs of the service provided;
And whereas costs continue to rise for components of the service including fuel, vehicle repairs, vehicle
replacement and training:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Province of BC to review the funding allowances to
cover more costs associated with the provision of highway rescue services by small local governments.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the UBCM membership has consistently endorsed resolutions
calling on the provincial government to provide funding for road rescue and vehicle extrication,
including 2020-EB9, 2019-B9, 2018-B5, 2015-B17, 2014-B15, 2013-B8, 2011-B4, 2010-B6, 2009-B28,
2009-B69, 2009-B88, 2007-B10.

In response to endorsed resolutions 2019-B9 and 2020-EB9, the Province indicated that it is committed
to developing a sustainable funding model. The Province, as part of its response to endorsed resolution
2020-EB9, also noted ongoing work by the Fire Chiefs Association of BC to develop a funding and
governance model for Road Rescue. This work has included a funding opportunity, launched in
November 2020, that provided successful applicants with up to $50,000 for equipment purchases and
training expenses.
The Committee also notes that the membership has consistently endorsed resolutions requesting
provincial and/or federal assistance with the provision of emergency services, including 2020-SR1, 2019B11, 2018-B95, 2018-B107, 2017-B86, 2016-B56, 2015-B7, 2015-B77, 2015-B78, 2014- B50, 2014-B76,
2013-A1, 2013-B44.

TRANSPORTATION
(11) TITLE: SAFETY AND SPEED MITIGATION MEASURES ON PROVINCIAL ROADS
SPONSOR: Regional District Okanagan Similkameen
Whereas the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure does not install speed mitigation measures
on provincial roads, giving the rationale that provincial roads belong to all the citizens of British
Columbia as they serve to promote the economy and inter-provincial movement of people and goods;
And whereas the criteria provided by the Ministry of Transportation applies to all roads under the
Province’s jurisdiction, whether they are numbered highways, rural roads or local subdivision roads:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure to develop a
matrix to determine the primary use(s) of the provincial roads, and base safety and speed mitigation
measures on the primary use(s) of provincial roads rather than a blanket criteria.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously considered a
resolution asking the Province specifically to develop a matrix to determine the primary use(s) of
provincial roads, and base safety and speed mitigation measures on the primary use(s) of provincial
roads rather than a blanket criteria.
However, the Committee notes that members have consistently endorsed resolutions seeking to
improve road safety, including:
• improve service level standards and increase funding for the upkeep of secondary roads in the
provincial road network (2020-EB18)
• implement lower, blanket speed limits (2019-B7, 2009-B19, 2006-B14, 2003-LR9, 1999-B44);
and
• traffic calming measures in areas designated for growth in electoral areas (2019-B115).
In its response to resolution 2019-B115 in particular, the provincial government did not address the
request for traffic calming measures on provincial roads in unincorporated areas. Instead, the Province
referenced the Canadian Traffic Calming Guide, and its own Active Transportation Design Guide. It is

unclear how the Province envisioned that local governments should implement the recommendations
from these guide publications on roads over which the local governments have no jurisdiction.
(12) TITLE: REPRIORITIZING SNOW CLEARING
SPONSOR: Regional District Okanagan Similkameen
Whereas there is increased concern about the state of public roads in rural communities during and
after major weather events;
And whereas the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure’s road classification system defines
levels and response times for maintenance standards for each specific service area in order to prioritize
service:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM urge the provincial government to work with local governments to
review the existing road classification system to consider reprioritizing the order in which roads are
cleared or maintained;
And be it further resolved that the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure increase funding for
maintenance of secondary roads to ensure safe and accessible transportation options for rural
communities.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously considered a
resolution urging the provincial government to work with local governments specifically to review road
classifications and reprioritize the order in which roads are cleared or maintained.
However, the Committee would note that members have endorsed several resolutions seeking greater
funding and higher snow removal standards for provincial roads, including:
• 2021-EB15 which asked the Province to work with local governments to identify any flaws or
deficiencies in snow-clearing on arterial routes, and to relay an expectation to their contractors
that reasonable municipal requests be heeded through the duration of the contract. As well as
involve local governments in setting standards for snow clearance when contracts are renewed;
• 2018-B85 which asked the Province to review snow and ice control in rural areas, as well as
minimum equipment standards, and staffing requirements; and
• 2007-B98 which requested that the Province work with UBCM to ensure that the standards,
practices, and funding for winter maintenance of provincial highways within a local jurisdiction
are harmonized with the standards and practices used by the local government to clear its roads
of snow, ice, and gravel.
(13) TITLE: ON ROAD USE OF OFF-ROAD VEHICLES FOR SNOW CLEARING
SPONSOR: City of Merritt
Whereas the provincial Motor Vehicle Act prohibits private owners from driving off-road vehicles on
municipal streets;

And whereas Division 24 of the Motor Vehicle Act Regulations allows RCMP discretion to issue operation
permits for non-standard vehicles, including off-road vehicles;
And whereas heavy snowfall can render streets and sidewalks impassable, requiring substantial effort to
clear them, which residents sometimes wish to perform expeditiously using off-road vehicles:
Therefore be it resolved that the provincial government and RCMP work with local governments to
develop transparent and consistent frameworks allowing the on-road use of off-road vehicles within a
prescribed, permit-specific area, for the purpose of clearing snow.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
SILGA Resolutions Committee comment that municipal bylaws can be written and/or amended to
support the spirit of this resolution.
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously considered a
resolution asking the provincial government to allow citizens to use their personal off-road vehicles to
clear snow from municipal roads.
However, the Committee notes that members have endorsed resolutions supporting the regulation and
licensing of off-road vehicles and all-terrain vehicles (2013-B97, 2011-B10, 2009-A6, 2007-B20, 2002-B9,
2000-B115). Resolution 2007-B20 in particular sought local government authority to regulate or ban the
use of off-road vehicles within municipal and regional district boundaries, in the context of concerns
about property damage and public safety.
The Committee understands that snow removal needs vary from year to year, and it can be challenging
to budget adequately to cover the costs of snow removal from municipal roads. However, the
Committee wonders whether it is advisable to respond to what appears to be a municipal budget
shortfall by asking the provincial government and the RCMP to set up a special permitting system so
that a corps of private citizens and their off-road vehicles may be enlisted to conduct snow removal
operations on municipal roads.

(14) TITLE: MANDATORY WINTER TIRES FOR RENTAL VEHICLES
SPONSOR: District of Lake Country
Whereas winters in many parts of British Columbia are subject to icy road conditions and snowfall
accumulation;
And whereas most rental vehicles are only equipped with all season tires rather than winter tires:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Province of BC to make it mandatory that winter rated
tires be installed on rental vehicles during the winter months in those areas of BC that experience snow
and ice conditions.

SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the UBCM membership endorsed resolution 2011-B81, which
had the same enactment clause as this resolution.
In response to resolution 2011-B81, the provincial government stated that it had communicated with
car rental agencies to encourage education and adoption of winter tires for rental vehicles. The Province
pointed out that many car rental agencies give customers the option to equip a vehicle with winter
tires, for an additional fee. At the time, the provincial government indicated that it did not intend to
impose a requirement for rental vehicles to be equipped with winter tires during winter months in areas
that experience snow and ice conditions.
(15) TITLE: RIDE SHARING
SPONSOR: Regional District Okanagan Similkameen
Whereas ride sharing is a convenient, safe, and responsive service which benefits local residents and the
tourism industry as well as fosters economic growth;
And whereas there exists a public need for the service and within smaller communities, ride sharing
offers a more reliable option where traditional services are often inconsistent;
And whereas it has been shown that taxi companies can financially tolerate the introduction of ride
sharing companies, and ride sharing has been proven as a benefit to impaired driving reduction:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the BC Passenger Transportation Board to implement a viable
ride sharing service regulation which will address passenger transportation issues outside of Metro
Vancouver including small, rural, and remote communities.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Action Required
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the UBCM membership has endorsed resolutions asking the
provincial government to establish or expand transportation network services (also referred to as ride
hailing or ride sharing), including:
•
•
•

2019-LR1 called for Passenger Transportation Act amendments to establish an area-based,
tiered, regulatory solution for transportation network services in small rural and remote
communities as well as other communities outside of the Lower Mainland;
2017-B57 asked for viable, flexible, ride-sharing service regulation to address passenger
transportation challenges that are unique to small, rural, and remote communities; and
2012-B115, which called for a transportation strategy that would critically assess and determine
solutions towards passenger directed vehicle operations including both public transit and taxis
in rural communities.

In its response to resolution 2019-LR1, the Province referenced a Passenger Transportation Act
requirement for the Legislative Assembly to appoint a special committee on or before January 1, 2022
(s. 42.1 of the Act). This committee would, in part, review whether the Act promotes commercial
passenger transportation services, including ride-hail, in small, rural or remote communities. The
Resolutions Committee understands that the provincial government has since amended the Passenger
Transportation Act, extending the deadline for establishment of this special committee to July 1, 2023.
Once the special committee is appointed, it will have one year to submit its report to the Legislative
Assembly.
The Resolutions Committee further understands that, for regulatory purposes, the Passenger
Transportation Board has divided the province into five “regions” where transportation network
services may operate. In their application to the Passenger Transportation Board, a potential operator
must specify the region or regions in which they wish to operate a transportation network service.
According to the information available on the Passenger Transportation Board website, the Board has
approved one or more applications to operate transportation network services in each of the five
regions. Once an application is approved, the operator then has the discretion to decide where in the
region they will offer transportation network services.
The regulatory framework exists, and the Passenger Transportation Board has approved applications to
operate transportation network services in all regions of the province. It is unclear to the Committee
how the regulatory framework falls short of the request made in this resolution.

FINANCE
(16) TITLE: SUSTAINABLE FUNDING FOR LIBRARIES
SPONSOR: Regional District Okanagan Similkameen
Whereas libraries in British Columbia are largely financed by levies paid by local governments, and
where provincial library funding has remained stagnant for the past 10 years;
And whereas public libraries are central to communities, providing equitable access to vital resources,
including internet, computers, digital library tools, and in-person services from expert staff;
And whereas public libraries provide British Columbians with low-barrier services, that support job
seekers and small businesses, that increase literacy in communities, that advance reconciliation with
Indigenous peoples, and that promote equity and inclusion;
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM urge the Province of BC to provide long-term sustainable funding
for public libraries in BC;
And be it further resolved that the Province of BC ensure that BC libraries will henceforth receive
regular increases to provincial government funding in subsequent years.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:

The Resolutions Committee notes that the UBCM membership has consistently endorsed resolutions
calling on the Province to maintain and increase its funding for public libraries (2020-EB41, 2019-B28,
2019-B29, 2018-B24, 2017-B60, 2016-B95, 2014-B17, 2012-B71, 2011-B27, 2010-B46, 2008-B57, 2007B56, 2006-B55, 2006-B56).

ASSESSMENT
(17) TITLE: Reclassification of Properties Ancillary to Railway Operations
SPONSOR: Village of Ashcroft
Whereas land used for the purposes of extracting, storage of products manufacturing or transporting of
goods are categorized as Class 5 Light Industry in the BC Assessment Act – Prescribed Classes of
Property Regulations BC Reg. 438/81 with the exception of lands used or held for the purposes of, or for
purposes ancillary to, the business of transportation by railway;
And whereas ancillary rail operations such as transloading facilities are a heavy burden on local
government infrastructure through trucking activity and movement of product and require a higher
level of government support including fire services:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM urge the provincial government to review the assessment
classifications in the BC Assessment Act – Prescribed Classes of Property Regulations BC Reg. 438/81 and
that business for the purposes ancillary to railway operations including transloading facilities be
reclassified as Class 5 Light Industry in order to create fair taxation from railway operations and further
that, Section 5(e) be repealed from the Act.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the UBCM membership endorsed a similar resolution 2021-NR23
that called for the repeal of Section 5(e) from the Assessment Act - Prescribed Classes of Property
Regulation BC Reg. 438/81 in order to create fair taxation from railway operations. However, this
current resolution makes an additional request that business for the purposes ancillary to railway
operations including transloading facilities be reclassified as Class 5 Light Industry.

ENVIRONMENT
(18) TITLE: EXTERIOR LIGHTING POLLUTION
SPONSOR: District of Coldstream
Whereas excessive lighting causes light pollution and glare;
And whereas light pollution may have a negative impact on quality of life, contribute to adverse health
effects and pose potentially harmful consequences to the natural environment by disrupting
ecosystems:

Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request that the Building and Safety Standards Branch amend the
BC Building Code to allow, facilitate and empower local governments to exercise control of lighting
fixtures, including intensity and directionality, as part of their permitting and inspection process for all
new construction and major renovations.
Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously considered a
resolution asking the Province to amend the BC Building Code to allow, facilitate and empower local
governments to exercise control of lighting fixtures, including intensity and directionality, as part of
their permitting and inspection process for all new construction and major renovations.
However, the Committee notes that the membership endorsed a similar resolution - 2012-B74 - which
asked the Province to amend the BC Building Code to allow, facilitate and empower local governments
to require exterior full cut-off light fixtures as part of their permitting and inspection process for all new
construction and major renovations.
The membership also endorsed resolution 2010-B89 which requested that UBCM and the Province
support an education program on the benefits of installing full cut-off exterior lighting fixtures.
The Committee notes that full cut-off light fixtures on street lights diffuse light downwards where it is
needed as opposed to sideways and up to the sky as currently occurs with traditional street lights. As a
result, full cut-off light fixtures reduce light pollution while increasing the energy efficiency of street
lights.

LAND USE
(19) TITLE: RETROACTIVE DEVELOPMENT AND THE RIPARIAN AREA PROTECTION REGULATION
SPONSOR: Regional District Okanagan Similkameen
Whereas the introduction of the Riparian Area Regulation (RAR) in 2006 was intended to improve the
protection of riparian areas in British Columbia;
And whereas the transition to the Riparian Area Protection Regulation (RAPR) in 2019 whereby the
Ministry reviews all assessments was not intended to create a burden on local governments;
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Province of British Columbia to amend the Riparian
Area Protection Regulation to allow the minister to issue a notification to a local government regarding
an assessment report that has been prepared in relation to a “retroactive development”.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:

The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously considered a
resolution asking the Province to amend the Riparian Area Protection Regulation to allow the minister
to issue a notification to a local government regarding an assessment report that has been prepared in
relation to a “retroactive development”.
(20) TITLE: LOCAL GOVERNMENTS TO HAVE LEGISLATED INPUT INTO CUTTING PERMITS
SPONSOR: Squamish Lillooet Regional District
Whereas local communities currently have no legal avenue for providing input into forest land cutting
permits before they are approved and issued by the Province;
And whereas communities are often impacted by harvesting and log hauling, with environmental
impacts, visual impacts, road safety issues and little economic benefit:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Province to give local governments a legislated avenue for
providing input before cutting permits for forest licensees and woodlot tenure holders are approved
and issued by the Province.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the UBCM membership has consistently endorsed resolutions
calling on the provincial government to require consultation with local governments as part of land use
decisions, including decisions involving the permitting process for resource extraction and industrial
projects (2016-B33, 2015-B59, 2012-B141, 2009-B137, 2005-LR6, 1996-B57, 1995-B91).

HEALTH AND SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT
(21) TITLE: FAMILY PHYSICIAN FUNDING
SPONSOR: District of Lake Country
Whereas British Columbians are continuing to struggle to access primary care and establish
relationships with a family doctor despite a Provincial commitment to a new primary care network
model in 2018;
And whereas the Province of British Columbia offers limited alternatives with limited funding to the fee
for service model for physician compensation:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Province of BC to consider, implement and adequately fund
alternative physician compensation models to replace the fee for service model to better support
continuity of care and encourage doctors to practice family medicine.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse

Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the UBCM membership endorsed resolution 2018-B143 which
asked the Province to undertake a review of the fee for service model with a view to making the
compensation of family physicians in BC more attractive to encourage new medical graduates to choose
family practice and stay in BC.
The Committee also notes that the membership has consistently endorsed resolutions supporting
improved physician recruitment and retention, and the need for more health care professionals,
including but not limited to 2017-B42, 2015-B68, 2014-B132, 2013-B47, 2012-B91, 2012-B103, 2011B60, 2010-B43, 2009-B148, 2008-B49, 2006-B154, 2005-B41, 2003-B104.
(22) TITLE: PHYSICIAN (SPECIALIST) RECRUITMENT IN RURAL AREAS
SPONSOR: Regional District Okanagan Similkameen
Whereas the Ministry of Health and Health Authorities, in partnership with Divisions of Family Practice,
have initiated programs to develop Primary Care Networks (PCNs) and Urgent and Primary Care Centres
(UPCCs) throughout the province to respond to a shortage of general practitioners and to provide
conditions to attract general practitioners to rural areas;
And whereas rural communities are extremely challenged to recruit and retain medical specialists in
many fields:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Province of British Columbia to establish a long-term
program to identify the root cause of the chronic shortage of physicians, including specialists, and that
they initiate a program to remove obstacles and fill vacancies in this essential service.
Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously considered a
resolution that asks the Province to establish a long-term program to identify the root cause of the
chronic shortage of physicians, including specialists, and that they initiate a program to remove
obstacles and fill vacancies in this essential service.
However, members have consistently endorsed resolutions supporting improved physician recruitment
and retention, and the need for more health care professionals, including but not limited to 2017-B42,
2015-B68, 2014-B132, 2013-B47, 2012-B91, 2012-B103, 2011-B60, 2010-B43, 2009-B148, 2008-B49,
2006-B154, 2005-B41, 2003-B104.
(23) TITLE: BC EMERGENCY HEALTH SERVICES FUNDING
SPONSOR: Township of Spallumcheen
Whereas the high number of call volumes for volunteer fire departments to respond to medical calls far
exceeds regular fire related needs;

And whereas the resources of volunteer fire departments and concerns for volunteer retention and
burnout is a concern due to excessive medical calls:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM lobby the provincial government to support additional funding and
review any feasibility studies to ensure that provincial resources for BC Ambulance and 911 services are
adequate to service local populations.
SILGA Resolution Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the UBCM membership has endorsed resolutions seeking to
improve and increase ambulance service in BC, including in small, rural communities, most recently:
2021-EB61, 2021-EB62, 2020-EB74.
The membership has supported resolutions seeking better and more equitable standby pay for
paramedics (2006-B48, 2017-B134); better coordination for pre-hospital health care (2019-SR3); more
solutions to ensure medical specialists and services are available in rural BC (2019- B63); address staff
shortages and improve recruitment and retention for ambulance paramedics (2021-EB62, 2020-EB74);
and for more advanced care and critical care paramedics in rural ambulance stations (2017-B133).
(24) TITLE: FIRST RESPONDERS PROGRAM FUNDING
SPONSOR: Village of Chase
Whereas many small local governments provide First Responder Program services to assist the BC
Emergency Health Services Ambulance services;
And whereas the provision of assistance to the BC Ambulance Services is very valuable;
And whereas some costs associated with providing the service on behalf of BC Emergency Health
Services are paid for by BC Emergency Health Services while hourly pay for First Responders and all
vehicle costs are paid by the taxpayers of the local governments that assist the BC Ambulance Services:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the BC Emergency Health Services to increase the funding
to local governments who provide First Responder Program to assist the BC Ambulance Service.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the UBCM membership has endorsed several resolutions seeking
fair compensation for local government provision of first responder services (2019-SR3, 2019-B11, 2018B141, 2014-A2, 2012-A6, 2009-B14, 2004-B26, 2001-B4).

(25) TITLE: BC EMERGENCY HEALTH SERVICES (BCEHS) - PARTNERSHIP WITH LOCAL GOVERNMENT
SPONSOR: Regional District Okanagan Similkameen
Whereas BCEHS ground ambulances are designed and equipped to provide emergency care and patient
transport throughout British Columbia;
And whereas BCEHS personnel work closely with local governments in emergencies and disasters;
And whereas the lack of consultation with local government in the development of BCEHS policy that
impacts life and safety may be harmful to our mutual constituents:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Province of BC to require BCEHS to report regularly to local
government prior to the initiation of a policy where that policy may have an impact on local government
resources or the safety of our mutual constituents.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously considered a
resolution calling on the Province to require BC Emergency Health Services (BCEHS) to report regularly
to local government prior to the initiation of a policy where that policy may have an impact on local
government resources or the safety of our mutual constituents.
However, the Committee notes that the membership endorsed resolution 2019-SR3 that called on the
Ministry of Health, BCEHS and BC local governments to work together to implement a coordinated
approach to pre-hospital care, to create signed agreements outlining the roles and responsibilities of
fire departments based on local need, and to confirm that first responders are being notified of events
where they can best contribute to patient care.
(26) TITLE: PROVINCIAL CAR PROGRAM
SPONSOR: City of Penticton and Regional District Okanagan Similkameen
Whereas Car 40 Programs, which aim to support the diversion of those suffering with mental health
issues from the criminal justice system, and reduce patrol response and unnecessary hospital
admissions have been successful in a variety of formats across the Province since 1978;
And whereas a Provincially integrated and funded Car 40 program would provide consistency to
communities seeking new ways to support the health and safety of their residents:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Province support an integrated Car 40 Program with
appropriate and sustainable funding.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:

The Resolutions Committee notes that the UBCM membership has endorsed resolution 2021-EB60 that
asked the Province to provide an integrated health care regional model for a Mobile Crisis Response Car
Program.
The Committee also notes that the UBCM membership has endorsed resolution 2020-SR8 which called
for the development of integrated teams of health, police, and other officials on a twenty-four (24) hour
basis to manage individuals with mental health issues.
The membership has also endorsed resolutions calling on the provincial government to provide
improved resourcing and facilities for mental health and addictions services throughout the province
(2021-EB54, 2021-EB55, 2021-EB56, 2021-EB57, 2021-EB58, 2021-EB59, 2020-SR8, 2020-EB79, 2020NR62, 2019-B60, 2019-B61, 2019-B171, 2019-B172, 2018-B52, 2017-B70, 2017-B71, 2016-B43, 2015-A2,
2014-B34, 2013-B52, 2010-B42, 2008-A1, 2007-B89, 2007-B153, 2006-B50, 2006-B51, 2005-B3).
(27) TITLE: REGIONAL FOOD SUPPLY FEASIBILITY STUDY
SPONSOR: Township of Spallumcheen
Whereas the effects of climate change, primarily flooding and wildfire events, have highlighted how
fragile our food supply chain can be;
And whereas the need for a regional food supply system is greater than ever:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM lobby the provincial government, primarily the Ministry of
Agriculture and the Premier of British Columbia, to support and fund local food supply feasibility
studies, to ensure that as much food as possible can be grown, processed, and purchased within
regional areas to sustain the local populations.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse
Comments: Institute for Sustainable Food Systems has done a study for RDOS, RDNO and CORD including
suggestions for policy changes. https://www.kpu.ca/isfs/okanagan-bioregion
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee notes that the membership has endorsed several resolutions calling on the
Province to ensure food security for British Columbians, including resolutions 2019-B66, 2011-B100,
2011-B101, 2014-A3.
However, the membership has not considered a request to fund local food supply feasibility studies to
sustain local and regional populations. It may be challenging to determine what is considered ‘local’,
and what constitutes as the ‘region’ that would ensure food security.
UBCM is currently participating on a Ministry of Health-led working group to determine an integrated
province-wide approach to food security, which would include examining sustainable land and food
systems and food supply security.

HOUSING
(28) TITLE: HOME AFFORDABILITY & TRANSFER TAX LEVELS
SPONSOR: Village of Lumby
Whereas in BC home buyers pay a provincial Property Transfer Tax (PTT) at a rate of 1% on the first
$200,000 of the purchase price and 2% on the remainder up to and including $2 million;
And whereas according to the BC Real Estate Association the average single-family home increased 22%
in value in the past 2 years since June 2020 to $915,000;
And whereas the Property Transfer Tax is not related to the cost of services provided, the 2% tax on
amounts over $200,000 creates an additional cost to homeowners making affordability more out-ofreach for more homebuyers:
Therefore be it resolved that SILGA and UBCM request that the BC government reduce the tax burden
on home purchasers by applying the 1% tax rate to the first $700,000 of the purchase price and 2% on
the remainder up to and including $2 million.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: Not Endorse
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM Executive did not endorse referred resolution 2016B135 which called on the Province to reduce the Property Transfer Tax on new and existing homes in an
effort to reduce the negative impacts on housing affordability. At the time, the Resolutions Committee
noted that “the UBCM membership endorsed expansion of local government revenue tools as a
foundational concept of the Strong Fiscal Futures blueprint for strengthening the BC local government
finance system. Sharing a portion of the property transfer tax with local government was specifically
identified as a way to expand revenue tools for local government. With this in mind, the Committee
would ask whether reduction of property transfer tax might take away a potential solution.”
Expanding on these comments on 2016-B135, the Committee would note that membership has
consistently supported resolutions asking the Province to share a portion of the Property Transfer Tax
with local governments to address affordable housing and homelessness (2021-EB20, 2019-B30, 2017B17, 2011-B67, 2008-A3, 2007-B23, 2007-B109, 2006-B23, 2004-A8).
Finally, UBCM’s 2018 Housing Strategy identifies modifications to the property transfer tax as a
potential option to make it more progressive and/or disincentivize rapid resale (‘flipping’).
(29) TITLE: TINY HOMES
SPONSOR: Town of Oliver
Whereas owning a home in British Columbia is becoming increasingly unaffordable. During the
2020/2021 fiscal year, BC Housing subsidized nearly 19,000 shelter spaces, housing units and rent
supplements. It was reported by the Bank of Canada that in Quarter 3 of 2021, Canadian’s needed to
spend over 37% of their household income to service a mortgage;
And whereas tiny homes offer an affordable, quick to build and green alternative to standard housing;

Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the Province of BC to review the BC Building Code to address
barriers such as, but not limited to, egress, headroom and window and door size, and to recognize,
allow and provide building requirements for tiny homes;
And be it further resolved that the Province should incorporate these changes into Part 9 of the BC
Building Code that would define tiny houses as allowable permanent dwellings, and thus permit them to
be constructed where local government official community plans and zoning bylaws deem them
appropriate.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: Endorse with suggested amendment
Suggested amendment:
Whereas during the 2020/2021 fiscal year BC Housing subsidized nearly 19,000 shelter spaces and
housing units and provided rent supplements and, further, it was reported by the Bank of Canada that
in Quarter 3 of 2021 Canadians needed to spend over 37% of their household income to service a
mortgage;
And whereas owning a home in British Columbia is becoming increasingly unaffordable and tiny homes
offer an affordable, quick to build and green alternative to standard housing;
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM Executive considered, but did not endorse, referred
resolution 2020-NR71 which asked the Province to work with the BC Building Code Interpretation
Committee to review the 14 Code change requests made at the federal building code level in support of
mobile tiny houses in March 2017 by the Canadian Home Builders’ Association. As well, 2020-NR71 had
a second enactment clause that is identical to the second enactment clause in this “Tiny Homes”
resolution, addressing Part 9 of the BC Building Code.
However, the Committee notes that the membership has broadly supported resolutions in support of
affordable housing (2019-B30, 2018-B55, 2018-B56).

(30) TITLE: BARE LAND STRATA DEVELOPMENT MINIMUM STANDARDS
SPONSOR: Village of Lumby
Whereas bare land strata plan requirements for the strata’s internal works and services are outside of
local government purview;
And whereas it is recognized that municipalities should prescribe all developments standards as the
municipality is concerned with how infrastructure is originally built and with the standards of living in its
community;

And whereas current bare land strata developments do not have to meet minimum municipal
standards, and as such may devolve into undesirable neighbourhoods that are inconsistent with other
neighbourhoods, adversely affecting the land value beyond the area of the bare land strata subdivision:
Therefore be it resolved that SILGA and UBCM asks the BC Government to amend the Bare Land Strata
Regulation to require that bare land strata developments meet the same minimum standards set by
local governments, as required in their subdivision servicing bylaws, to ensure consistency across all
developments throughout the community, in areas such as street lighting, sidewalks, curb heights,
paved roads etc.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously considered a
resolution calling on the Province to amend the Bare Land Strata Regulation to require that bare land
strata developments meet the same minimum standards set by local governments, as required in their
subdivision servicing bylaws, to ensure consistency across all developments throughout the community,
in areas such as street lighting, sidewalks, curb heights, paved roads etc.

SELECTED ISSUES

(31) TITLE: PAID PROTESTORS
SPONSOR: District of Sicamous
Whereas the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms provides that every person in Canada has the
right to freedom of expression and freedom of peaceful assembly as part of a democratic nation;
And whereas lawful protests provide citizens the opportunity to express views and grievances for
government to respond to;
And whereas individuals that are recruited and paid by organizations to protest on their behalf create a
false perception of public opinion on matters of community interest:
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM ask the provincial government to investigate and lobby for the
prohibition of organizations paying individuals to protest of their behalf.
SILGA Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
UBCM Resolutions Committee recommendation: No Recommendation
Resolutions Committee comments:
The Resolutions Committee advises that the UBCM membership has not previously considered a
resolution calling on the Province to investigate and lobby for the prohibition of organizations paying
individuals to protest of their behalf.

LATE (1) REVERSE PST ON FOSSIL FUEL HEATING
SPONSOR: Village of Clinton
WHEREAS the Province of British Columbia announced in the Provincial Budget on February 22, 2022,
that Provincial Sales Tax would be added to all fossil fuel heat and hot water appliances to encourage
British Columbians to revert to electric heat pumps and hot water heaters;
AND WHEREAS even though heat pump technology may be improving, currently heat pumps are not
sufficient to heat homes and businesses in the British Columbia Interior and Northern Regions which
would necessitate auxiliary heat sources to augment heat pumps during the coldest days of winter in
those regions;
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that UBCM request the Provincial Government of British Columbia to
reverse this decision until such time as heat pump technology has improved sufficiently to adequately
heat buildings in the Interior and Northern Regions of the Province.
SILGA Resolutions Committee Recommendation: No Recommendation
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CONSTITUTION
1.

NAME
The name of the society is Southern Interior Local Government Association.

2.

PURPOSES
The purposes of the Southern Interior Local Government Association are:
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2.1

to represent, in one organization, the various local governments of the Southern
Interior area of British Columbia;

2.2

to enhance and provide the forum to improve and refine the quality and level of
service provided by local government to its citizens;

2.3

to support and advance to the Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM)
and/or Provincial Ministries on behalf of the membership proposed changes in
legislation, regulations or Government policy;

2.4

to coordinate communications between Members, other Local Government
Associations and various governmental organizations;

2.5

to educate and assist Members in the provision of good government for our
citizens; and

2.6

to hold meetings to promote the purposes listed above.

SCHEDULE “B”

BYLAWS
1.

INTERPRETATION
In these Bylaws, unless the context otherwise requires:

2.

3.

"Association" or “SILGA”

shall mean the
Association;

Southern

Interior

Local Government

"Bylaw"

shall mean a Bylaw of the Association;

"Executive" or “Directors”

shall mean the President, First Vice-President, Second VicePresident, Immediate Past President and seven (7) Member
Representatives of the Association as Directors at Large, one
of whom must be an Electoral Area Director of a regional
district, all of whom are elected annually at the Annual
Meeting;

"Life Member"

shall mean an individual appointed to Life Membership in
accordance with section 3 of the Bylaws;

“Member"

shall mean an eligible local government which has paid the
assessed membership dues for the current year and shall
include Life Members;

“Member Representative"

shall mean an elected official, currently in office, of a Member;

"Officers"

shall mean the President, First Vice-President, Second VicePresident, Past President and Secretary-Treasurer;

“Ordinary Resolution”

shall mean a resolution passed by a majority of the votes cast
by the Member Representatives; and

“Special Resolution”

shall mean a resolution passed by at least 2/3 of the votes
cast by the Member Representatives.

MEMBERSHIP
2.1

All cities, towns, villages and district municipalities and regional districts within the
Okanagan, Thompson-Nicola, Columbia, Shuswap and Similkameen Valleys and
Lillooet are eligible for membership in the Association upon payment of the annual
membership dues set by the Association.

2.2

Every Member and Member Representative shall comply with the Bylaws of the
Association and its rules and policies.

LIFE MEMBERSHIP
3.1

Life Memberships may be granted by the Executive to persons who have held
elected municipal or regional district office, by way of certificate.

3.2

Any Member Representative of the Association may present to the Executive names
of persons for consideration of Life Memberships.

3.3

The person being presented a Life Membership shall be so advised by the
President.
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3.4

All Life Membership Certificates shall be presented at the Annual Meeting after the
installation of the President-Elect.

3.5

Life Members who are not elected officials, currently in office, of a Member shall not
be entitled as Member Representatives to vote on matters to be resolved by the
Members / Member Representatives and shall not receive notices in accordance
with these Bylaws.

3.6

Annual and registration fees of Life Members shall be waived for those Life Members
no longer serving as elected officials.

3.7

All Past Presidents of the Association shall be Life Members.

4.

OFFICERS
4.1

In accordance with subsection 5.1 below, the Officers of the Association, with the
exception of the Secretary-Treasurer and Past President, shall be elected by the
Member Representatives at Annual General Meetings of the Association.

4.2

The Secretary-Treasurer will be the General Manager of SILGA, to be paid a
contracted fee in the amount and on the terms and conditions authorized by the
2/3 majority of the Directors.

4.3

For those vacancies on the Executive created as a result of an Executive member
vacancy:
1. The First Vice-President shall assume the office of President;
2. The Second Vice-President shall assume the office of First Vice-President; and
3. Director at Large positions are to be advertised and appointed by the
Executive on an interim basis until the next Annual General Meeting.

4.4

5.
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The President of the Association shall be the Association's appointee to the Union
of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) Executive. At the President's discretion,
a different member of the Executive may be designated as the appointee to the
UBCM. The Association’s appointee to the UBCM Executive will remain as the
UBCM representative until the next UBCM Annual General Meeting.

EXECUTIVE
5.1

The Executive, with the exception of the Past President, shall be elected from
among the Member Representatives at the Annual General Meeting of the
Association in accordance with the process set out in section 7 below, and
Executive members shall assume their respective positions immediately prior to
the adjournment of the Annual General Meeting at which they are elected.

5.2

The term of office for the Executive, except for the Past President, shall be for a
one year term. The President may not serve more than two consecutive terms in
that office. Upon expiration of his or her term as President, the individual
automatically takes the position of Past President, and holds that position until the
next President is replaced at an Annual General Meeting.

5.3

In the event of a vacancy occurring in the Executive, such vacancy may be filled
by a vote of the Executive only until the next Annual General Meeting.

3

6.

7.
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5.4

Except for the office of Past President, all members of the Executive shall hold
office only so long as they remain elected representatives of their Municipality or
Regional District. If a person holding the office of Past President ceases to be an
elected representative of a Member of the Association, such person shall only hold
the office for the remainder of the current term.

5.5

A quorum at Executive meetings shall be a majority of the Executive members
holding office.

5.6

The President shall recommend all committees, which will be ratified by the
Executive.

DUTIES
6.1

The Executive shall manage the affairs of the Association between Annual General
Meetings and shall report thereon at the next Annual Meeting of the Association.

6.2

The Executive shall have the duty to support and advance the will of the
Association as expressed by resolution of the Members at any of its meetings.

6.3

The Executive shall have the power to incur such ordinary expenses, including
reasonable expenses incurred by the Executive themselves in carrying out their
responsibilities, as may become necessary to carry out the business of the
Association between Annual General and Extraordinary Meetings.

6.4

The Executive shall meet at least four times per year and more often as requested
by the President or three other Officers or Directors of the Executive.

6.5

The notice requirements for meetings of the Executive, shall be the same as those
contained in Section 8.4.

NOMINATIONS AND ELECTION OF EXECUTIVE
7.1

The President shall appoint a Nominating Committee to make nominations for the
Executive. The Nominating Committee shall consist of up to three (3) Member
Representatives, one of whom shall be a Past President.

7.2

The Chair of the Nominating Committee shall be the Past President unless that
position is vacant, in which case the Chair shall:
1.

be appointed by the Executive with consideration to a previous Past
President; and

2.

not be a member of the Executive.

7.3

The Nominating Committee shall submit a proposed slate of Executive to the
Members at the Annual General Meeting for consideration.

7.4

All Member Representatives shall be eligible to stand for election to the Executive.

7.5

If an election of the Executive is required it will be conducted by a secret ballot
and, subject to subsection 7.11 below, those candidates receiving the most votes
of the Members being elected to the Executive, and ballots shall be destroyed by
resolution of the Members following the declaration of the successful candidate for
office or directorship.

7.6

In the event of an equality of votes between two candidates, the successful
Executive candidate will be chosen by lot between those two candidates. The
name of each candidate will be written on a separate piece of paper, folded in such
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a way that the names of the candidates are not visible and placed in a container
and shaken. One piece of paper will be withdrawn by the Chair of the Nominating
Committee and that person declared the winning candidate.

8.
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7.7

The Chair of the Nominating Committee shall present the Nominating Committee's
candidates to the Association and will preside over the election process.

7.8

If the Chair of the Nominating Committee is unable to act, the Executive shall
appoint a Member Representative, Officer or Director to undertake the duties and
responsibilities as Chair of the Nominating Committee and to preside at the
election.

7.9

The Secretary-Treasurer shall serve as the "Returning Officer" and may appoint
other staff members in attendance to assist with the election.

7.10

The election of Officers to the Executive shall be held at the Annual General
Meeting on a first ballot and that of the Directors at Large subsequently on a
second ballot. Any candidate that is unsuccessful in obtaining an Officer position
on the first ballot may become a candidate for a Director at Large position on the
second ballot.

7.11

If, in the election of the Officers to the Executive on the first ballot, an Electoral
Area Director of a regional district is elected, the Director at Large positions will
then be filled by the candidates with the most votes.

7.12

If, in the election of the Officers to the Executive on the first ballot, an Electoral
Area Director of a regional district is not elected, then in the election of the Directors
at Large, the candidate - of those candidates that are Electoral Area Directors of a
regional district - with the most votes will be elected as a Director at Large and the
balance of the Director at Large positions will be filled by the remaining candidates
with the most votes. If only one Electoral Area Director of a regional district
candidate runs for a Director at Large position, that candidate will be acclaimed.

MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERS
8.1

One of the Vice-Presidents shall preside at all meetings of the Members in the
absence of the President.

8.2

One general meeting shall be held every year in the month of April or May which
shall be known as the Annual General Meeting. If a virtual Annual General Meeting
is deemed necessary by the SILGA board, the SILGA board or staff will choose a
third-party virtual meeting platform as well as a third party electronic voting platform
to allow confidential online voting for all aspects of the Annual General Meeting.
Member Representatives will be provided in advance with detailed instructions on
how to access the virtual platform and the voting procedures.

8.3

Extraordinary Meetings, which shall be any meetings of the Members other than
the Annual General Meeting, may be called by the President, or in the absence of
the President by one of the Vice-Presidents or by a majority of the Executive, and
the business of that meeting shall be restricted to the business specified in the
notice calling the meeting.

8.4

Fourteen (14) days’ notice of Extraordinary Meetings shall be given to Members.

8.5

The location of the Annual General Meeting shall be determined by ordinary
resolution at an Annual General Meeting no less than 2 years in advance of the
proposed meeting date. The dates of the next meeting shall be fixed by the
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Executive, and at least ninety (90) days’ notice of such a meeting shall be given to
the Association Members.

9.
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8.6

A quorum shall be twenty (20) Members present at the Annual General Meeting
and Extraordinary Meetings.

8.7

All elected officials of a Member municipality or regional district shall be entitled as
the Member Representatives to have a voice and vote at the Annual General or
Extraordinary Meetings of the Association.

8.8

There shall be no proxy voting, and each Member Representative present at a
meeting shall be entitled to one vote per question.

8.9

The Secretary-Treasurer and the Corporate Officer and/or Chief Administrative
Officer of the Member local governments shall be entitled to attend meetings of the
Members but shall not be entitled to vote, nor to address matters placed before the
Association unless requested to do so by the President.

8.10

All matters placed before a meeting of the Association or Executive, shall be
resolved by Ordinary Resolution, except as otherwise specifically referenced for
these bylaws and for amendments to the Constitution, Bylaws and annual dues
which shall require a Special Resolution of the Member Representatives present
at the meeting.

FINANCES
9.1

The fiscal year end of the Association shall be December 31st.

9.2

The President or their designate, the Secretary-Treasurer and one other member
of the Executive appointed by the Executive shall be signing authorities for the
Association. Any two of the above-named are authorized to sign all documents
and cheques for the Association.

9.3

The Executive shall prepare or cause to be prepared an operating budget for the
next fiscal year, along with a financial plan for the next 5 fiscal years, for
presentation to, and approval by Ordinary Resolution the Member Representatives
at the Annual General Meeting.

9.4

The Secretary-Treasurer shall coordinate preparation of the Association’s annual
Financial Statement by the Association’s accountants (to be prepared to a review
engagement standard), to be presented by the Association’s accountants and/or
a member of the Executive at the Annual General Meeting.

9.5

Expenditures deemed to be extraordinary and beyond the scope of ordinary
expenses under the usual authority of the Executive shall be referred to, and
approved by Special Resolution the Member Representatives of the Association
in attendance at the Annual General or Extraordinary Meeting at which the
proposed expenditures were presented. If the expenditure is approved, a special
levy will be assessed equally amongst all Members, if required.

9.6

Dues requisitions for each year shall be sent to Members on or before June 15th
and shall be payable on or before September 15th of the same year. Member
Representatives of Members whose dues are in arrears are not eligible to speak
or vote at any meeting of the Association or to sit on the Executive Committee.

9.7

Changes to annual membership dues shall be determined by Special Resolution
of the Member Representatives present at an Annual General Meeting of the
Association and shall remain fixed until a further change is adopted by the
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membership. The current membership dues rate is attached hereto as Schedule
"A".
10.

SUBMISSION OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING RESOLUTIONS
10.1

Notice of the `Call for Resolutions' for the next Annual General Meeting shall be
given to all Members not later than January in each year.

10.2

The President shall appoint a Resolutions Committee of three or more Members
of the Executive at least sixty (60) days prior to the Annual General Meeting.

10.3

It shall be the duty of the Resolutions Committee to examine, comment and make
recommendations on all resolutions submitted in response to the “Call for
Resolutions” for the Annual General Meeting.

10.4

Resolutions Submitted Prior to the Annual Meeting

10.5
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(1)

Each resolution shall be prepared on the sponsoring Member local
government’s letterhead and shall bear a short descriptive title;

(2)

Each resolution shall be endorsed by the sponsoring Member's Municipal
Council or Regional Board;

(3)

Each resolution should be received by the Secretary-Treasurer no later
than sixty (60) days prior to the Annual General Meeting;

(4)

Each resolution should be relative to regional issues and should not pertain
to a finite local interest. Background information should be provided to
support the resolution; and

(5)

At least two weeks prior to the Annual General Meeting, the SecretaryTreasurer shall circulate all resolutions submitted in response to the "Call
for Resolutions" to all Members.

Late Resolutions
(1)

Resolutions submitted following the expiry of the regular deadline noted in
section 10.4 shall be considered "Late Resolutions" and shall comply with
all other submission requirements, except that a copy of the resolution shall
be provided to SILGA by noon on the Friday preceding the date of the
Annual General Meeting. The resolutions committee will meet on the
Tuesday preceding the Annual General Meeting to provide
recommendations as to whether the late resolution(s) should be brought to
the Members for inclusion in the resolution debate. All late resolutions must
be adopted by a Special Resolution of the Member Representatives in
attendance at the Annual General Meeting to be included in the discussion.

(2)

Late resolutions will be reviewed by the Resolutions Committee prior to the
Meeting and only those of a subject matter which could not have been
submitted by the normal deadline date outlined in section 10.4 will be
considered.

(3)

Late Resolutions shall be available for discussion after resolutions printed
in the resolutions book have been considered.

(4)

Late Resolutions admitted for plenary discussion shall be dealt with in the
order presented in the Late Resolutions report.
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10.6

11.

12.

In the event that a late resolution is recommended to be admitted for
discussion, the sponsoring member of the late resolution shall produce
sufficient copies for distribution to the Members at the Annual General
Meeting.

(6)

The Late Resolution will, after reading, be properly before the meeting, and
the regular procedures for handling resolutions will apply.

The Executive will have the resolutions available on the SILGA website as well as
circulated to Member Representatives via email.

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTIONS
11.1

The Chair of the Resolutions Committee shall introduce each submitted resolution
and call for discussions from the floor. The resolution will, after reading, be
properly before the Members and will not require a mover or a seconder.

11.2

Any amendment and any motion to withdraw any resolution from consideration of
the meeting must be moved and seconded from the floor.

11.3

Voting on resolutions shall be by show of voting card and the Chair's decision as
to whether a motion is won or lost shall be final. Any Member may call for or
demand a count and, if seconded, the Chair must put the question on ordering a
count.

11.4

Any resolution that has been voted on may be reconsidered at the same meeting
provided that the Member Representatives present agree by a Special Resolution
of the Member Representatives in attendance at the meeting that the
reconsideration is warranted because of additional or clarifying information having
come to the attention that is directly relevant to the decisions of the Member
Representatives in casting their votes. A resolution may only be reconsidered
once. A resolution to be reconsidered may only be brought to the floor after all
other resolutions have been considered.

11.5

It is understood that any Member of the Association may submit a resolution direct
to UBCM without an endorsement of the Association.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS
12.1
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(5)

Where amendments are proposed to the Constitution and Bylaws, the following
procedures shall apply:
(1)

all proposed amendments will be submitted to the Secretary-Treasurer who
will present them to the Executive;

(2)

the proposed amendments, after review by the Executive, shall be
submitted to the Member Representatives of the Members of the
Association at its Annual General Meeting;

(3)

the Secretary-Treasurer shall provide not less than sixty (60) days’ notice
to the Members of the Association of the proposed amendments to the
Constitution and Bylaws; and

(4)

amendments to the Constitution and Bylaws must be approved by a
Special Resolution of the Member Representatives in attendance at the
meeting.
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12.2

13.

(1)

The Executive may from time to time adopt policies or implement rules
which will become binding on the Members and their Member
Representatives; and

(2)

The Secretary-Treasurer shall maintain a Policy Book which will include the
policies adopted or the rules implemented by the Association. The Policy
Book shall be open to review by all Members of the Association and their
Member Representatives.

RULES OF PROCEDURE
13.1
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Policies and Rules

At all times, and unless contrary to the Constitution and Bylaws of the Association,
or policies or rules adopted pursuant to section 12.2, the most recent edition of
Roberts Rules of Order shall be the applicable rules of procedure at all meetings
of the Association.
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APPENDIX “A” TO SECTION 9.7
SCHEDULE “A”
The Annual Dues for membership in the Southern Interior Local Government Association
(SILGA) per Member are as follows:
In 2018
$250 plus $0.04 per capita*
In 2019
$275 plus $0.06 per capita*
In 2020 and beyond $300 plus $0.075 per capita* plus an annual 2% increase
*based on most recently available Statistics Canada census information
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Southern Interior Local
Government Association

Policy Manual
2021 Edition

POLICY MANUAL
Policy No. 1
Page No. 1 of 1
RE:

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Meeting Location (April 29, 2020)
Executive meetings are to be rotated among member municipalities with the Annual
General Meeting always being held at the annual convention.
If the executive is unable to meet in person, virtual meetings are allowed.
Invite Local Politicians to Attend Executive Meetings (October 16, 2003)
When Executive Committee Meetings are held, Mayors, Councillors and Regional Board
Directors who live in the area where the Executive Meeting is held are invited to bring
greetings from the community and discuss issues or share successes; with one
spokesperson being provided 20 minutes.

POLICY MANUAL
Policy No. 2
Page No. 1 of 1
RE:

COMMUNICATING SILGA INFORMATION

To SILGA Membership (October 16, 2003)
All communications from the SILGA Executive are to be forwarded to the member Local
Governments for distribution to all members.
To UBCM (October 16, 2003)
Copies of the SILGA newsletters are to be sent to UBCM and posted on the SILGA
website.
To SILGA (October 16, 2003)
Correspondence directed to SILGA to be circulated to the Executive at the next Executive
Meeting.

POLICY MANUAL
Policy No. 3
Page No. 1 of 2

RE:

ANNUAL CONFERENCE / GENERAL MEETING

Resolutions Supported by SILGA (October 16, 2003)
Resolutions supported by SILGA to be sent directly to the Respective Ministers, when
appropriate.
Convention Bid (June 19, 2019)
Letters of bid for hosting a convention should be provided two (2) years in advance. The
budget and proposed agenda for the annual conference shall be prepared by the host
local government in a form acceptable to the Executive and submitted four months in
advance. All surplus funds generated by the annual conference is to be kept by the
Southern Interior Local Government Association.
Election of Executive Committee (October 16, 2003)
If, at the close of the annual convention, there are not sufficient members elected to the
Executive to constitute a quorum, the remaining board members shall be responsible to
find sufficient members to serve on the Executive.
Convention Host Committee Meetings (June 7, 2013)
SILGA General Manager will attend all host committee convention meetings to provide
expertise and guidance, either in person or by telephone, on organizational and financial
matters.
RE:

ANNUAL CONFERENCE / GENERAL MEETING

Complimentary Convention Registration (May 3, 2007)
The following individuals shall receive complimentary convention registrations:
1)
2)
2)
3)
4)
5)

Prime Minister
Life Members (no longer in office);
Cabinet Ministers;
Members of the Legislative Assembly;
British Columbia Members of Parliament;
Fraternal Associations – the President or designate of:
• UBCM;
• Federation of Canadian Municipalities;

Other British Columbia area associations where reciprocal
privileges are extended by those associations.
Corporate sponsors depending on the level of sponsorship
•

6)
NOTE:

Life Members and other complimentary registrants are required to pay
their own travel and accommodation expenses plus registration, travel
and accommodation expenses for their partner.

SILGA Executive Photograph (December 7, 2005)
A group photograph of the SILGA Executive shall be taken annually during the Annual
General Meeting.

POLICY MANUAL
Policy No. 4
Page No. 1 of 1
RE:

UBCM CONVENTION

SILGA Luncheon Meeting (October 16, 2003)
The SILGA Executive to arrange for an informal general discussion luncheon meeting
with the SILGA membership at the annual UBCM Convention. The UBCM Executive to
be requested to leave time on the agenda for area association luncheons.
An “In Memoriam” will be prepared for the luncheon for those current and former locally
elected politicians that have passed away.

POLICY MANUAL
Policy No. 5
Page No. 1 of 1
RE:

TRAVEL EXPENSES POLICY (August 30, 2013)

POLICY STATEMENT:

It is the policy of SILGA to reimburse members of the Executive, committees, staff
and other members approved by the Executive who are requested to represent
SILGA, for the cost of travel, accommodation, meals and out of pocket expenses
incurred in the course of such representation.

POLICY BACKGROUND:

The work of the Executive, committees and staff frequently requires individuals to
travel away from their domicile to attend meetings. SILGA assumes the
responsibility for travel expenses incurred when members are requested by SILGA
to travel on behalf of the Association. SILGA holds the belief that voluntary
participation in business carries with it the expectation that an individual agrees to
contribute time as a volunteer and, as is reasonable, will arrange his or her affairs
to minimize claims. Consistent with this, it is anticipated that individuals will not
submit claims for honorarium or expenses if they are being compensated by an
employer for time spent on business or expenses associated with this.

POLICY GOAL:

It is the goal of this policy to reimburse members for expenses incurred while
representing SILGA at the request of the Executive.

POLICY OBJECTIVES:

1.

Transportation:
• To pay compensation for air travel at the lowest available air fare;
or
• To pay compensation for the use of private vehicles at the rate
equivalent to that paid by the Province of British Columbia 1, to a
maximum of the lowest economy air fare.
• Only the driver is entitled to reimbursement for car mileage; the
driver must submit the names of the passengers with the expense
account.
2.
Accommodation (due to weather conditions/distance travelled/
other circumstances):
• To pay compensation for hotel rooms at cost and with a receipt
required; or
• For private accommodation, in lieu of commercial accommodation,
an allowance of $40.00 per night may be claimed (no receipts
required).
3.
Per Diem Honorarium:

1

February 23, 2005

•
•
•
•

For all Executive and Executive Committee Meetings, an
honorarium of $100.00 per day will be paid.
For the board chair or designate, when representing SILGA at nonSILGA functions.
For all other travel authorized by the Board an allowance of
$100.00 per day will be paid.
For all other travel authorized by the Board, an allowance of $50.00
per half day will be paid. 2

Note: An honorarium, which is taxable income, is available to persons for time
spent on SILGA business. The purpose of the honorarium is to compensate for
presumed costs such as loss of self-employed income, dependent care or loss of
casual work. Receipts are not required, but claimants are expected to consider the
purpose of the honorarium provision when making a claim.
4.

Other Expenses: (March 18, 2009)
• For all meetings and other authorized travel where required meals
are not provided at the event, compensation for meals will be as
follows:
Breakfast
Lunch
Dinner

$15 including tips and tax
$25 including tips and tax
$35 including tips and tax

On the date of departure, travel must start before 7:00 am to claim breakfast;
before 12:00 noon to claim lunch; and, on the date or return, travel must end
after 6:00 pm to claim dinner.
•

2

All other expenses occurred for hospitality expenses and other nonspecified expenses shall be reimbursed at cost when receipts are
provided, subject to Executive approval.

half day defined as four (4) hours or less which includes travel time.

POLICY MANUAL
Policy No. 6
Page No. 1 of 1
RE:

MISCELLANEOUS POLICIES

Administrative Files (April 29, 2009)
The SILGA files are to be kept at the office of the Secretary Treasurer.
Financial Statement Preparation by Accounting Firm (May 3, 2012)
To pay for an annual independent financial review of the financial statements.
Requests for Support of Special Interest Groups (October 16, 2003)
Organizations requesting SILGA’s support in lobbying senior government on a matter to
be told that it is not SILGA’s policy to support and lobby on behalf of special interest
and/or business groups.
Website (October 16, 2003)
A reasonable monthly amount will be paid for maintenance fees for the SILGA website.

POLICY MANUAL
Policy No. 7
Page No. 1 of 1
RE:
CENTENNIAL RECOGNITION OF MEMBER MUNCIPALITIES
(September 10, 2008)
1. Each member community will be listed on the SILGA website with links to the
community’s website at no charge to the member community.
2. There will be a letter of congratulations sent from the President of SILGA.
3. A gift will be purchased and presented to the member community recognizing this
momentous achievement. Gift examples are plaques, clocks.
4. All costs related to the purchase will be the responsibility of SILGA.
5. Costs will not exceed $500.

POLICY MANUAL
Policy No. 8
Page No. 1 of 2
RE:

YOUTH AT UBCM POLICY (updated December 6, 2021)

POLICY STATEMENT:
It will be the policy of SILGA to reimburse up to 2 youth each year for the cost of travel,
accommodation, meals and out of pocket expenses incurred to attend the UBCM convention.
POLICY BACKGROUND:
To promote youth involvement and interest in local government, SILGA will annually sponsor up
to 2 youth to attend the UBCM convention. A call for nominations will be sent by SILGA after
each annual convention to all SILGA members with the youth representatives chosen at the June
SILGA executive meeting. Deadline for nominations for 2022 is June 1st.
A SILGA member local government must first nominate a youth from their community. A brief
statement written by the youth explaining why they want to attend along with a summary of their
interests and accomplishments should accompany the nomination.
The local government of the selected youth will mentor them during the week of the convention.
The expectation is the youth will shadow the mentoring council to all their minister meetings,
attend the sessions/presentations/tour (based on the youth’s interest) and attend the networking
sessions (SILGA luncheon), if possible. The youth can also join the SILGA board during their
meetings. The youth will be requested to provide a written report to SILGA outlining their
experiences and the impact the week had for them.
Definition of “Youth”
• School age secondary students registered in a public school, an independent school, Distributed
•

Learning program or as a home-schooled learner

up to the age of 19 on or after July 1 of the current school year
SILGA will spend up to $5,000/year for the cost of this program. Receipts will be required.
Sponsoring local governments are requested to cover the allocated conventions costs for the
selected youth and then submit receipts to SILGA for reimbursement. UBCM offers special
student registration prices; contact UBCM directly to register and use the complimentary form
provided by UBCM.

POLICY DETAILS:
1.
Transportation:
• To pay compensation for air travel at the lowest available air fare; or
• To pay compensation for the use of private vehicles at the rate equivalent to that
paid by the Province of British Columbia 3, to a maximum of the lowest economy
air fare.
• Only the driver is entitled to reimbursement for car mileage; the driver must
submit the names of the passengers with the expense account.

2.
Accommodation (due to weather conditions/distance travelled/
other circumstances):
• To pay compensation for hotel rooms at cost and with a receipt required; or
• allowance of $30.00 per night may be claimed (no receipts required).
3.

Other Expenses:
• For all meetings and other authorized travel where required meals are not
provided at the event, compensation for meals will be as follows:
Breakfast
Lunch
Dinner

$15 including tips and tax
$25 including tips and tax
$35 including tips and tax

On the date of departure, travel must start before 7:00 am to claim breakfast; before
noon to claim lunch; and, on the date or return, travel must end after 6:00 pm to claim dinner.
•

12:00

All other expenses occurred for hospitality expenses and other non-specified
expenses shall be reimbursed at cost when receipts are provided, subject to
Executive approval.

PAST PRESIDENTS – SILGA/OMMA
2019-2021
2017-2019
2015-2017
2013-2015
2011-2013
2011-2011
2009-2011
2008-2009
2006-2008
2004-2005
2002-2004
2000-2002
1998-2000
1996-1998
1995-1996
1993-1995
1990-1993
1988-1990
1987-1988
1985-1987
1983-1985
1981-1983
1979-1981
1977-1979
1975-1977
1973-1975
1971-1973
1970
1969
1968
1967
1966
1965
1964
1963
1962
1961
1960
1959
1958

Lori Mindnich
Shelley Sim
Chad Eliason
Marg Spina
Harry Kroeker
Noreen Guenther
Kevin Flynn
Jackie Tegart
Rhona Martin
Colin Mayes
Ron Cannan
Ida Makaro
Aaron Dinwoodie
Russ Gerard
Tom Shields
Al Kemp
Chuck Johnston
Sharron Simpson
Anne Clarke
Joyce Harder
N. Ward Bishop
K. Blackburn
William Attlesey
Frank Williamson
Jack Shaw
Pat Duke
Frank Laird
M. Budziak
W. Munk
A.C. Andrew
N. Holmes
J.E. Chilton
M.P. Finnerty
C.O. Winton
Peter Wing
V. Nancollas
J. Hill
H.J. Downs
C.H. Day
A. Jackson

Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Director
Mayor
Councillor
Councillor
Director
Councillor
Mayor
Mayor
Councillor
Councillor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Alderman
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Alderman
Alderman
Reeve
Mayor
Mayor
Reeve
Alderman
Chairman
Councillor
Alderman
Alderman
Alderman

Lumby
Clearwater
Salmon Arm
Kamloops
Merritt
Lake Country
Salmon Arm
Ashcroft
CSRD
Salmon Arm
Kelowna
Cache Creek
CORD
Kamloops
Osoyoos
Logan Lake
Enderby
Kelowna
Vernon
Lillooet
Ashcroft
Summerland
Enderby
Vernon
Osoyoos
Lumby
Penticton
Salmon Arm
Vernon
Kamloops
Summerland
North Kamloops
Penticton
Peachland
Kamloops
Salmon Arm
Coldstream
Vernon
Kamloops
Kelowna

1957
1956
1955
1954
1953
1952
1950-1951
1949
1948
1947
1946
1945
1943
1942
1941
1940
1939
1938
1935-1937

F.E. Atkinson
N.S. Johnson
J.E. Fitzwater
J.J. Ladd
W.A. Rathdun
C.E. Bentley
T.R.B. Adams
J.H. Horn
L.F. Metford
F.W. Scott
J.D. Pettigren
R.F. McDougall
G.R. Williams
M. Dangaard
G.A. Wilde
W.G. Wilkins
C.E. Scanlan
O.L. Jones
E.J. Sunderland

Reeve
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Reeve
Mayor
Alderman
Reeve
Mayor
Mayor
Reeve
Mayor
Reeve
Mayor
Reeve
Mayor
Mayor
Reeve

Summerland
Enderby
Kamloops
Kelowna
Penticton
Summerland
Vernon
Kelowna
Salmon Arm
Kamloops
Kelowna
Penticton
Kamloops
Salmon Arm
Vernon
Penticton
Kamloops
Kelowna
Coldstream

Councillor
Director
Chair
Director
Councillor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Councillor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor
Mayor

Kamloops
CSRD
CORD
CORD
Kamloops
Cache Creek
Lillooet
Vernon
Lumby
Kamloops
Kamloops
Kamloops
Kelowna
Vernon
Kamloops
Enderby
Kamloops

LIFE MEMBERS (UBCM PRESIDENT)
2018-2019
2013-2014
2008-2009
2004-2005
2002-2003
1998-1989
1990-1992
1990
1977
1968
1956-1957
1942-1943
1939-1940
1916-1917
1913-1914
1909-1910
1905

Arjun Singh
Rhona Martin
Robert Hobson
Aaron Dinwoodie
Pat Wallace
John Ranta
Joyce Harder
Anne Clarke
N.R.P. Duke
Peter Wing
J.E. Fitzwater
E.C. Scanlon
O.L. Jones
W.H. Smith
J.T. Robinson
C. Bell
C.S. Stevens

SILGA - Salmon Arm 2022
Conference Evaluation

Poor

Fair

Satisfacto

Good

Excellent

Please take a few moments to share your thoughts and ideas about this year's SILGA Convention. Through evaluations
such as this, SILGA hopes to be able to improve the annual convention and associated activites each year to better
reflect your needs and requirements.

Delegate Name

Local Government
Brief Comments

Presentations/Education Sessions
1 Robotic Dairy Farm

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

2 Innovation Centre/Zest Food Hub

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

3 Art Gallery

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

4 Jesse Wente -Keynote

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

5 Organizational Culture - Benty

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

6 Multi-Asset Class fund

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

7 UBCM Resolution review

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

8 Risk and Crisis Communication

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

9 Making Infrastructure Projects Feasible

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

10 Climate Change and Health - IH

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

11 Issues with States of Emergency

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

12 Film Industry Panel

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

13 Hon. Nathan Cullen

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

14 Cultural Mapping

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

15 Geohazard Risk Management

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

16 Airport Service Development

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

17 Community Food System Resiliency

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

18 Janet Austin, LG of BC

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

19 High Tech Economic Development

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

20 Wildfire Risk Reduction - Logan Lake

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

21 Attainable Housing - Missing Middle

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

Annual General Meeting
22 Voting procedures for executive

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

23 Resolution session

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

Overall Rating

5

4

3

2

1 n/a

More Feedback to help us plan future conventions
(Please feel free to add additional comments.)
What did you like most about the convention?

What aspect of the convention needs the most improvement?

What would you like to see at next year's convention and/or fall education sessions?

Additional Comments

For Grand Prize Draw - only completed forms will be put in for the draw

Delegate Name

Local Government

